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Boric Acid [P Grade: Weare the sole manufacture of IP grade Boric Acid in the country and have a valid FDA 
license. J"P Grade is used in eye wash, ointments, foot powder, shampoo, skin cream, mouth wash and in 
veterinary formulations. 

Boric Acid Technical Grade Granular: We were the first in the country to be awarded BIS certification for 
manufacturing Boric Acid Technical Grade. Used in fused products i.e. glass, glass fibre ceramics, frits, glazed, 
porcelain enamels. It is also used as fluxes and metallurgical operations like welding, brazing, paste fluxes and 
soldering fluxes etc. It is also used as catalysts in cyclohexane and hydrocarbon oxidation. 

We are in the business of Chemical products which include Boric Acid Technical Grade Powder & Granular, 
Boric Acid IP Grade (Indian Pharmacopoeia Grade), Di-Sodium Octaborate Tetrabydrate (DOT), Boron Oxide 
and Lithium I lydroxide Monohydrate. 

Over the years we have created a strong product portfolio along with robust quality for our consumers. 
Oursningentqualitycontrol measures ensure that we do not compromise on raw material quality and process 
integrity. 

PRODUCT PROFILE 
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Lithium Hydroxide Monohydrate: It is used in manufacturing lubricant greases, dyestuff and speciality 
resins. It is also used in batteries of electric vehicles (EVs ). 

Boron Oxide: It is a higher value added Boron product. It is used in industries like refractories as an advanced 
binding agent In glass, ceramics, and enamels it enhances thermal resistance, mechanical strength, and 
durability. 

w.. .. oi,.. .. -~,·~·~ 
';j°" .rs, )'ll'l'r. '1:.J.7' ........ --::: 

Oisodium Octaborate Tetrabydrate (0.0.'I'.): We possess a valid Fertilizer license for manufacturing 
Disodium Octaborate Tetrahydrate (D.O.T.), which is an important value added Agriculture Boron 
Micronutrient Fertilizer. developed using in-house developed technology. Used in the manufacture of solution 
or suspension fertilizers, formulations of high-performance liquids contain mg Boron or with combination of 
other nutrients for spraying on soil or through irrigation, formulation of soluble micronutrients powders for 
foliar spraying. as fire retardant in cellulosic materials such as cotton batting. paper. fabric, wooden 
composites etc., in fire retardant treatments for clothing. drapes or curtains, rugs, ironing board covers, fire 
fighter clothing and fire-retarded paper products, in water-based systems forcorrosion inhibition, lubrication, 
or thermal oxidative stabilization, in manufacture of water treatment chemicals, used as an additive to reduce 
abrasiveness and to control viscosity in cleaning products such hand cleaners, polishes, and waxes, cleaning 
compounds. 

Boric Acid Technical Grade Powder: We were the first in the country to be awarded BIS certification for 
manufacturing Boric Acid Technical Grade Used as fluxes and in metallurgical operations like welding and 
brazing. It is also used as fire retardant, as catalysts in in cydohexane and hydrocarbon oxidation. Other uses 
are condensers, dish washing products, and lubricants. !tis also used in nuclear applications and in agricultural 
asmicronutrients in fertilizers. 
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Dividend Payout 
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Book Value (In Rs.) 

Eearnlng Per Share (in Rs.) 

l~.70 

Profit Before Tax ( Rs. In Lakhs) 

Turnover (Rs. in Lakhs) 
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lndoborax Infrastructure Private Limited 

302, Link Rose, Linking Road, Santacruz (West), 

Mumbai -400054, Maharashtra 

(CIN: U45400MH2009PTC197583) 

Subsidiary Company 

MUFG lntime India Private Limited 
C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg. Yikhroli (West), 

Mumbai- 400 083, Maharashtra 

Registrar & Transfer Agent 

Pithampw; Sector 0, Pithampur Industrial Area 

Dist-Dhar, Madhya Pradesh, PIN: 454775 

Works 

302, Link Rose, LinkingRoad,Santacruz(West), 

Mumbai -400 054, Maharashtra 

Registered Office 

Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd, Canara Bank Bankers 

Bohra & Co.,Chartered Accountants Auditors 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Pravin Chavan 

Independent Director Mrs. Minakshi Mittal 

Independent Director : Mr. Yogesh Patil 

Independent Director Mr. Yatin Shah 

lndependentDirector Mr. Sachin Gupta 

Whole-time Director Mr. Govind Parmar 

Managing Director & CFO Mr. Sajal Jain 
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5. Appointment of Secretarial Auditor for the period of S (five) consecutive years from the 
financialycar2025·26 

To consider and if thought fit, pass with or without modification(sJ the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution; 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 24A and other applicable provision of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 read with Section 204 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013, if 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution; 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory moctification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, 
for the time being in force), and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended from time 
to time, the remuneration of Rs. 56,000/- plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket 
expense payable to M/s. V. B. Modi & Associates, Cost Accountants, (Membership No. 49992, Finn 
Registration No. 004861), who have been appointed by the Board of Directors on the recommendation 
of Audit Committee, as the Cost Auditors of the Company. to conduct the audit of the cost records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ending 31" March, 2026, be and is hereby ratified, 
confirmed and approved. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company and/or any person authorized by 
the Board, be and is hereby severally authorized to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may 
arise in giving any effect to this resolution and to do all such acts, deeds, things as may be necessary, 
proper or expedient and desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and matters 
connected therewith or incidental thereto.· 

4. Ratification of the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 31• March, 
2026. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

L To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements (including consolidated audited 
financial statements) of the Company for the financial year ended 31• March, 2025, together with the 
Reports of the Board ofDirectors and Auditors thereon. 

2. To declare a dividend of Re. 1 [: (100.00%) per equity share of Re. 1/- each for the financial year ended 
31~March,2025. 

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sajal Jain (DfN: 00314855), who retires by rotation in terms of 
section 152( 6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Forty Forth (44.') Annual General Meeting oflndo Borax &Chemicals Limited 
("Company1 will be held on Thursday, September 25, 2025 at 1.00 p.m, [!ST) through Video Conferencing 
("VC")/Other Audio Visual Means ('OAVM') to transact the following business: 

NOTICE OF 44" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
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L The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide its General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 
2020 and General Circular Nos. 17 /2020, dated April 13, 2020, in relation to "Clarification on passing 
of ordinary and special resolutions by companies under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made 
thereunder on account of the threat posed by COV!D-19", General Circular Nos. 20/2020 dated May 5, 
2020, and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, rhe latest being 09/2024 dated September 19, 
2024 (collectively referred to as "MCA Circulars") in relation to "Clarification on holding of annual 
general meeting (AGM) through Video Conferencing ('VC') or Other Audio Visual Means ('OAVM')", 
permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (''.AGM") through VC/OAVM, without the physical 
presence of the Members ata common venue. 

The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia ("SEBI") also vidcits Circular No. SEBl/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD- 

NOTES: 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 12'" August, 2025 
Registered Office: 
302, Link Rose, Linking Road, 
Santacruz (West), Mumbai - 400054 
Tel No.: +91 22 26489142 
Fax No.: +9122 26489143 
E-mail: complianceofficer@indoborax.com 
Website: www.indoborax.com 
Corporate Identity Number: L24100M I I l 980PLC023 l 77 

Pravin Chavan 
Company Secretary 

Membership No. 16857 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
lndo Borax & Chemicals Limited 

any, and applicable rules framed tbercundcr (including any statutory modification(s) or re­ 
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and on the recommendations of the Board of 
Directors, the consent of the Members, be and is hereby accorded to appoint M/s. Prasad Parah & 
Associates. Company Secretaries (ACS No. 25234, CP No. 10235, Peer Review No. PR 2189/2022) as 
the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for period of 5 (five) consecutive years commencing from 
April 1, 2025 and ending on March 31, 2030 and the Board be and is hereby authorized to fix the 
remuneration as may be determined by the audit committee in consultation with Secretarial Auditors, 
in addition to reimbursement of all out of pocket expenses as may be incurred in connection with the 
SccretariaJAudit of the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including any committee 
thereof) be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, things, and take all such steps as may 
be necessary, proper and expedient to give effect to this resolution and for matters connected 
therewith or incidental thereto". 
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2/P /ClR/2024/133 dated October 03, 2024and other applicable circulars issued in this regard ("SEBI 
Circular") has provided relaxations from compliance with certain provisions of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations"). 

In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"), the Listing 
Regulations and MCA Circulars, the 44"' AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OVAM. The 
registered office of the company shall be the deemed venue for the AGM. 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the ACM is entitled to 
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on bis/her behalf and the proxy need not be a members of the 
Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM, the 
requirement of physical attendance of members bas been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for 
appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for this ACM and hence the proxy form, 
attendance slip and route map of AGM are not annexed to this Notice. 

3. Institutional/Corporate shareholders (i.e. other than individuals/HUF /NRI etc.) are required to send 
scanned copy (PDF /JPG Format) of the Board or governing body resolution/ authorization etc, 
authorizing their representative to attend the ACM through VC/OAVM on their behalf and vote through 
remote e-voting, The said resolution/authorization shall be sent to the scrutinizer by e-mail on their 
registered email address to scrutinizer@mgconsulting.in with copy marked to 
complianceofficer@indoborax.com at least 48 hours before the commencement of the ACM. 

4. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books oftbe Company will remain closed from Friday, 
19'" September, 2025 to Thursday, 25" September, 2025 (both days inclusive), in connection with 
the ensuingAGM and thepaymentofdividend. 

5. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholdings, as maintained under 
Section 170 of the Act and Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested as 
maintained under Section 189 of the Act, and all other documents referred to in the Notice will be 
availableforinspection in electronic mode without any fee by the Members from the date of circulation 
of this Notice up to the date of ACM, i.e. 25" September, 2025. Members are requested to write to the 
Company Secretary for inspection of the said documents atcomplianceofficer@indoborax.com. 

6. The dividend as recommended by the Board of Directors, if approved by the members at the ACM, 
payment of such dividend subject to deduction of tax at source will be made on or after 29" September, 
2025, as under: 

a) To all beneficial owners in respect of shares held in dematerialized form as per the data as may 
be made available by the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and the Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) as of the close of the business hours on 18"' 
September; 2025; 

b) To all shareholders in respect of shares held in physical form after giving effect to valid 
transmission or transposition request lodged with the company on or before the close of 
businesshourson 18"' September,2025. 

7. The explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act setting out material facts concerning the 
business under Item Nos. 4 & 5 of the Notice, is annexed hereto. further. the relevant details, with 
respect to Item No. 3 pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards 
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12. The Company has transferred the unpaid or unclaimed dividends declared up to financial year 2016- 
17, from time to time endue dates, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (JEPF) established by 
the Central Government. Pursuant to provisions of Lnvestor Education and Protection Fund 
(Accounting.Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, the Company has uploaded the details of unpaid 
and unclaimed amount lying with the Company as on 27• August, 2024 (thedateoflastAnnual General 
Meeting) on the website of the Company. 

Members are requested to note that, dividends if not encashed for a consecutive period of 7 years from 
the date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company, are liable to be transferred to the 
Investors Education and Protection Fund ("IEPF"). Further; all the shares in respect of such unclaimed 
dividends are also liable to be transferred to the demat account of the fEPF Authority. In view of this, 
members are requested to claim their dividends from the Company, within the stipulated timeline. The 
Members, whose unclaimed dividends/shares have been transferred to IEPF Authority, may claim the 
same by making an application to the IEPF Authority in Form No. lEPF-5 available on www.iepf.gov.in. 
For details, please refer to corporate governance report which is a partof tbis Annual Report. 

13. Pursuant to Finance Act, 2020, dividend income is taxable in the hands of shareholders and the 
company is required to deduct tax at sources (TDS) from dividend paid to shareholders at the 

Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to submit their PAN to their respective DPs 
with whom they arc maintaining their demat accounts, as mandated by the SEBI for every participant 
insecurities market. 

11. Members holding shares in physical mode are required to submit their Permanent Account Number 
(PAN) to the Registrar and Share'T'ransfer Agents viz. MUFG lntime India Private Limited, C-101, 247 
Park, L.B. S. Marg, Vikhroli (West}, Mumbai - 400 083, as mandated by SEBI for every participant in 
securities market 

10. Members who have not registered their e-mail address are requested to register the same with tbeir 
Depository Participants in the case shares arc held by them in electronic form and the members 
holding shares in physical mode who have still not registered their email ID witb tbe Company may 
write a request letter to register their email ID to the Company's Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, 
MUFG lntime India Private Limited 

on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of 
dircctorseekingappointment/re-appointment at this AGM are also annexed 

8. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the Notice of the AGM along with 
the Annual Report 2024-25 is being sent by electronic mode to tbose members whose e-mail addresses 
are registered with the Company /Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 
2024-25 will also available on tbe Company's website www.indoborax.com and disseminated on the 
website of stock exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at 
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and on the website of Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent i.e. MUFG lntime India Private Limited at www.in.mpms.mufg.com 

9. In case of joint holders, the member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as 
per the Register of Members of the Company as on the cut-off date wiU be entitled to vote during tbe 
AGM. 
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prescribed rates. For the prescribed rate for various categories, please refer to the Income Tax Act, 
1961 and the Finance Act, 2020, of the respective years. The shareholders are requested to update 
their valid PAN with DP's (if shares are in dematerialized form) and the company fMUFG lntime India 
Private Limited (if the shares are held in physical fonn). 

Resident inclividual shareholder with PAN and who is not liable to pay income tax can submit a yearly 
declaration in Fonn 15G/15H, to avail the benefit of non-deduction of tax at source be submitted at link 
https: /(linkintime.co.in/formsreg/submission-of-form-15g-15h.html. The shareholders can 
download Form 15G/1511, lOF from link https:(/www.linkintime.eo.in/client-downloads.html. 
Shareholders are requested to note that in case their PAN is not correct/invalid/inoperative or have 
not filed income tax returns then tax will be deducted at higher rate prescribed under section 206AA or 
206AB of the Act, as applicable and in caseofinvalid PAN, they will notable togetcreclitofTDS from the 
Income Tax Department. 

Non-resident shareholders (inclucling Foreign Institutional Investors (Flls)/Foreign Portfolio 
Investors (FP!s) can avail beneficial rates under tax treaty between India and their country of tax 
residence, subject to providing necessary documents i.e. No Permanent Establishment and Beneficial 
Ownership Declaration, Tax Residency Certificate, Form lOF, any other documents which may be 
required to avail the tax benefits. For this purpose the shareholders may submit the above documents 
(PDF fonnat) by email to company atcomplianceofficer@indoboraxcom 

14. ln terms of Regulation 40(1) of Listing Regulations, as amended from time to time, transfer, 
transmission and transposition of securities shall be effected only in dematerialized form. In view of 
the same and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and avail various benefits of 
dematerialization, members are advised to dematerialize the shares held by them in physical form. 
Members may contact the MUFG lntimelndia Private Limited for any assistance in this regard. 

15. Members holding shares in electronic mode may note that bank particulars registered against their 
respective depository accounts will be used by the Company for payment of clividend. The Company or 
M/s. MUFG lntime India Private Limited cannot act on any request received directly from the members 
holding shares in electronic form for any change of bank particulars or bank mandates. Such changes 
are to be advised only to the Depository Participants (DP) bythe members. 

16. Members may please note that SEBI vide its circular SEBl/HOfMIRSD-RTAMB/P /CIR/2022/8 dated 
January 25, 2022 has mandated the listed companies to issue securities in dematerialized form only 
while processing service request viz. issue of duplicate securities certificate; claim from unclaimed 
suspense account; renewal/exchange of securities certificate; endorsement; sub-division/splitting of 
securities certificate; consolidation of securities certificates/folios; transmission and transposition. 
Accordingly, Members are requested to make service request by submitting a duly fiUed and signed 
Form ISR-4, the format ofwhich is available on the Company's website atwww.indoboraxcom and on 
the website oftbe Company's Registrar and Transfer Agents. MUFG lntime lnclia Private Limited at 
https://wcb.linkintime.co.in/KYC-downloads.html. It may be noted that the service request can be 
processed only after the folio is KYC compliant. 

17. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and SEBI Circular, the facility for making nomination is 
available fortbe Members is respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered 
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19. Members seeking any information with regard to the financial statements orany matter to be placed at 
the AGM arc requested to write to the Company at least seven (7] days before the AGM through email at 
complianccofficer@indoborax.com. The same will be replied bythe Company suitably. 

20. Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to intimate any change in their address or 
bank mandates to their DPs with whom they are maintaining their demataccounts. Members holding 
shares in physical mode are requested to advise any change in their address or bank mandates to the 
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, MUFG lntime India Private Limited. 

21. The Board of Directors have appointed CS Sandhya R. Malhotra, Partner of M/s. Manish Ghia & 
Associates, Company Secretaries, Mumbai has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e­ 
voting process in fair and transparent manner. 

The Scrutinizer will after the conclusion of the e-votingat the meeting. scrutinize tbe votes castatthe 
meeting and votes cast through remote e-voting, make a consolidated report and submit the same to 
the Chairman or any other person authorized by him. 

The result of the e-votingwill be declared within 2 working days of the conclusion of meeting and the 
same, along with consolidated scrutinizer's report will be placed on Company's website 
www.indoborax.com and on the website of MUFG lntime India Private Limited. The Company shall 
simultaneously forward the results to BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited, 
where the shares ofthe Company are listed. 

22. SEnl vide Circular Nos. SEBl/110/ OIAE/OlAE/OIAE_lAD-1/P /CIR/2023/131 dated July 31. 2023, and 
SEBl/110/0JAE/OIAE_ lAD-1/P /CIR/2023/135 dated August 4, 2023, read with Master Circular No. 
SEBl/HO/OIAE/OIAE_lAD-1/P/2023/145 dated July 31, 2023 (updated as on August 11, 2023), has 
established a Common Online Dispute Resolution Portal ("ODR Portal") for resolution of disputes 
arising in the Indian Securities Market. Pursuant to above-mentioned Circulars, post exhausting the 
option to resolve their grievances with the RTA/Company directly and through existing SCORES 
platform, the investor can initiate dispute resolution through the ODR Portal, 
https://smartodrJn/login. 

23. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and 
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred 

their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. lf a member 
desires to opt out or cancel the earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination, he/she may submit 
the same in Form No. lSR-3 or SH-14 as the case may be. Members may give request for registering PAN, 
KYC details or changes or updation thereof through Form No. lSR-1. The said forms can be downloaded 
from the Company's website www.indoborax.com. Members arc requested to submit the said details to 
their DP in case the shares are held by them in dematerialized form and to lndo Borax & Chemicals 
Limited in case the shares are held in physical form. 

18. Non Resident Indian members are requested to inform the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agent, immediately of any change in their residential status on return to India for permanent 
settlement, theirbankaccountmaintained in India with complete name,branch, account type, account 
number and address of the bank with pin code, I FSC and MICR Code, as applicable if such details were 
not furnished earlier. 
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from doing so.shall be eligibleto vote through e-Votingsystem during the AGM 

24. Pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBl/HO/MIRSD/MfRSD-PoD/P/CIR/2025/97 dated July 2, 2025, 
shareholders are informed that the special window for re-lodgement of transfer deeds of the Company 
will remain open till )auuary 06, 2026. This facility is available only if the transfer deeds were lodged 
prior to April 01, 2019, which were rejected and returned due to deficiencies in documentation. 
Shareholders wishing to avail this facility may contact the Company's RTA. 

25. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they 
will not be eligible to vote duringtheAGM. 

26. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may 
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least Five (5) days 
prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number /folio number, e-mail Id, 
mobile no. at complianceoftker@indoborax.com. Those shareholders who have registered 
themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the 
meeting. 

27. The instructions for shareholders fore-voting are as under: 

L The voting period begins on Monday, 22•• September, 2025 (9:00 am IST) and ends on Wednesday, 
24" September, 2025 (5:00 pm JST). During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares 
either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date Thursday, 18'" September, 
2025 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by MUfG lntime for 
voting thereafter. 

ii, Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Ruic 20 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of Listing Regulations (as amended), 
and MCA Circulars, the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the 
business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company bas entered into an agreement 
with MUfG lntime India Private Limited (MUfG lntime] for facilitating voting through electronic 
means, as the authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e­ 
votingaswell as the e-voti:ngsystem ontbe dateoftheAGM will be provided by MUFG In time 

iii. The Members can join theAGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time 
of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility 
of participation attheAGM through VC/OAVM will be made available toat least 1000 members on first 
come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more 
shareholding], Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the 
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on 
accountoffirstcome first served basis. 

iv. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose 
ofascertaining the quorum underScc.tion 103 of the Act. 

v. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and 
cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, in pursnance of Section 112 and 
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a) Visit URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 

b) Click on the "Login" tab available under 'Shareholder/Member· section. 

c) Enter User ID (i.e., your 16-digit dernat account no. held with NSDL), Password/OTP and a 

Post successful registration, user will be Sbarebolders/Memben<c.m also download 
NSDL Mobile App ·NSDI. Speede'" faallly by 

provided with Login ID and password. sannlog lbe QR code meotioned below 
Follow steps given above in points (a-d). .__,_.,_..,_._m1_ ess _ vo _0_•g_rucpe __ "•-"""-- _ _. 

METHOD 2 - NSOL e-votlng website 

Enter the last 4 digits of your bank account/ generate 'OTP' c) 

d) 

Section 113 of the Act, representatives of the members such as the Presidentoflndia or the Governor of 
a State or body corporate can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast thei rvotes through e-voting, 

vi. In line with the MCA Circular No. 17 /2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been 
uploaded on the website of the Company atwww.indoborax.com. The Notice can also be accessed from 
the website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindiacom and National Stock Exchange 
of India limited at www.nseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of MUFG 
lntime lndia Private Limited (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting faciUty and e-voting system 
duringtheAGM) i.e.hn:Jls:f/instavote.linkintime.co.in. 

REMOTE EVOTJNG INSTRUCTIONS: 

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBl/HO/CFD/PoD2/CfR/P /2023/120 dated July 11, 2023, Jndividual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained 
with Depositories and Depository Participants. 

Shareholders arc advised to update their mobile number and email Id correctly in their demat accounts to 
access remote e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in dematmode: 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL 

METHOD 1 • NSDL IDeAS facility 

Shareholders registered for IDeAS facility: 

a) Visit URL: https:/{eservices.nsdl.com and dick on "Beneficial Owner" icon under"IDcAS Login 
Section", 

b) Click on "Beneficial Owner· icon under ·IDcAS Login Section", 

c) Post successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added 
services section. Click on "Access toe-Voting" under e-Voting services. 

d) Click on "MUFG lnTime" or "evoting link displayed alongside Company's Name· and you will be 
redirected to lnstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

Shareholders not registered for IDeAS facility: 

a) To register, visit URL: https:f/eservices.nsdl.com and select "Register Online for !DcAS Portal" 
or click on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReg.jsP- 

b) Enter 8-character DP ID, 8-digit Client ID, Mobile no, Verification code & click on "Submit", 
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d) Post successful authentication, you will he re-directed to NSDL depository website wherein you 
will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on "Access to e-Voting" 
under a-Voting services. 

e) Click on "MUFG In'l'ime" or "evoting link displayed alongside Company's Name· and you will be 
redirected to lnstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-votingperiod 

METHOD 3 - NSDL OTP based login 

a) Visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp 

b) Enter your 8 - character DP ID, 8 - digit Client Id, PAN, Verification code and generate OTP. 

c) Enter the OTP received on your registered email fD/ mobile number and dick on login. 

d) Post successful authentication, you will be re-directed to NSDL depository website wherein you 
will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on "Access to c-Voting" 
undere-Votingservices. 

e) Click on "MUFG ln'I'ime" or "evonng link displayed alongside Company's Name" and you will be 
redirected to I nstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

Individual Shareholders registered with CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility 

METHOD 1 • CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility: 

Shareholders registered for Easi/ Easiest facility: 

a) Visit URL: hnps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Home/Login or www.cdslindia.com & 
click on New System Myeasi Tab. 

b) Enter existing username, Password & click on "Login". 

c) Post successful authentication, user will be able to see e-voting option. The evoting option will 
have links of e-voting service providers i.e., MUFG lnTime. Click on "MUFG InTime" or "evoting 
link displayed alongside Company's Name" and you will be redirected to lnstaVote website for 
casting the vote during tbe remote e-voting period 

Shareholders not registered for Easi/ Easiest facility: 

a) To register; visit URL: h~//web.cdslindiacom/myeasitokcn/Registration/EasiRegistration 
/ https://web.cdslindiacom/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiestRegistration 

b) Proceed with updating the required fields for registration. 
c) Post successful registration, user will be provided username and password. Follow steps given 

above in points [a-c], 

METHOD 2 • CDSL e-voting page 

a) Visit URL: https:{/www.cdslindia.com 

b) Gotoe-votingtab. 

c) Enter 16-digitDematAccountNumber(BO ID) and PAN No.and click on "Submit". 

d) System will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile and Email as recorded in 

Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
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register with details as under: 9 ( NSOI. ) IJKrll) ts llC~ Uf>tU (olnwcd by8dlall (bl IU . r~ lal?l4Sf.)and 11 d'.lglf Cheam lfl&1"!~8) 
1. User ID: Enter User ID v ~ 

( )( ) :> 

2. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent ~ CDSL User l.U tstfo l)lg)C ~ry llt 

1t • ( ) AccountNumber(PAN) (Shareholders ~ Shares bcld in Usa- IU u l!¥clll Na ~ 11.QIWI Ho.~ 
physical form w1tlldic-~11)' 

4. Click "Submit". [Horne page of e-voting will open. Follow the process given under "Steps to cast 
vote for Resolutions") 

Shareholders not registered for INSTAVOTE facility: 
STEP 1- Registration 

a) Visit URL: ~//instavote.linkintime.co.in & click on "Sign Up" under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab & 

STEP 1: LOGIN/ SIGNUPtolnstaVote: 

Shareholders registered for JNSTAVOTE facility: 

a) VisitURL:~L/instavote.linkintime.coJn &click on "Login" under'SIIARE II OLDER' tab. 
b) 

L 

2. 
3. 

Shareholders holding shares in physical mode / Non-lndividual Shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode as on the cut-off date fore-voting may register and vote on JnstaVote as under: 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in dematmode with Depository Participant 

Individual shareholders can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 
depository participant registered with NSDL / CDSL fore-voting facility. 

a) LogintoDPwebsite 

b) After Successful login, user shall navigate through "e-voting" option. 

c) Click on e-voting option, user will be redirected to NSDL / CDSL Depository website after 
successful authentication, wherein user can see e-votingfeature. 

d) Post successful authentication, click on "MUFG ln'I'ime" or "evoting link displayed alongside 
Company's Name· and you will be redirected to lnstaVote website for casting the vote during the 
remote e-vonng period. 

Login method for shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ Non-Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in de mat mode. 

DematAccount 

e) Post successful authentication, user will be able to see e-voting option. The evoting option will 
have links of e-voting service providers i.e., MUFG JnTime. Click on "MUFG ln'Fime" or "evoting 
link displayed alongside Company's Name· and you will be redirected to lnstaVote website for 
casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 
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who have not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the 
sequence number provided to you, ifapplicable. 

3. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB)/ Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with your 
DP /Company-in DD/MM jYYYYformat) 

4. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with your 
DP /Company. 
• Shareholders holding shares in NSDL form, shall provide 'D' aboveo 
• Shareholders holding shares in physical form but have not recorded 'C' and 'D', shall provide 
their Folio number in 'D' above 

5. Set the password ofyourchoice. 
(The password should contain minimum B characters, at least one special Character(!#$&*), at 
least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter). 

6. Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code. 
7. Cllck 'Submit" (You have now registered on lnstaVote). 

Post successful registration, click on "Login" under 'SllARE HOLDER' tab & follow steps given 
above in points(a-b). 

STEP 2: Stepsto cast vote for Resolutions through lnstaVote 
a) Post successful authentication and redirection to lnstaVote inbox page.you will be able ro see the 

"Notification for e-votmg", 
b) Select'View' icon. E-votingpage will appear. 
c) Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option 'Favour/ 

Against' (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, dick on the 'View Resolution' file link). 
d) After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour/ Against, click on 'Submit'. 
e] A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, dick on 'Yes', else to change 

your vote, click on 'No' and accordingly modifyyourvote. 
NOTE: Shareholders may click on "Vote as per Proxy Advisor's Recommendation· option and view proxy 
advisor recommendations for each resolution before casting vote. "Vote as per Proxy Advisor's 
Recommendation· option provides access to expert insights during the c-Voting process. Shareholders may 
modify their vote before final submission. 
Once you cast yourvote on the resolution.you will not be allowed to modify or change itsubsequendy. 
Guidelines for Institutional shareholders ("Custodian/ Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund") 
STEP 1- Custodian/ Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund Registration 

a) Visit URL: https: l/instavote.linkintime.co.in 
b) Click on "Sign Up" under"Custodian /Corporate Body /Mutual Fund" 
c) Fill up your entity details and submit the form. 
d) A declaration form and organization ID is generated and sent to the Primary contact person email 

ID (which is filledattbe time of sign up). The said form isto be signed by the Authorised Signatory, 
Director, Company Secretary of the entity &stamped and sent to instavote@linkintime.co.in. 

e) Thereafter; Login credentials (User ID; Organisation ID; Password) is sent to Primary contact 
person's email ID. (You have now registered on lnstaVote) 

STEP 2 - Investor Mapping 
a. Visit URL: https: l/instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with lnstaVote Login credentials. 
b. Click on "Investor Mapping" tab under the Menu Section 
c. Map the I nvestorwith the following details: 
1) Investor TD' - Investor ID for NSDL demataccountis B Character DP TD followed by B Digit Client 

ID i.e, IN00000012345678; Investor ID for CDSL demataccount is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 
2) Investor's Name- Enter Investor's Name as updated witb DP. 
3) Investor PAN' - EnteryourlO-digit PAN. 
4) Powerof Attorney' -Attach Board resolution or Powerof Attorney. 
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Loam tvoe Helodesk details 
Individual Shareholders Members facing <my technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk holding securities in demat 
mode with NSOL by sending request at evorlng@nsdl.co.in or call at: 022 · 4886 7000 

lndtvtdual Shareholders Members facing any recbnical issue In login can contact CDSL helpdesk 
holding securities In demai by sending request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll 
mode with CDSL free no. 1800 22 55 33 

NOTE: File Name for the Board resolution/ Power of Attorney shall be - DP ID and Client ID or 16 Digit 
Beneficiary ID. 

Further, Custodians and Mutual Funds shall also upload specimen signatures. 
d. Click on Submit button. (The investor is now mapped with the Custodian/ Corporate Body/ 

Mutual Fund Entity). The same can be viewed under theReport Section", 
STEP 3 - Steps to cast vote for Resolutions through lnstaVotc 
The corporate shareholder can vote by two methods, during the remote e-votingperiod, 
METHOD 1-VOTESENTRY 

a) Visit URL: https: //instavotc.linkintime.co.in and login with lnstaVotc Login credentials. 
b) Click on "Votes Entry" tab under the Menu section. 
c) Enter the "Event No." for which you wantto cast vote. 

Event No. can be viewed on the home pageoflnstaVotc under "On-going Events", 
dJ Enter"16-digitDematAccountNo.". 
e) Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option 'Favour Z 

Against' (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the 'View Resolution' file Iink]. 
After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour/ Against, click on 'Submit'. 

f) A confirmation hoxwill be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on 'Yes', else to change 
yourvote,clickon 'No' and acccrdrnglymodtfyyourvote, 
(Once you cast your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change it 
subsequently). 

METHOD2-VOTESUPLOAD 
a] Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with lnstaVote Login credentials. 
b) After successful login, you will sec "Notilication fore-voting". 
c) Selecr'Vtew" icon for "Company's Name/ Event number", 
d) E-votingpagewillappear. 
e) Download sample vote file from "Download Sample Vote File" tab. 
f) Cast your vote by selecting your desired option 'Favour / Against' in the sample vote file and 

upload the same under=Upload Vote file" option. 
g) Click on 'Submit'. 'Data uploaded successfully' message will be displayed. 

(Once you cast your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change it 
subsequently). 

Hclpdcsk: 
Shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode: 
Shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode facing any technical issue in login may contact INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending a request at 
enotices@in.mpms.mufg.com or contact on: -Tel: 022-4918 6000. 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in de mat mode: 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective helpdesk for any 
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e., NSDLand CDSL. 

(il INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED 



• Ouringthevoting period, shareholders/ members can login any number oftime till they have voted 
on the rcsolution(s) for a particularEvent", 

• It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confidential. 

• For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting 
on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

In case shareholders have a valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail 
address. Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by providing information about the 
particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI etc. The password should contain a 
minimum of 8 characters, at least one special character (!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one 
alphabetand at least one capital letter. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has forgotten the 
password: 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode have forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or 
Password or both, then the Shareholders are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option 
available atabove mentioned depository/ depository participants website. 

General Instructions-Shareholders 

• Click on 'Login' under"Custodian /Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund" tab 

• Click"forgot password?" 

• Enter User ID, Organization ID and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCllA ). 

• Clickon "SUBMIT". 

In case Custodian/ Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund has forgotten the USER fD [Login ID] or Password or 
both then the shareholder can use the "Forgot Password" option available on: 
https://instavotc.linkintime.co.in 

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode have forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password or both then the shareholder can use the 
"Forgot Password" option available on: https: //instavote.linkintime.co.in 

• Click on "Login"under'SHARE II OLDER' tab. 

• Click"forgotpassword?" 

• Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCI IA). 

• Click on "SUBMIT". 

Forgot Password: 

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode: 
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ln terms of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) General Circular No. 09/2024 dated 19.09.2024, the 
Companies can conduct their AG Ms/ EGMs on or before 30 September 2025 by means of Video Conference 
(VC) or other audio-visual means (OAVM). 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id correctly in their demat accounts to 
access lnstaMeet facility. 

Login method for shareholders to attend the General Meeting through I nstaMeet: 
a. Visit URL: https://instameet.in.mpms.mufg.com&clickon "Login". 

b. Select the "Company Name· and register with your following details: 

cl. Select Check Box- DematAccount No./ Folio No./ PAN 

• Shareholders holding shares in NSDL/ CDS[, demat account shall select check box - Demat 
Account No.and enter the 16-digitdemataccount number. 

• Shareholders holding shares in physical form shall select check box- Folio No. and enter the Folio 
Number registered with the company. 

• Shareholders shall select check box- PAN and cnterlO-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN). 
Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company 
shall use the sequence number provided by MUFG I ntime, ifapplicable. 

• Mobile No: Mobile No. as updated with DP is displayed automatically. Shareholders who have not 
updated their Mobile No with the DP shall enter the mobile no. 

• Email ID: Email ld as updated with DP is displayed automatically. Shareholders who have not 
updated their Mobile No with the DP shall enter the mobile no, 

e) Click "Go to Meeting" You are now registered for lnstaMeet, and your attendance is marked for 
the meeting. 

Instructions for shareholders to Speak during the General Meeting through lnstaMcet: 

a) Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their request 5 days in 
advance with the company on the email id complianceofficer@indoborax.com 

b) Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by 
the company. 

c) Shareholders will receive "speaking serial number· once they mark attendance for the meeting. 
Please remember speaking serial number and startyour conversation with panellist by switching 
on video mode and audio ofyourdevice. 

Other shareholder who bas not registered as "Speaker Shareholder· may still ask questions to the 
panellist via active chat-board during the meeting 

*Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will announce the 
name and serial number for speaking. 

Instructions for Shareholders to Vote during the General Meeting through lnstaMeet: 

Once the electronic voting is activated during the meeting. shareholders who have not exercised their vote 
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Note: 

Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the General Meetingthrough lnstaMcet facility and have not 
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remotee-Votingand are otherwise not barred from doingso,shall 
be eligible to vote through e-Votingfacility during the meeting. 

Shareholders/ Members who have voted through Remotee-Voting prior to the General Meeting will be eligible 
to attend/ participate in the General Meeting through lnstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote 
again during the meeting. 

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through 
broadband for better experience. 

Shareholders/ Members are required to use lntcmetwith a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) 
toavoidanydisturbanceduringthemeeting. 

Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to Ouctuation in their network It is 
therefore recommended to use stable Wl-Fl or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

Hclpdcsk: 

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact lNSTAMEET helpdesk by sending a request at 
instameet@in.mpms.mufg.comorcontacton:-Tel:022-4918 6000 / 4918 6175. 

through the remotee-voting can cast the vote as under: 

a) On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting"Castyourvote" 

b) Enter your 16-digit De mat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile 
number/ registered email Id) received during registration for lnstaMITET 

c) Click on 'Submit'. 

d) After successful login, you will see "Resolution Description· and against the same the option 
"Favour/ Against" for voting. 

e) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. "Favour/ Against" as desired. Enter the number 
of shares (which represents no. ofvotcs) as on the cut-off date under 'Favour/ Against'. 

f) After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/ Against as desired and you have decided to 
vote, click on "Save" A confirmation box will be ctisplayed. Jr you wish to confirm your vote, click 
on "Confirm", else to change your vote, click on "Back" and accordingly modify your vote. Once you 
confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote 
subsequently. 
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ln tcnns of the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial. Personnel) Rules, 2014, and Regulation 24A of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI LODR Regulations"), the 
Company is required to obtain a Secretarial Audit Report from a Practicing Company Secretary for every 
financial year. 

Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2024, 
which came into effect on December 13, 2024, significant amendments were introduced to the SEBI LODR 
Regulations, including Regulation 24A( lC), which mandates that listed entities appoint or re-appoint a Peer 
Reviewed Secretarial Auditor for a continuous term, subject to approval by the shareholders at the Annual 
General Meeting (AGM). thereby aligning tho governance oversight framework with that of statutory auditors. 

In compliance with these provisions and to ensure continuity and consistency in the Secretarial Audit process, 
the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors at their respective meetings held on 13" May, 2025 have 
approved and recommended the appointment of M/s. Prasad Parah & Associates, Company Secretaries, 
Mumbai, Peer Reviewed Firm of Practicing Company Secretary (Finn Registration No.: 10235, and Peer 
Review No.: PR2189 /2022 as Secretarial Auditors of the Company fora term of upto 5 (Five) consecutive years 
commencing from FY 2025-26 till FY 2029-30 to conduct Secretarial Audit and issue the Secretarial Audit 
Reports oftheCompanyforthesaid period. 

The details required to be disclosed as per the provisions of Regulation 36(5) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 
2015 arc as under: 

As required under section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"), the following explanatory statement sets 
out all material facts relating to the business under Item nos. 4 to 5 of the accompanying Notice: 

ltemNo.4 

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and 
remuneration of M/s. V. B. Modi & Associates, Cost Accountants (Finn Registration No. 004861, Membership 
No. 49992) as Cost Auditors of the Company, to conduct the audit of the cost records relating to a chemical 
products &other chemicals of the Company for the financial year ending 31" March, 2026 with audit fees of Rs. 
56,000/- (Rupees Fifty Six Thousand Only) plus goods and service tax as applicable and reimbursement of 
actual expenses as incurred by them in connection with the aforesaid audit 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act. 2013 read with the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors as recommended by the Audit 
Committee and approved by the Board ofDircctors, has to be ratified by the members of the Company. 

Accordingly, consentofthe members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item no. 4 of the 
Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors. 

None of the Director and Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management Personnel of the company or their 
relatives are in any way financially or otherwise, concerned or interested, in the said resolution, except to the 
extcntoftheirshareholding. ifany, in the Company. 

ltemNo.5 

S'li\TEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 (1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ("Act") 
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Upto Rs. 1,00,000/· (Rupees One Lakhs only) plus 
applicable taxes, reimbursement of travelling and 
other out of pocket expenses incurred in connection 
with the Secretarial Audit for Financial Year ending 
March 31, 2026 and for subsequent year(s) of their 
term, such fee as may be decided by the Board of 
Directors of the Company in consultation with the 
Secretarial Auditors on recommendation of the Audit 
Committee. 

To be appointed for the period of upto 5 (Five) 
consecutive from FY 2025-26 till FY 2029-30 to 
conduct Secretarial Audit and issue the Secretarial 
Audit Reoorts of the Comoanv for the said neriod. 

M/s. Prasad Parab & Associates, is a firm of Company 
Secretaries in Practice having Firm Registration No. 
10235 and holding Peer Review Certificate No. PR 
2189/2022 issued by the Peer Review Board of the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

Accordingly, the recommendation for their 
appointment as Secretarial Auditor is based on their 
proven track record and ability to deliver quality 
Secretarial Audit services to companies of comparable 
size and comolexitv. 

The appointment of M/s. Prasad Parab & Associates, as 
the Secretarial Auditor of the Company is being 
recommended based on their compliance with the 
eligibility criteria and qualifications as prescribed 
under the Companles Act, 2013 read with Rules made 
thereunder, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
relevant notifications and circulars by ICSI and SEBI 
from time to time in this regard. The Audit Committee 
and Board has recommended their appointment taking 
into account the credentials of the firm, including the 
qualifications and experience of proprietor, its 
capability and resources, past experience in conducting 
Secretarial Audits, and an independent assessment of 
the quality of audit work previously undertaken by 
them. 

M/s. Prasad Parab & Associates is a firm of Company 
Secretaries, based in Mumbai, with over one decade of 
experience in corporate compliance and governance. 
The firm has conducted secretarial audits for listed and 
unlisted entities. 

The Board has recommended the appointment of M/s 
Prasad Parah & Associates, Peer Reviewed Firm o 
Pracucina Comoanv Secretarv 

Details 

Proposed Fees payable 

Terms of Appointment 

Details relating to Credentials of 
Secretarial Auditor 

Basis of Recommendation for 
appointment 

Proposed Secretarial Auditors 

Particulars 

5. 

4. 

3. 

2. 

l. 

Sr. 
No. 
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Place: Mumbai 
Date: 12,. Angust, 2025 
Registered Office: 
302, Link Rose, Linking Road, 
Santacruz (West), Mumbai - 400054 
Tel. No.: +91 22 26489142 
Fax No.: +91 22 26489143 
E-mail: complianceofficer@indoborax.com 
Website: www.indoborax.com 
Corporate Identity Number: L24100Mll1980PLC023177 

Pravi n Chavan 
Company Secretary 

Membership No. 16857 

By Order of the Board 
For lndo Borax & Chemicals Ltd 

M/s. Prasad Parab & Associates have given their consent to act as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company and 
have confirmed that their appointment, if made, shall he within the prescribed limits under the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Rules made thereunder and the SEBI Listing Regulations. They have also confirmed that 
they are not disqualified from being appointed as Secretarial Auditors in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI Listing Regulations, and the relevant notifications and circulars 
issued by SEBI and JCS! from time to time. 

The Board recommends the resolutions at item No, 5 of this Notice for approval by the Shareholders by wayof 
Ordinary Resolution. 

None of the Director and Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management Personnel of the company or their 
relatives arc in any way financially or otherwise, concerned or interested, in the said resolution, except to the 
extent of their shareholding. if any; in the Company. 
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Name of the Director Mr. Saial Jain 
DIN 00314855 
Date of birth and aae September s. 1967 (57 years) 
Date of first Appointment on the May 26, 2000 
Roa rd 
Desinnation Manaein2 Director and CFO 
Qualification B.Com 
Experience and Expertise in specific Mr. Sajal Jain, is a commerce graduate with over 
functional areas thirty-five years of experience in the Boric Acid 

Industry. He has been associated with the Company 
since 1990. He is responsible for managing the 
affairs of the company procurement of import of 
material, operational functions of plant, accounts, 
finance and administration. 

Terms and Conditions of Reappointed under section 152(6) of the 
Appointment or Re-appointment Companies Act. 2013 
Remuneration sought to be paid There is no change in the remuneration. The 

remuneration is as per members resolution passed 
in Annual General Meeting held on 19'" August, 
2023 

Number of Meetings of the Board 6 (Six) 
attended during the year 2024-25 
Shareholding in the Company 84,55.390 (26.35%) 
(Equity Shares of Re. l/· each) as at 
31/03/2025 
List of Directorships in other lndoborax Infrastructure Private Limited 
Companies lndo Perlire Private Limited 

Listed entities from which he has Nil 
resigned as Di rector in past 3 years 

List of Chairmanship or Chairmanship: NIL 
membership of various Committees Member Ship: Member of Audit Committee and 
in listed company and others Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. 
Companies 
Listed entities from which the NIL 
Director has resigned in the past 
three vears 
Relationship with other Directors. None of the Directors, Managers and KMPs of the 
Managers and KMPs of the Company Company are mter-se related to Mr. Sajal Jain 

ln pursuance of the provisions of Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and SS-2 issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries ofl ndia, details ofDirector seeking appointment/re-appointment are as foUows: 
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The financial year 2024-25 has shown a decrease in sales volume as compared to previous financial year. On 
standalone basis, sales for the financial year 2024-25 stood at Rs. 17,526.11 lakhs, lower by 8.39% over the 
previous year sales ofRs. 19,130.30 Lakhs. Earnings before tax and depreciation was Rs. 6,046.68 lakhs, which 
was higher by 12.47% over EBTD of Rs. 5,376.12 Lakhs in 2023-24. The profit after tax for the year was Rs. 
4,lBB.20 lakhs, which was higherby9.03% over the PAT of Rs. 3,B41.241akhsin 2023-24. 

On consolidated basis, sales for the financial year 2024-25 stood at Rs. 17,526.11 lakhs, lower by 8.39% over 
the previous year of Rs. 19,130.30 lakhs. Earnings before tax and depreciation was Rs. 6,130.01 lakhs, which 

No amountwas transferred to any reserves during the financial year underreview. 

S'Ji\TEOFCOMPANYAFFAIRS 

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year ended 31" March, 2025 

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

The Board has, subject to the approval of Members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. recommended a 
dividend@ Re. 1/- per equity share of face value of Re. 1/- per equity share (i.e. 100%) for the year ended 
Jl~March,2025 

CBANGEINTRENATUREOFBUSINESS 

DIVIDEND 

Standalone Consolidated 
Particulars 31-3-2025 31-3-2024 31-3-2025 31-3-2024 

Revenue from operations 17,526.11 19,130.30 17,256.11 19.130.30 
Other Income 1,475.08 1.101.39 1,559.26 l,177.49 
Total Income 19.001.19 20,231.69 19085.37 20,307.79 
Profit before Tax 5,782.80 5,147.79 5,866.13 5,223.32 
Provision for Tax 1,594.60 1,306.55 1,615.60 1,325.56 
Profit for the vear 4,188.20 3,841.24 4,250.53 3,897.76 
Other Comprehensive Income for 272.70 258.93 272.70 258.93 
the vear 
Total Comprehenstve Income for the 4,460.90 4,100.17 4,523.23 4,156.69 
vear 
Retained earnings-opening 26,726.23 22,946.96 26,807.37 22,971.58 
balance 
Addl(Lessl: 
Profit for the year 4,460.90 4,100.17 4,523.23 4.156.69 
Dividend uaid 1320.90) 1320.90) 1320.90) 1320.90) 
Retained earnings - closing 30,866.23 26,726.23 31,009.70 26,807.37 
balance 

The performance of the Company for the financial year ended 31" March, 2025 is summarized below: 

To The Members offndo Borax & Chemicals Ltd. 

Your Directors present 44"'(Forty Fourth) Annual Report of lndo Borax & Chemicals Limited along with the 
summary of standalone and consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31. March, 2025. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

DIRECTORS' REPORT 
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The Board of Directors met Six (6) times during FY 2024-25. In accordance with Section 175 oftbe Act, one 

The company has adopted and implemented policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business. The framework has been designed to provide with the size, scale and complexity of its 
operations, safeguarding its assets, complying with the application laws, prevention and detection of fraud, 
accurate and completeness of accounting records and timely preparation offinancial disclosures. More details 
in respect of the internal financial control and their adequacy are included in the Management Discussion & 
Analysis, which isa part of this report. 

NUMBER OF MEETING OF THE BOARD 

The consolidated financial statements of the company and its subsidiary, which form part of Annual Report, 
have been prepared in accordance with Section 129(3) of the Act The consolidated financial statements for the 
year ended 31" March, 2025, along with report of the auditors thereon, are attached herewith. 

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act. the separate audited financial statements of the 
subsidiary are available on the website of the company https://www.indoborax.com/Subsidiary­ 
Company.php 

SHARE CAPITAL OFTIIE COMPANY 

Authorized Share Capital: 

During the year under review, there was no change in the Authorized Share Capital of the Company. The 
Authorized Share Capital of the Company as on 31"March, 2025 stood at Rs. 6,00,00,000 (Rupees Six Crores 
Only) divided into 6,00,00,000 (Six Crores) equity shares ofRe.1/- (Rupee One Only) each. 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital: 

During the year under review, the paid-up equity share capital of the company stood at Rs. 3,20, 90,000 (Three 
Crore Twenty Lakhs Ninety Thousand Only) divided into 3,20,90,000 (Three Crore Twenty Lakhs Ninety 
Thousand Only) cquitysharesofRe.1/- (Rupee One Only) each. 

INTERNALFINANCIALCONTROLANDTHEIRADEQUACY 

Company has only one wholly owned subsidiary, lndoborax Infrastructure Private Limited. ft has no associate 
companies or joint ventures companies within the meaning of Section 2( 6) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act'). 
There has been no material change in the nature ofbusiness of the subsidiary during the year. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing the salient features of the 
financial statements of the Company's subsidiary in Form AOC-1 is attached to the financial statements of the 
Company. 

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the financial statements of the Company, 
consolidated financial statements, along with the relevant documents and separate audited financial 
statements in respect of the subsidiary, are available on the Company's website at 
https://www:indoborax.com/Subsidiary-Company.php 

CONSOLIDATED FrNANCIALSTATEMENTS 

was higher by 12.44 % over EBTD of Rs. 5451.65 Lakhs in 2023-24. The profit after tax for the year was Rs. 
4,250.53 lakhs, which was higher by 9.05% over the PATofRs. 3,897. 76 lakhs in 2023-24. 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 
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Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of the Act, the board of directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, 
confirm that 

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts; the applicable accounting standards have been 
followed and there are no material departures. 

(ii) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudentso as to give true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company at tbe end offinancial year and of the profit of the Company for 
that period. 

A) Composition of Audit Committee 

The Board has constituted an Audit Committee under the applicable provisions of the Act 
and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
("Listing Regulations"). 

Details of the Committee along with their charters, composition and meetings held during 
the year are given in the Corporate Governance Reportand it forms part of this Report. 

B) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The Board has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee under the 
applicable provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
Details of the Committee along with their charters, composition and meetings held during 
the year are given in the Corporate Governance Reportand it forms a partofthis Report. 

C) Stakeholders' Relationship Committee 

The Board has constituted a Stakeholders' Relationship Committee under the applicable 
provisions of the Act and the SE Bl Listing Regulations. 

Details of the Committee along with their charters, composition and meetings held during 
the year are given in the Corporate Governance Reportand it forms a part of this Report. 

0) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

Tbe Board has a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee under the applicable 
provisions of the Act. 

Details of the Committee along with their charters, composition and meetings held during 
the year are given in the Corporate Governance Reportand it forms a partofthis Report 

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

COMMJ'ITEESOFTHEBOARD 

resolution was passed by circulation on Monday, 24" February. 2025. The intervening gap between the two 
board meetings was within the period prescribed under tbe Act. In terms of the requirement of Secretarial 
Standard-I on board meetings (SS-1) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (lCSI) on tbe 
meetings of the Board of Directors, it is confirmed that the Company has complied with applicable secretarial 
standard The details of the board meeting and attendance of the Directors are provided in the Corporate 
Governance Report is annexed herewith and forms a part of this Report. 
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Your Board of Directors comprises a balanced mix of Executive and Non-Executive Directors, including a 
women Director with rich experience and expertise across range of fields such as corporate finance, 
accounting. auditing. strategic management, legal, and general management. Except lndependentDirectors all 
other directors are liable to retire by rotation as per the provisions oftheAct. 

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("NRC") and in terms of the 
provisions of the Act, the Company has appointed Mrs. Minakshi Mittal, as Independent Directors of the 
Company with effect from 1" June, 2024. ln the opinion ofBoard, Mrs. Minakshi Mittal is person of integrity and 
possesses the relevant experience and expertise. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 the Companies Act, 
2013, the Independent Directors have submitted declarations that each of them meets the criteria of 
independence prescribed under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 
16(1) (b) of SEBI Listing Regulations. There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as 
independent directors of the Company. 

During the year Mrs. Sreelekha Jain, Non-executive Director of the company; has given her resignation due to 
her preoccupation. She ceased to be director of the Company with effect from end of the business hours from 
9,. December, 2024. The Board places on record its appreciation for her invaluable contribution and guidance. 

At the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Mr. Sajal Jain, Managing Director, (D!N:00314855) of the Company is 
liable to retire by rotation and being eligible to offer himself for re-appointment as per Section 152(6) of the 
Act. A resolution seeking shareholder's approval for his re-appointment along with other required details 
forms part of the notice of AGM. 

During the year under review, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or 
transaction with the companyotherthansittingfees. 

Pursuantto provisions of section 203 of the Act, Mr. Sajal Jain, Managing Director & ChiefFinancial Officer, Mr. 
Govind Parmar, Executive Director, Mr. Saumya Jain, Chief Executive and Mr. Pravin Chavan, Company 
Secretary, arc the key managerial personnel of the Company. 

(iii) they have taken proper and sufficientcareforthe maintenance ofadequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities. 

(iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

(v) they have laid down internal financial controls to be foUowed by the Company and such 
internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively. 

(vi) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

Based on the frameworkofinternal financial controls and compliance system established and maintained by 
the Company; the work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors includingauditofinternal 
financial control over the financial reporting by the statutory auditors and reviews performed by the 
management and the audit committee, the board is of the opinion that the company's internal financial 
controls were adequate and effective during the financial year 2024-25. 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
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The Board of Directors of the Company has formed a Risk Management Committee to frame, implement and 
monitor risk management plan for the Company. The committee is responsible for monitoring the review of 
the risk management plan and ensuring its effectiveness. The Audit committee has additional oversight in 
financial risk and controls. The major risk identified by the businesses and functions are systematically 

The Company bas whistle blower policy for Directors and employees to report their genuine concerns 
regarding unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct and 
Ethics Policy. The said mechanism also provides for adequate safeguard against victimization of persons who 
use such mechanism and makes provision for direct access to the chairman of the Audit Committee in the 
appropriate or exceptional cases. We affirm that no employee of the company was denied access to the Audit 
Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy is available on the website of the Company at 
!ttt!!.J./www.indoborax_com/Whistel-Blowcr-Policy.Jl.hl! 
RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Company bas been carrying out Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities under the applicable 
provisions of Section 135 read with Schedule VII of the Act, as amended from time to time and the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The Company has adopted a CSR Policy which provides a 
broad framework with regard to implementation of CSR activities carried out by the Company. The CSR Policy 
formulated by the Company is available on the Company's website at hml.;L/www.indoborax_com/CSR­ 
Policy.php 
The Annual Report on CSR, as required under Sections 134 and 135 of the Act read with Rule 8 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and Rule9 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014, is annexed herewith as Annexure- Tand forms part of this Report. 

VIGIL MECHANISM 

The board of directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board committees and 
individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations. 
The performance of the Board was evaluated after seeking input from all the directors on the basis of criteria 
such as board composition and structure, effectiveness of board process, information and functioning etc. The 
performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking input from committee members on 
the basis of criteria such as composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings etc. 
lo separate meetingoflndependent Directors, performance of the non-independentdirectors, performance of 
the board as a whole and the Chairman was evaluated, taking into account the views of the executive directors 
and non-executive directors. 

The board and nomination and remuneration committee reviewed the performance of the individual directors 
on the basis of criteria such as contribution of the individual director to the board and committee meetings 
preparedness on the issues to be discussed meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in the 
meeting, etc. 
The evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board exdudingthe Director being 
evaluated and that of the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors in their 
separate meeting held on 25~ May. 2024 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

BOARD EVALUATION 
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Company has not paid any remuneration to non-executive directors except sitting foes. 

b) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of the employees in the financial year: 
4.01 percent 

c) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company: 106 
d) During the course of the year; the total increase in salaries is approximately 1.76 percent, after 

accounting promotions and other event-based compensation revisions. 

The managerial remuneration and commission are in accordance with the resolution passed 
by the members. The commission is entirely performance-linked and determined based on the 
Company's profits. During the year; an increase in profit resulted in a corresponding rise in the 
commission payable. For the year under review, the commission was paid solely to the 
Managing Director; as per the special resolution passed by the members at the AGM held on 
August 19, 2023. Overall, managerial remuneration increased by 12.40% compared to the 
previous year; reflecting-the Company's enhanced profitability and performance. 

Name of the Directors Ratio of median % increase ln 
remuneration remuneration 

in the financial 
vear 

Mr. Sajal Jain, Managing Director & Chief Financial 169.8(> 12.59 
Officer 
Mr. Govind Parmar, Executive Director 5.50 6.83 
Mr. Pravin Chavan, Comoanv Secretary 12.95 8.01 

The information required under Section 197 of the Act read with Rule S (1) oftbe Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration ofManagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, arc given below: 

a) The ratio ofthe remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of 
the Company and percentage increase in remuneration of each Director; ChiefFinancial Officer 
and Company Secretary in the financial year: 

address through mitigating actions on continuing basis. Development and implemntation of risk management 
policy has been covered in the Management Discussion and Analysis, which forms part of this report. 
ENVIRONMENTHEALTHAND SAFETY, PROTECTION OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
The Company is conscious of the importance of environmentally clean and safe operations. Company conducts 
its operations in such manner to ensure safety of all concerned compliances of environmental regulations and 
preservation of natural resources. 
The company has a policy for prevention of Sexual harassment of women at workplace and complied with the 
provisions relating to tbe constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal] Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. The 
Company as an equal employment opportunity provides and is committed to creating a healthy working 
environment that enables employees to work without fearofprejudice,gender bias and sexual harassment 
During the year company i) has not received any complaints, ii} no any complaint disposed during the year iii) 
no complaint pending at the end of year under Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. There have been no complaints in other areas. 

PARTICUALRS OF EMPLOYEES 
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The Company had applied fordelistingof its shares from The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd in 2005-06, however. 
till date, the confirmation ofdelisting has not been received from Exchange. Hence, the company has once again 
approached CSE and initiated the procedure of delisting of shares from the exchange. 

The Company's policy on directors' appointments and remuneration and other matters provided in Section 
178(3) of the Act, has been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of the Directors 
Report. 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS 
The particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments made by the Company, falltng under the purview of 
Section 186 oftheAct, are given in the notes to the Financial Statements, as included in this Annual Report. 
Loan given to the Radius Estate Projects Private Limited, (formerly known as Vishwaroop Realtors Plivate 
Limited) is in the process of corporate insolvency process under The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 
(!BC). The company has filed its claim as financial creditors as per Regulation 8 of the !BC for the outstanding 
amount of Rs. 509.04 Lakhs. The company is waiting for the outcome from National Company Law Tribunal 
(NCLT). Duringtheyearcompany bas not provided interest due to uncertainty in reali7.ationofthesaid debt. 

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
Your Company has adopted a policy on Related Party Transactions under Regulation 23(1) of SEBI Listing 
Regulations, which is available on the website of yourCompanyatwww.indoborax.com 
All contracts or arrangements or transactions entered during the year with related parties were on arm's­ 
length basis and in the ordinary course of business and in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act 
and the SEBI Listing Regulations. None of the contract or arrangements or transaction with any of the related 
parties was in conflict with the interest of the Company. 
Since all the transactions with related parties during the year were on arm's length basis and in the ordinary 
course of business, the disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act 
in Form AOC-2 is not applicable for F.Y. 2024-25. However, the company is voluntarily giving the details 
pertaining to related party transactions which are not material but are on arm's length basis in AOC-2 as 
Annexurc-'Il' and same forms part ofthis report. 
In terms of Regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, your Company submits details of related party 
transactions on a consolidated basis as per the specified format to the stock exchanges on a half-yearly basis. 

DELlSTING OF SECURITIES 

e) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: The 
Companyaffirms remuneration isas per the remuneration policy of the company. 

f) The statement containing names of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and 
particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(2) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is 
provided in annexure forming part of this report. Further. the report and the accounts are 
beingsentto the members excludi ngthe aforesaid annexure. In terms of section 136 of the Act, 
the said annexure is open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company. Any 
shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary. 

POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAD..s: 
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DEPOSITS FROM PUBLIC 
The Company has not accepted or renewed any deposit as covered under Section 73 and Section 76 of the 
Act from its members or public or others during FY 2024-25. Further; no amount on account of principal or 
interest on deposits from the public was outstanding as on 31 March 2025. 
Note: Disclosure pursuant to Rule 2(l}(c}(viii} of Companies (Acceptance of Deposits} Rules, 2014: No 
declaration is required as the Company has not received any monies from the Directors during the financial 
year. 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
The Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance aims to attain the highest level of transparency and 
accountability towards safeguarding and adding value to the interests of various stakeholders. The Company 
has been committed to maintain the highest standards of ethics and governance, resulting in enhanced 
transparency for the overall benefit ofall the stakeholders. The Company has implemented all the stipulations 
as specified in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2015 and the 
requirements set out by Securities Exchange Board of India ('SEBI'}. The Company strives to undertake best 
Corporate Governance practices for enhancing and meeting stakeholders' expectations while continuing to 
comply with the mandatory provisions of Corporate Governance under the applicable framework of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
Pursuant to Regulation 34(3} read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements] Regulations, 2015, the applicable Regulations as issued by SEBI and as amended from time to 
time, a Report on Corporate Governance along with a Certificate from Prasad Parah & Associates, regarding 
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is annexed herewith as Annexurc-·m· respectively and 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

Inflow - - 
Outflow 9626.55 8239.83 

The Company has not imported any new technology. 
C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

During the financial year under review, the total Foreign Exchange Inflow and Outflow during the 
year under review is as follows: 

The Company continues to lay special emphasis 
on conservation of energy and has taken 
measures like regular monitoring of 
consumption, reduction of transmission 
losses and up to date maintenance of systems. 

A. Conservation of Energy 
i} Energy Conservation Measures taken 
ii) Utilization of alternate sources of energy 
iii} Capital Investment on energy conservation 

Equipment. 
B. Technology Absorption 

L Research & Development 
The Company has no specific Research & Development Department. However; in-house quality 
control facilities are utilized for product and process improvement and updation. 

2. Technology Absorption 

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO 
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forms a part of this Report. 
The certification by ChiefExecutive Officer ('CEO') and Chiefl'inancial Officer ('CFO') as per Regulation 17(8) 
ofSEBI (ListingObUgationand Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is annexed berewithasAnnexurc 
-1V' and forms a part of this Report 
EXTRACTOFANNUALRETURN 
Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134{3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return for the financial year 
ended 31a March, 2025, is available on the Company's website viz. https://www.indoborax.com/Annual­ 
Report.php 
This Annual Return is subject to changes/ alterations/ modifications as may be required subsequent to the 
adoption of the Di rectors' Report by the shareholders at the ensuing AGM and on receipt of Certificate from a 
Practicing Company Secretary which the shareholders agree. A copy of the final Annual Return shall be filed 
with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA') and the same shall be furnished on the website of the Company. 
DISCWSUREREQUJREMENTS 
As per SEBI Listing Regulations, the Corporate Governance Report with the Auditors Certificate thereon, and 
the Management Discussion and Analysis are attached, which form part of this Report. 
The Company has devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial 
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems are adequate and 
operating effectively. 
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF 
REPORT 
There is no material change and/or commitment held between the end of the financial year and the date of 
report affecting the financial position ofthe Company. 
THE DETAU.S OF APPLICATION MADE /PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND 
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 
The Company has not made any application during the year, and no proceeding is pending under insolvency & 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC). 
THEDETAJLSOFONETIMESETTLEMENT{VALUATIONWITHBANKORFINANCIALINSTITUTION 
No one-time settlement/valuation was done while taking loan from the Bank or Financial Institution 
ANY SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS 
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE 
During the financial year there was no such significant material orders passed by the regulators or courts or 
tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company's operations in future. 
Further, no application made, or any proceedings were pending against the Company under Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year under review. 
DECLARATION BYINDEPENDENTDIRECTORS 
The Declaration of Independence from all Independent Directors as stipulated under Section 149(7) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, confirming that they meet the 
criteria ofindependencehave been received. 
STATEMENT REGARDING INTEGRITY, EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors possess excellent rating in respect of clear sense of value 
and integrity and have requisite expertise and experience in their respective fields. 
AU the Independent Directors of the Company arc enrolled with Data Bank maintained by Indian Institute of 
Corporate Affairs. As per the provisions of section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 read rule 6 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Independent Directors of the Company are 
exempted from undergoing the online proficiency self-assessment test conduct by the Institute, except those 
who are required to undergo the test had passed the online proficiency self-assessment test within the 
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By order of the Board of Directors 
For lndo Borax & Chemicals Limited 

Sajal Jain 
Managing Director 

DIN: 00314855 
Place: Mumbai, 
Date: May 13, 2025 

prescribed time. 
REPORTINGOFFRAUDSBY AUDITORS 
During the year under review, the Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud, as specified under 
Section 143(12) oftbe ActtotbeAuditCommittee 
STATUTORY AUDITORS 
Members of the Company had appointed M/s. Bohra & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 
136492W) as statutory auditors of the Company for a term of5 (five) consecutive years from conclusion of 41 • 
Annual General Meeting until conclusion of 46~ Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2027. Bohra & 
Co. have confirmed that they are not disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the Company. 
SECRETARIAL AUDITORS 
Prasad Parab & Associates, Company Secretaries, were appointed as Secretarial Auditors, to conduct 
secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year 2024-25. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial 
year ended 31~March, 2025 is annexed herewith markedasAnnexure Ill to this Report. 
Further, as per the provisions ofRegulation 24A oftbe SEBI Listing Regulations, the board in their meeting held 
on 13"'May, 2025,subjectto the approval of the members, appointed M/s. Prasad Parab&Associates, Company 
Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for 5 consecutive financial year effective from the financial 
year2025-26. 
COMMENTS OF AUDITOR'SREPORT AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
The Auditor's report to the shareholders on the audited standalone and consolidated financial statements for 
the year ended 31" March, 2025 does not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks, except 
emphasis of matter pertaining to one party to whom company has given Inter Corporate Deposit, is in the 
process of insolvency process and company had already filed a claim as a financial creditor as per regulation 8 
of !BC fortbe said outstanding amount. The company is waiting for the outcome of the National Company Law 
Tribunal. During the year due to the uncertainty of realization of the said debt company has not provided 
interesttbereon. 
Secretarial Audit report is annexed as Annexure -'V' to this report. The Secretarial audit report to the 
shareholders does not contain any qualification or reservation which has any material adverse effect on the 
functioning of the company. 
COST AUDIT 
The Company has appointed M/s. Y. B. Modi & Associates, Cost Accountant (firm Registration No. 004861) to 
audit cost records of the Company for the financial year ended 2025-26. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 
148(3) of the Act; the said qualified Cost Auditors have been appointed toconductcostauditforthe year under 
review in respect to the products manufactured by the Company. 
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support. Your Directors also thank govermncnt of India, Government of various states in India, government 
departments and agencies for their co-operation. 
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The domestic market for chemical products manufactured by the company is expanding every year and the 
Company can sell more quantity, as its products are well known for their quality. 

The company remains a market leader by far for Boric Acid in India. It was the first manufacturer to receive 
certification from Bureau of Indian Standard (BIS) and is manufacturing boric acid according to the relevant 
BIS standard. In addition, the company remains the sole manufacturer ofBoric Acid Pharmaceutical grade (1.P.) 
in India and holds license from FDA. All the grades of Boric Acid manufactured by the company command a 
premium as compared to the competitors' products. 

Di-Sodium Octaborate Tetrabydrate (DOT), an important value-added Boron micronutrient fertilizer listed in 
the schedule to the Fertilizer Control Order (FCO), manufactured by the company using in- house developed 
technology, has been well accepted in the market, commanding a premium, Tbe product has been found to be 
much superior to imported products in the comparative studies undertaken by The Indian Institute of 
Technology (llT) and the Council of Scientific & Industrial Research (CSfR). The company has also been granted 
the necessary licenses for manufacturing this product. Since the Indian soil in largely deficient in Boron, the 
Indian Government is actively encouraging use ofBoron in Agriculture for enhancing yield and quality of crops. 
The market is growing, and the company expects increasing volumes in future. 

The company has also commenced initial dispatches of another higher value-added product i.e. Boron Oxide. 
The product bas been well accepted by the user industry. Since the market for this product is growing rapidly. 
the company is very bullish on this product. 

Internal control system and their adequacy 

The Company bas proper and adequate systems of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that all 
assets are safeguarded; prevention and detection of fraud and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 

The Directors present their report on the specified matters to the extent relevant or within limits that in their 
opinion are imposed bythecompany'sown competitive position.asunder.- 

lndustry structure and development 

No reliable and published data is available specifically on boron product industry. As boron ores are not found 
in India, thus thebasicinputsmustbeessentially imported. 

Opportunity, threats, risks and concerns 

As, the basic input of boron ores are imported, thus timely availability of basic inputs at competitive prices in 
desired quality, composition and quantities has been, continues to be and expected to remain a matter of 
concern, risk and threat. The company is continuously engaged in exploring and developing alternative 
sources for imported raw material to minimize the risk 

Segment wise or product-wise performance 

The company is operating in a single reportable segment i.e. manufacturing and selling of Chemicals. The 
disclosures requirement of the Indian Accounting Standard (AS) 108 "operating Segment" notified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014 are not 
applicable. 

Outlook 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
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Human Resources Development & Management 

The Company emphasizes to build a culture that provides well being of the employees and encourages them to 
attend and participate in various development programmes/training which will enable them to learn and 
develop, being crucial to it's long term success. 

The Company is continuously working to create an environment of empowerment through well-defined 
policies that reflect empathy, celebrate meritocracy, and provide ample professional and personal 
development opportunities. 

The total number of permanent employees of the company is 106. There are no other reportable material 
developments in the matter of human resources and industrial relations, which were cordial throughout the 
year. 

Risk and Concerns 

The risks faced by the company are raw material risk. quality risk, competition risk, foreign exchange risk, 
realization risk, cost risk. 

The risk management committee has mitigation plan against above risk. Company is continuously engaged in 
exploring and developing alternative sources of imported raw material to mitigate the risk of raw material. 
llighest quality parameters are set to produce the chemical products; also ensure that there should be 
continuous supply of material to the customers which will mitigate the quality and competition risk. To 
mitigate the foreign exchange risk, company prefers to buy material on receipt of documents. If there is import 
of raw material on credit basis, the same is hedged 

Particulars 2022-23 % 2023-24 % 2024-25 % 
Gross revenue from operations 21,496.93 19,130.30 17.526.11 
Profit before tax & depreciation 7,010.15 33% 5,376.12 28% 6,046.68 35% 
Profit before tax 6,854.61 32% 5,147.79 27% 5,782.80 33% 
Profit after tax 5,039.38 23% 3,841.24 20% 4,188.20 24% 
Net worth 25,480.55 28.938.93 33,078.93 

accounting record, timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures, transactions are authorized and 
recorded correctly to ensure compliance with policies and statutes. 
Based on the framework ofinternal financial controls and compliance system established and maintained hy 
the Company, the work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors, including the audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting by the statutory auditors and tbe reviews performed by 
management and the relevant board committees, including the audit committee, the board is of the opinion 
that the Company's internal financial control were adequate and effective during the financial year 2025. 

lnternal control systems have been found to be adequate and commensurate with the size and nature of the 
business ofthe company and arc reviewed from time to time for further improvement 

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance 

The net sales in current year stood atRs.17,526.11 Lakhsascomparcdto Rs.19,130.30 Lakhs in previous year; 
which is lower by 8.39% due to reduction in sales quantity. 
Financial Performance with respect to operational performance: 
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3. Provide the web-link where composition of CSR committee, CSR policy and CSR Projects approved by 
the Board are disclosed on the website of the company Composition of the CSR Committee shared 
above is available on the Company's website at http://www.indoborax.com/Board-Of-Director.php 
and CSR policy & CSR Report: http:/ /www.indohorax.com/CSR-Policy.php 

4. Provide the details ofimpactassessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuant of sub-rule (3) of Rule 
8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the 
report): Not Applicable 

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule(3) of rule 7 of the Companies, 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial 
year. if any: Not Applicable. 

6. Average netprofitofthecompanyas per section 135(5) of the Act: Rs. 5,528.53 Lakhs 
7. a) Two percent of the average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) of the Act: Rs. 110.57 

Lakhs 
b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years: 

NIL 

Sr. Name of the Director Designauon/Narure of Number of Number of 
No. Directorship Meetings of CSR meetings of CSR 

Committee held Committee 
during the year attended during 

the year 
I. Mr. Sachin Gupta) Chairman, 3 3 

Independent Non· 
executive Director 

2. Mr. Sajal )ai n Member, Managing 3 3 
Director & CFO 

3. Mrs. Sreelekha Jain (up to Member, Non· 2 2 
09/12/2024) Independent Non· 

executive Director 
4. Mr. Yogesh Patil Member, Independent 3 3 

Non-executive Director 
5. Mrs. Minakshi Mittal [w.e.f Member, Independent 2 2 

13/11 /20241 Non-executive Director 

ANNEXURE I TO DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
L A brief outline of Corporate Social Responsibility Policy: 

Social and environment responsibility has always been attheforefrontnflndo Borax&Chemicals Ltd's 
operating philosophy. We believe that to succeed, an organization must maintain highest standards of 
corporate behavior towards its employees, consumers and societies in which it operates. We are in the 
opinion that CSR underlines the objectives of bringing about difference and adding values in our 
stakeholder's lives. 
lndo Borax's Corporate Social Responsibility Policy is rooted in the Company's core values of quality, 
reliability and trust guided by best practices, and driven by our aspiration for excellence in the overall 
performance of our business. 
The CSR activities undertaken by the company are within the broad framework of Schedule VTI of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Duringthe year company has provided financial aid to implementing agency for 
providing education to the poor and needy children and to conduct child development program 
through training, skill education, health, tribal development and cultural program. 

2. The composition of CSR committee: 
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Sr. Name ltem Local Location of the Proje Amount Amount Mode of Mode of 
No of the from the Area( Project ct aUocat transfe lmplementa trnplementarion 

project lls• of Yes/ Dura eel for rred to tlon Direct Through 
activities No) doll th!! unspent (Yes/No) tmptcmennng 
in project CSR Aaencv 
Schedule State Dlsn-lct (Rs. In account Name CSR 
VII to Lokhs) for the Regist 
the act project ration 

as per N<J. 
section 
135(5) 
of the 
Act 

t. Tribal (I) Yes Mahar as Tribal 2 25.00 NII No Gurukr CSRO 
Devel lleal!b btra area In years upa 0003 
opme Tai· Vikas 422 
nt lladlap Sansth 

ur& • Amber 
nath, 
Dist- 
Tha11c 

2. Prom (i]llural Yes Mahar;:1s Mumb 2 60.00 Nil No Chanda CSRO 
odon develop hrra al & Years nvan 0006 
of ment, Suhur Charita 903 
Educa cornmun ban ble 
tlon lty Trust 

mohiliza 
tion and 
tlvellhou 
d 
promoti 
on 
activities 

3. Women (I) Yes Maharas Shah a 2 26.00 NII No Sansth CSRO 
£mpo Promotl Ima da, Years nam 0001 
werm ng Dist .. Abhay 492 
enr, Educatio Nandu Danam 
Child n rbar, 
Bduca Bhame 
don r - 

Dist- 
l)lmle 

Total Jll.00 

b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: 

Total amount Amount Unspent 
spent for the Total amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
financial year unspent CSR Account as per schedule VII as per second proviso to section 

section 135(6) of the Act 135(5) of the At'l 
Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of 

transfer fund Transfer 
Rs. 111 Lakhs Nil. - - NIL - 

c) Amount required to be setofffor the financial year; if any: NIL 
d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year(7a+7b+ 7c): Rs.110.57 Lakhs 

8. a) CSRamountspentorunspentforthcfinancialycar: 
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Sachin Gupta 
Chairman, CSR Committee 

Sajal Jain 
Managing Director 
13"' May, 2025 

c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: Not 
Applicable 

d) Amountspentinadministrativeoverheads: Rs. NIL 

e) Amount spent on lmpactAssessment.ifapplicable: NotApplicable 

f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+Be ): Rs. NlL 

g) Excessamountforsetoff,lfany: NIL 

9. a) Details of unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial year: Not Applicable 

b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding 
financial years: NotApplicable 

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital assets, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or 
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year(asset-wise details) 

a) Date of creation or acquisltion of capitalassets(s): None 

b J Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of Capital asset: NIL 

c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital assets 
is registered, their address etc.: Not Applicable 

d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and 
location of the capital asset): NotApplicable 

lL Specify the reason(s), if the company bas failed to spend two percent of the average net profit as per 
section 135(5) of the Act: Not Applicable 

We hereby confirm that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR 
objectives and Policy of the Company. 
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Sr. Name of the Nature of Duration of Salient tc1111s Date(s) of Amou Date of 
No. related party aod contracts/ar contract/arr of Approval nt special 

nature of rangement/t angement/t contracts/arr by the paid resolutio 
relationship ransactions ransactions angement/tra lloard. if as n passed 

nsactions any advan in general 
including the ces, if meeting 
value, If any any under 

provision 
to section 
188 

1 Mr. Saumya Jain is Re- 1" October, Salary of Rs. 29"' May, Nil 14"' 
son of Mr. Sajal designated 2019, lll.41 L.akhs 2019 Septernb 
Jain, Managing as Chief ongoing er, 2019 
Director & Mrs. Executive 
Sreelekha Jain. 
Non-Executive 
Director 

2 Mr. Sajal Jain. Accomrnodat 3•• May, Rent of Rs. 30"' Aprtl, Nil NA 
Managing Director Ion provided 2022 for s 57.60 Lakhs 2022 
of the Company years per annum 

for three 
vears 

ANNEXUREIJ 
FORM NO.AOC -2 

[ Pursuantto clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014J 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms­ 
length transactions under third proviso thereto. 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis. 

i. Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Not Applicable 
ii. Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions: Not Applicable 
iii. Duration of the contracts/arrangements/ transactions: Not Applicable 
iv. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including value, if any: Not 

Applicable 
v. Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: Not Applicable 
vi. Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: Not Applicable 

vii. Amount paid as advances, if any: Not Applicable 

viiL Date on which special Resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first 
proviso to section 188: Not Applicable 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis. 

There were no material contracts or arrangement or transactions entered into during the year 
ended 31" March, 2025 crossing materiality threshold of10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the 
Company. 1 lowever as a better compliance the details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's 
length basis for the year ended 31~ March, 2025 are as foUows: 
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For Prasad Parah & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Prasad Parah 
Proprietor 

Mem No. A25324 
UDIN NO. A025324G000432940 

CP No. 10235 
Peer Review PR 2189/2022 

Place:-Mumbai 
Dater- 13"' May, 2025 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of 
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs ofthe Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the 
representations made by the Directors and the Management and considering the relaxations granted by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India, we certify that the Company has 
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations for the 
year ended on 31" March, 2025. 

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management Our 
examination was limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof. as adopted by the Company 
for ensuring compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of 
opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by lndo Borax & Chemicals 
Limited ('the Company') for the year ended on March 31, 2025 as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27, 
clauses (b) to (i] and (t) of sub- regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the 
Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
("SEBI Listing Regulations"], 

lndo Borax & Chemicals Ltd 

To the Members of 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 

ANNEXUREill 
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Board Confirmation 
Based on the assessment carried out by the Board of Directors of the Company (Board) and the 
declarations of independence submitted by the Independent Directors, this is to confirm that in the 
opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in these regulations and 
areindependentoftheManagement 
Sajal Jain 
Managing Director 
Mumbai, Dated May 13", 2025 

Sajal Jain 
(Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer} 
Mumbai, Dated May 13", 2025 

To, 
The Board of Directors 
Inda Borax & Chemicals Llmited 
Declaration pursuant to schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2015 
It is hereby certified and confirmed that as provided in SEBI Listing Regulations with the stock 
exchange, all the Board members and the Senior Management personnel of the Company have affirmed 
compliance with the Code ofconductofthe Company for the financial year ended 31"March,2025. 
Sajaljain 
Managing Director 
Mumbai, Dated May 13"', 2025 

We hereby certify that 
a. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31" March,2025 

and that to the best of our knowledge and belief; 
l. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statementoromitanymaterial factor 

contain statements that might be misleading; 
ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 
b. No transactions are entered into by the company duringtheyearwbich is fraudulent, illegal or violative 

of the Company's code ofconduct. 
c. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls over financial reporting 

and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems pertaining to financial 
reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit committee, deficiencies in 
the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have 
taken or propose to take to rectify thesedeficiencies. 

d, We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 
i. Significant changes, ifany in internal control over financial reporting during the year 
ii. Significant changes, if any in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been 

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 
iii. there are no instancesofsignificantfraud of which we have become aware. 

MD /CTO CERTmCATION 

The Board of Directors 
lndo Borax & Chemicals Ltd., 
302, Llnk Rose, Linking Road, 
Santacruz (West} 
Mumbai - 400 OS4 

ANNEXURE - JV 
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CIN:L24100MH1980PLC023177 

302, Link Rose, Linking Road, 

Santacruz (West), Mumbai 400054 

r have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited (hereinafter called the Company). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/ statn tory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on myverificationofthe books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the 
Company has, during the audit period ended on S'l" March, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by lndo Borax& Chemicals Limited ("The Company") for the period ended on 31" March, 2024 
according to the provisions of: 

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder; 
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA1 and the Rules made thereunder; 
iii The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-Jaws framed thereunder 
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings; 

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board 
oflndia Act, 1992 ('SEBIAct') to the extent applicable to the Company:- 

a The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
1992; 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; and 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (not 

The Members of 

lndo Borax & Chemicals Ltd 

To, 

ANNEXURE·V 
Secretarial Audit Report 

For the Financial Year Ended 31a March, 2025 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Ruic No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration ofManagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
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For Prasad Parab & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Prasad Parab 
Proprietor 

Mem No. A25324 
UDIN NO. A025324G000432940 

CP No.10235 
Peer Review PR 2189/2022 

Place:-Mumbai 
Date:- 13~ May. 2025 

applicable to the company as there was no reportable event during the financial year under 
review) 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

VI. Other laws specifically applicable to the company namely: 

1. Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974; 
2. Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981; 
3. Indian Boiler Act, 1923 and rules issued thereunder; 
4. The Electricity Act, 2003and rules issued thereunder. 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses ofthe following: 

i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries oflndia with respect to 
Meeting ofBoard of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2). 

ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited and the National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited read with the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act; Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, and Listing Agreements etc. 

Further I would like to comment that company had given ICD of Rs. 509.0 Lakhs to Radius Estate 
Projects Private Limited (formerly known as Vishwarop Realtors Private Limited) is in the process of corporate 
insolvency process under The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (!BC) for the outstanding amount of Rs. 
509.04 lakhs. The outcome of the NCLT has not yet received. Due to uncertainty in realization of the said debt, 
company has not provided interest on the said loan. 

I further report that: 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive and Non­ 

Executive Directors and Independent Directors. Adequate notice was given to all Directors at least seven days 
in advance to schedule the Board Meeting. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance, and a 
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarification on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation atthe meeting. 

Decisions at the Board Meetings, as represented by the management, were taken unanimously. I 
further report that as per the explanations given to me and the representations made by the management and 
relied upon by me there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines. 
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for Prasad Parah & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Prasad Parah 
Proprietor 

Mem No. A25324 
UDIN NO. A025324G000432940 

CP No.10235 
Peer Review PR 2189/2022 

Place:-Mumbai 
Date:- 13" May. 2025 

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 
is the responsibility of the management My examinations were limited to the verification of procedure on test 
basis. 

Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of 
the Company. 

I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to 
ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. I believe that the process and practices, I followed 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit 

The members, 

lndo Borax & Chemicals Ltd 

CIN:L24100MH1980PLC023177 
302, Link Rose, Linking Road, 

Santacruz (West), Mumbai 400054 

Myreport of even date is to be read alongwithtbis letter. 

To, 

Annexure A to Secretarial Auditors' Report 

This Report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral 
part of this report 
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During the financial year 2024-25 the Board of Directors met 6 times on the following dates: 25"' May; 2024, 
18,.July,2024, 12" August, 2024, 13,.November, 2024, 09"' December. 2024 and 11" February, 2025. Necessary 
quorum was presentforall the board meetings 

During the yeara separate meeting of the independent directors was held inter-alia to review the performance 
oftbe non-independent directors and the board as a whole. 

Independent Directors arc non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) oftbe SEBI Listing 
Regulations and Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). The maximum tenure of the 
independent directors is in conformity with the Act All the independent directors have confirmed that they 
meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under regulation 16(1 )(b} of the SEBI Listing Regulations and 
Section 149(6} of the Act Further. the Independent Directors have included their names in the data bank of 
Independent Directors maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms ofSection 150 of the 
Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. 

The Company has a balance and diverse Board of Directors, which primary takes care of business needs and 
stakeholders interest The composition of board was in compliance as per regulation 17 of SEBI Listing 
Regulations. 

The Board of Directors comprises of Chairman & Managing Director; Executive Director, Non-Executive 
Women Independent Director and three Non-Executive Independent Directors. Since the Chairman is 
executive, the Board's composition meets with the stipulated requirement of at least half of the board 
comprising Independent Directors. The present strength of the board reflects judicious mix of 
professionalism, competence and sound knowledge which enables the board to provide effective leadership to 
the company. 

The Board provides guidance and independent views to the Company's senior management while discharging 
it fiduciary responsibilities. 

2. BOARDOFDJRECTORS 

The company has a code of conduct for employees including Directors. The Company is in compliance with the 
requirements stipulated conditions of corporate governances as required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 20 lS, ("SEBI Listing Regulations"] as applicable. 

The Company's philosophy is to conduct its affairs in a manner which is transparent, clear and evident to those 
having dealings with or having a stake in the Company; namely shareholders, lenders, creditors and employees. 
The Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance is thus concerned with the ethics and values of the 
Company and its Directors, who are expected to act in the best interest of the Company and remain accountable 
to shareholders and other beneficiaries for their action. We consider it our inherent responsibility to disclose 
timely and accurate information regarding our financials, performance and governance of the company. 

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
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~ The board has identified the following skills/expertise/competencies fundamental for the 
effective functioni ngof the Company which are currently available with the Board: 

The Board has laid down a code of conduct of Business and Ethics for Board Members and Senior 
Management staff of the company and the same is available on company's website. The Board 
Members and Senior Managementstaffhaveaffirmcd compliance with the said code of conduct. 

~ Code of Conduct 

~ The terms and conditions of appointment of the Independent Directors are disclosed on the 
website of the Company. 

<; The gap between two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. 

84,55,390 20,77,020 
Mr. Saial Jain Mrs. Sreelekha lain 

(, *E.D. - Executive Director. N.E.D-Non Executive Director, 1-lndepe.ndent 

I; **Includes the Public Company and Foreign Company but exclude Private and Section 8 Company. 

(, Company has appointed Mrs. Minakshi Mittal,as lndependentDirectorsw.e.f.1" June, 2024. 

I; During the year. Mrs. Sreelekha Jain, Director had tendered her resignation as director w.e.f. close 
ofbusiness hours on 9" December; 2024. 

~ Duriog the year. Mr. Govind Parmar appointed as Executive Director of the Company for the further 
period of three years w.e.f.12" November, 2024. 

<; The directors familiarization program imparted to Independent Directors are available on the 
website of the company www.indoborax.com. 

I; Details of equity shares of the Company held by the Directors as on 314 March, 2025 are given 
below: 

No. or No.of 
Director ships Charrma 

No. of Attend in other nship/M 
Relationship Board 

Boards embershl 
Name of Director with other Category" Designation ance ar (Excluding pin 

Directors Meetings last alternate other Attended AGM Directorship Board 
and private Com mitt 

companies) •* ees 

Mr. Saial Jain Husband of Mrs. Prornoter & MD & Cl'O 6 Yes Nfl Nil Sreelekha Jain B.D 

Mrs. Sreelekha Jain Wife of Mr. Sajal N.E.D. Director 5 Yes NII NII Jain 

Mr. Govind Parmar None E.D Executive 5 Yes Nil Nil Director 
Mr. Sachln N. Gupta None l&N.E.D Director 6 Yes Nil Nil 
Mr. Yatin Shah None I & N.ll.O Director 6 Yes Nil Nil 
Mr. Yogesh Patti None l&N.E.D Director 6 Yes Nil Nil 
Mrs. Minakshi Mirtal None I &N.E.O Director 5 Yes Nil Nil 

Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and last Annual General Meeting: 
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Name of Member Designation No. of Committee meetings Attendance 
held 

Ml". Sachln Gupta Chairman 4 4 
Mr. Yatin Shall Member 4 4 
Mr. Sajal Jain Member 4 4 
Mr. Y oaesh Patil Member 4 4 

To recommend the appointment, remuneration and termsofappointmentofthe Auditors including 
cost auditors and secretarial auditors of the company etc. 

Reviewing. with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the 
board for approval. 

Approval or any subsequent modification or transactions of the company with related party. 

Evaluation of internal financial controls. 

Establish a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns in such manner 
as may be prescribed 

Review the information required as per SEBI Listing Regulations. 

The composition of Audit Committee and the details of the meeting attended by the Di rectors are 
given below: 

~ 

; 
~ 

; 

~ 

; 
~ 

; 

; 
c) 

3. Audit Committee: 

a) The audit committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 18 of 
SEBI Listing Regulations, read with Section 177 of the Act. 

b) Terms of Reference: The role and terms of Audit Committee covers the area of Regulation 18 of the 
SEDI Listing Regulations and Section 1 n of the Companies Act, 2013 besides other terms as may be 
referred to by the Board of Directors ofthc Company. The terms of reference of the audit committee 
are broadly as under: 

To review the financial statements before submission to the board. 

To review reports of the Auditors and internal auditors 

To oversight reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the 
financial statements are correct. 

Sr. Name of Designation Special Knowledge/Experience 
No. Director 
1. Mr. Sajal Jain Managing Business Administration, General 

Director & CFO Management, Finance & Accounts 

2. Mr. Govind Executive General 
Parmar Director Management/ Accounts/General 

Adrnlnlstratlon/cnerations 
3. Mr. Sach.in Independent T axati on/Finance/ Accounts 

Gupta Director 
4. Mr. Yatin Shah Independent Corporate Law /Governance/General 

Director Manaaement 
s. Mr. Yogesh Independent Taxation/Fl nance/ Accounts 

Patil Director 
6. Mrs. Manakshi Independent Legal/Corporate Law /Governance 

Mittal Director 
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee met on 25"' May, 2024. 
The previous AGM of the company was held on 27°' August, 2024 and was attended by Mr. Yogesh Patil, 
Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

iii. The broad terms oftberole oftbc Nomination and Remuneration Committee arc as under: 
The role and terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee covers the area of 
Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Companies Act; 2013 besides 
other terms as may be referred to by the Board of Directors of the Company. Recommend to the 
Board its composition, the setup and composition of the committees. 

L Recommend to board a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial and 
senior managerial personnel. 

2. Formulate criteria for evaluation ofevery director's performance 
3. Devising policy on board diversity. 
4. Recommend to the board appointment, removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management 

Personnel. 
6. Succession planning for replacing Key Executives and overseeing. 
7. Any other matter as board may decide from time to time. 

iv. Pcrforrnanceevaluation criteria for Independent Directors: 
The performance evaluation criteria for independent directors are determined by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Tbc evaluation of Directors carried outonthebasisof 
factors like participation and contribution by director, commitment, effective deployment of 
knowledge and expertise, relationship with stakeholders, integrity and confidentiality and 
independence ofjudgmcntand behavior: 

v. Remuneration Policy: 
The remuneration policy of the company enables to attract, retain and motivate employees to 
achieve results. 

Name of Member Designation No. of Committee Attendance 
meetines held 

Mr. Yogcsh Patil Chairman 1 1 
Mr. Sachin Gupta Member 1 1 
Mr. Yatin Shah Member 1 I 

i. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 
19 ofSEBI Listing Regulations and Section 178 (1) ofthe Act. 

ii. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised of three (3) independent directors' viz. Mr. 
Sachin Gupta (Chairman), Mr. YatinShah (Member) and Mr. Yogesh Patil. (Member). 

As on 31~ March, 2025, the audit committee comprises ofFour ( 4) Directors, out of which three (3) are 
Independent Directors and one (1) Executive Director. The Audit committee met 4 times on the 
foilowingdates: 25,.May,2024, 12"' August,2024, 13"'November,2024and 11" February, 2025. 

The previous AGM of the company was held on 27"' August; 2024 and was attended by Mr. 5ac.hin Gupta, 
Chairman of the Audit Committee 

4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 
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Name of Member Designation No. of Committee Attendance 
meennes held 

Mr. Yatin Shah Chairman 2 2 
Mrs. Sreelekha fain Member 1 1 
Mr. Sachin Gupta Member 2 2 
Mrs. Minakshi Mitra.I Member 2 2 

1. The Company has taken Group Gratuity Policy and contribution for the Managing Director, is not 
separately determined hence not included above. 

2. Company has appointed Mrs. Minakshi Mittal, as an Independent Director at the AGM held on 27' 
August, 2024 for the period of five (S)yearsw.c.f. l"June,2024. 

3. Mr. Sajal Jain, Managing Director, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being 
eligible, offer himself for re-appointment. 

5. Stakeholders Relationship Committee: 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(5) of the Act, and Regulation 20 ofSEBI Listing Regulation, 
the company has constituted a "Stakeholders Relationship Committee", The Committee is primarily 
responsible for addressing and resolving the grievances of Shareholders and Investors, including 
issues such as non-receipt of Annual Report/ dividend warrants and other related issues. 
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises all the independent di rectors. 
The composition of Shareholders' Grievances Committee and the details of the meeting attended by 
the Directors are given below: 

Name of Director Salary Benefits Commission Meeting Total Service Contract, Notice Period, 
&HRA Fees Severance l'ees 

Mr. Sajal Jain 153.60 4.49 440.04· NII 598.13 Contractual-retirement by rotation 
Mr. Govlnd Parmar 19.35 - . Nil 19.35 Contractual-retirement by rotation 
Mrs. Sreelekha Jain ·- -- -- 0.30 0.24· Retirement by Rotation 
Mr. Sachin Gupta -- -- -- 0.45 o.si - 
Mr. Yatin Shalt -- -- -- 0.45 042 - 
Mr. Yogesh Patil -- -- -- 0.51 0.45 - 
Mrs. Minakshl Mittal .. .. .. 0.03 0.27 - 

(Rs. ln Lakhs) Directors' Remuneration during 2024·25 vi. 

The non-executive directors (including independent directors) will receive remuneration by way 
of fees for attending meeting of boards or committee thereof, as decided by the committee from 
time to timesubjecttothelimitsdelined undertheActand rules. 
The remuneration of the Managing Director & Executive Director is determined by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, which comprises of three independent directors. The 
commission payable to Managing Director is directly linked with the performance of the company 
which is governed by member's resolution. The commission is paid only to the Managing Director 
and only after the financial statements arc approved by shareholders at the Annual General 
Meeting. 
The Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme. 
Annual Remuneration payable to employees comprises of two parts- salary component and 
bonus/incentives component based on the extent of achievement of the individuals and the 
performance of the business unit. 
The remuneration policy is available on http://www.indoborax.com/Nomination­ 
Remuneration·Policy.php 
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Financial Date Time Venue No. of Special 
Year Resolutions 

2021-22 27.08.2022 1.00 Meeting conducted through 
p.m. VC/OAVM pursuant to MCA Circular . 

2022-23 19.08.2023 1.00 Meeting conducted through 
p.m. VC/OAVM pursuant to MCA Circular l 

2023-24 27.08.2024 1.00 Meeting conducted through 
2 p.m, VC/OA VM pursuant to MCA Circular 

During the year under review, the Committee met 3 times on foUowing dates: 12" August, 2024, 13" 
November; 2024 and on 11" February. 2025. 
Mrs. Minakasbi Mittal bas been appointed as member of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
w.e.r. 13"' November, 2024. Further; Mrs. Sreelekha Jain, Director has given her resignation from 
Corporate Social ResponsibilityCommitteew.e.f. 9"' December; 2024. 
The previous AGM ofthe company was held on 27°' August, 2024 and was attended by Mr. Sachin Gupta, 
Chairman oftbe Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 

7. General Body Meetings: 
a) AnnuaJGeneraJMeeting 

The last three Annual General Meetings were held as under: 

Name of Member Desivnation No. of Committee meetinas held Attendance 
Mr. Sachin Gupta Chairman 3 3 
Mr. Sajal Jain Member 3 3 
Mrs. Sreelekha Jain Member 2 2 
Mr. Yogesh Patil Member 3 3 
Mrs. Minakshi Mittal Member 2 2 

During the year under review, the Committee met on two (2} times Le, on 13" November, 2024 & 11"' February, 
2025. Mrs. Minakashi Mittal was appointed asa Member of the Committee w.e.f. 13" November; 2024. Further; 
Mrs. Sreelekha Jain, Director resigned from the Committee w.e.f. 9" December; 2024. 

• Total Number of Complaints received duri"ngtheyearended 31.March, 2025-5; 
• Number of Complaints not resolved as on 31 •March, 2025- Nil; 
• Number of Share Transfer pen di ngas on 31" March, 2025-Nil; 
• Number of Share Transfers pending for more than 30 days as on 31• March, 2025 · Nil; 

• Name & Designation of Compliance Officer- Mr. Pravin Chavan · Company Secretary & 
Compliance Officer; 

• The previous AGM of the company was held on 27"' August, 2024and was attended by Mr. 
Ya tin Shab, Chairman of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 

6. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee: 
Pursuant to Section 135 of the Act, read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy} 
Rules, 2014, committee was formed by the Board of Directors as "Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee" 

The composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and the details of the meeting attended 
by the Directors are given below: 
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ix. The Company has complied with the requirement of provisions of the SEBI Listing 
Regulation. The Company has not entirely adopted discretionary requirements as 
specified in Part E of Schedule 11 ofSEBI Listing Regulations non-mandatory requirement 
of the said clause during the year under review. 

viii. There arc no cases where the Board bad not accepted any recommendation of any 
Committee of the Board which is mandatorily required during period under review. 

The auditor's report on statutory ti nancial statements of the company are unmodified. 

vi. The company bas adopted a policy on determination of materiality for disclosures. 

vii. The members of the board and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance 
with the code of conduct applicable to them. The certificate by the ChiefFinancial Officer 
and the Managing Director is part of this report. 

I. There were no materially significant transactions that bad potential conflict with the 
interest of the Company at large. The policy on dealing with related party transactions is 
available on the website of your Company at http://www.indoborax.com/RPT­ 
Transactions.php. 

ii. There were no instances of non-compliance nor have any penalties, strictures been 
imposed by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory authority during the last three 
years on any matter related to Capital markets. 

iii. There were no instances of non-compliance nor have any penalties, strictures been 
imposed by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory authority during the last three 
years on any matter related to Capital markets. 

iv. The Whistle Blower policy is in place, and it is hereby affirmed that no personnel has been 
denied access to the audit committee. The said policy has been uploaded on the website of 
the company http:f/www.indoborax.com(Whistcl-Blower-Policy.php .. 

v. The Company has also adopted Policy on determination of material subsidiary, which has 
been uploaded on the Company's website http://www.indoborax.com/RPT-PoliQ'.J!htl.. 
The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements. It has fulfilled the 
following discretionary requirements as prescribed in Schedule 11 of Part E of the SEBI 
Llsting Regulations: 

i} During the year company has not passed any resolution through postal ballot. 

ii) Details of special resolution proposed to be conducted through postal ballot. None of the 
businesses proposed to be transacted at the ensuing AGM requires passing of special 
resolution through postal ballot. 

8. Other Disclosures: 

b) Postal BaJJot 
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The Company communicates with its shareholders on an annual basisthrougb the Annual Report The 
quarterly, half-yearly, nine monthly and yearly results are published in newspaper-Free Press Journal 

The members of the board and senior management personnel have affirmed the compliance with Code 
applicable to them during the year ended 31" March, 2025. The annual report of the Company contains 
a certificate by the Managing Director terms of SEO! Listing Regulations on the compliance declarations 
received from Independent Directors, Non-executive Directors and Senior Management 

10. Means of Communication: 

Declaration regarding compliance by board members and senior management personnel with the 
Company's Code of conduct: 

9. Declaration regarding compliance by board members and senior management personnel with 
the Company's Code ofconduct: 

a] No. of Complaints filed during the year ended 31st March, 2025: NIL 

b) No. of Complaints disposed of during the financial year: NIL 

c] No.of pending Complaintsason31stMarch,2025: NIL 

• Redressal of complaints of sexual harassment 

The Company as an equal employment opportunity provider is committed to creating a healthy 
working environment that enables employees to work without fear of prejudice, gender bias 
and sexual barassment The Company also believes that all employees of the Company have the 
rightto be treated with dignity. Sexual harassment at the work place or other than work place, if 
involving employees, is a grave offence and is, therefore, punishable. Number of complaints 
received and resolved in relation to Sexual l larassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Protection, and Redressal] Act, 2013: during the year under review and their breakup is as 
under: 

• Protection against and Prevention of sexual harassment of women at workplace 

xi. There are no instances of non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance 
Report as mentioned in sub-paras (2) to (10] of Para (CJ of Schedule V. The Company has 
been regularly submitting the quarterly compliance report to the Stock Exchanges as 
required under Regulation 27 of the SEO! (LODR] Regulations. 

xii. Prevention of Sexual Harassment:The Company follows an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy 
in line with the requirements of Sexual Harassment ofWomen at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal] Act, 2013. The main objective of the Act is to provide: 

x, Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified 
institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7 A] of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations - Notapplicable 
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MUFG In time India Pvt Ltd, C-101, Embassy 247, LBS Marg. Vikbroli (W), Mumbai-400 083, Ph. (0)- 

RegistrarandTraosfer(R&T)Agents: 

j. Address for Correspondence 

L24100Mll1980PLC023177 i. Corporate Identity Number 

Annual Custody fees have been paid h, Custodial Fees to Depositories 

The necessary annual listing fees have been duly 
paid to both the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE & NSE 

~ Listingfeesfor2024·25 

INE803D01021 f. ISINNo. 

NSDLandCDSL e, Depositories 

BSE Ltd, (BSE) & National Stock Exchange of India 
Ltd (NSE) (The Kolkatta Stock Exchange Ltd. - 
Delisting confirmation from The Kolkatta Stock 
Exchange is still awaited) 

d, ListingonStockExcbanges 

Dividend, if approved, shall be paid/credited on or 
after29"Septembct; 2025 

c, Dividend payment Date 

As mentioned in the Notice of this AGM b. Record Date/Book Closure date 

The Company is conducting meeting through VC/OAVM pursuant to the MCA circular dated May 5, 
2020 read with general circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, the latest being 09/2024 dated 
September 25, 2024.As required under regulation 36(3) oftbeSEBl Listing Regulations and Secretarial 
Standard 2 on General Meetings, particulars of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at this 
AGM are given in the Annexure to the Notice of this AGM. 

a. Annual General Meeting 

11. General Information for Shareholder: 

As required, information relating to quarterly financial results, shareholding pattern etc. were 
provided to BSE Ltd and The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd and is also available on the website 
www.indoborax.com. www.bseindia.com and www.nseindiacom. 

• The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part ofDirectors Report 

• No presentations have been made to institutional investors or to the analysts 

in English language & in Navshakti in Marathi. 
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Sr. Category of No.of U/oto 
No. Holders Sita res Total 

Shares 

1 
Indian 1.63,00,230 50.80 Promoters 

2 
Non- 
Residents/Flis/ 6,68,798 2.08 
OCBs 

3 Other 
Corporate 11,04,400 3.44 
Bodies/LLP's 

4 Indian Public 1,14,57,544 35.71 
5 FPI 7,368 0.02 
6 I EPF Account 25,SJ,660 7.95 

Total 3 20 90,000 100.00 

Shareholding Pattern as on 31-Mar-2025: 

No.of 
Number of equity Share No.Of 

shares held holders % Shares % 

I . 500 25,474· 87.51 24.68.986 7.69 
501 . 1000 2.064 7.09 17.58,378 5.48 

1001 - 2000 831 2.85 13,20,573 4.12 
2001 - 3000 24·6 0.85 6.Sl,961 2.03 
3001 - 4000 126 0.43 4 52.133 1.41 
4001 - 5000 111 0.38 5,33.237 1.66 
5001 - 10000 126 0.43 9,23,555 2.88 

10001 & •bove 133 0.46 2,39,81,J 77 74.73 
Total 29,111 100.00 3,20,90,000 100.00 

In Phvsical Form 5.19,000 1.62 
In Electronic Form 3,15.71 000 98.38 

m. DbtributionofShareholdingason31-Mar-2025: 

The Company's shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form on BSE and NSE. As on 31-Mar- 
2025, 3,15, 71,000 equity shares representing98.38% of the Company's paid-up equity share capital is 
held in electronic form. 

I. Dematcrialization of Shares: 

lo terms of Regulation 40( 1) of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended from time to time, transfer; 
transmission and transposition of securities shall be affected only in dematerialized form. Pursuant to 
SEBI Circular dated 25~ January, 2022, the listed companies shaU issue the securities in dematerialized 
form only, for processing any service requests from shareholder viz., issue of duplicate share 
certificates, endorsement, transmission, transposition etc. After processing the service request, a 
letter of confirmation will be issued to the shareholders and shall be valid for a period of 120 days, 
within which the shareholder shall make a request to the Depository Participant for dematerializing 
those shares. If the shareholders fail to submit dematerialization request within 120 days, then the 
company shaU credit those shares in the Suspense Escrow Demat account held by the Company. 
Shareholders can claim these shares transferred to Suspense Escrow De mat account on submission of 
necessary documentation. 

k, SbareTransferSystem: 

E-mail:complianceofficer@indoborax.com 

Compliance Officer: 
Pravin Chavao, Company Secretary & Compliance Office 
lndo Borax& Chemicals Ltd 
302, Link Rose, Linking Road, Santacruz (West), M urnbai -400 054 
Tel-+9122 26489142, Fax-+9122 26489143 

810 8116767, ToU Free No. 1800-1020-878, E-mail: rnt.helpdesk@in.mpms.mufg.com 
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The members who have a claim on above dividends and shares may claim the same from IEPF 

Authority by submitting an online application in the prescribed Form No. IEPF-5 available on the 

websiteof www.iepf.gov.in and sending a physical copy of the same, duly signed to the Company, along 

with requisite documents enumerated in the Form No. IEPF-5. No claims shall lie against the Company 

in respect of the dividend/shares so transferred. The Members/claimants can file only one 

Financial Year Amount of unclaimed dividend transferred Number of shares 
IRs. In Lakhsl transferred 

2016-17 4.44 1,12,950 

The details of unclaimed dividend and shares transferred to IEPF during the year 2024-25 are as 

follows: 

In light of aforesaid provisions, the company bas during the year under review, transferred to IEPF the 

unclaimed dividends, outstanding for seven consecutive years. Further, shares of the Company in 

respect of which dividend has not been claimed for seven consecutive years or more, have also been 

transferred to the demataccount oflEPF Authority. 

In the interest of shareholders, the Companysend notices to the shareholders to claim their dividend in 

order to avoid transfer of dividend/shares to IEPF Authority. Notices in this regard also published in 

the newspapers and the details of unclaimed dividend and shareholders whose shares are liable to be 

transferred to the IEPF Authority, are uploaded on the Company's website. 

Further, all the shares in respect of which dividend has remained unclaimed for seven consecutive 

years or more from the date of transfer to unpaid dividend account shall also be transferred to IEPF 

Authority. The said requirement does notapplyto shares in respect of which there is a specific order of 

Court, Tribunal or statutory authority, restraining any transferof shares. 

Pursuant to Sections 124 and 125 of the Act read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund 

Authority (Accounting. Audit. Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 ("IEPF Rules"), dividends, if not 

claimed for a consecutive period of 7 years from the date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the 
Company, are liable to be transferred to the Investors Education and Protection Fund ("IEPF"). 

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or any Convertible instruments. 

o. Location ofPlant Facilities: 

Plant locations : Plot No. 43 to 46, 47 A. 48, 48A, Industrial Estate, Sector rt, 
Pithampur-454775.(M.P.) 

p. UnclaimedDividendAmounts: 

n. Outstanding GDRs / ADRs /Warrants or any Convertible instruments: 
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r. Loans and Advances: The Company has not given any Joans and advances to firms/company in which 

directors are interested. 

q. Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account: There are no 

shares in any dematsuspense account or unclaimed suspense account. 

Members who have not encashed their dividend warrants pertaining to the aforesaid years may 

approach the company /its registrar, for obtaining payments thereof at least 20 days before they are 

due for transforto the said fund. 

Financial Year Amount outstanding Due for transfer to 
as on 31.03.2025 (Rs. IEPF on 
In Lakhs1 

2017-2018 1.51 27 /09/2025 
2018-2019 1.14 18/10/2026 
2019-2020 1.65 29/10/2027 
2020-2021 4.63 29/09/2028 
2021-2022 5.37 28/09/2029 
2022-2023 6.20 15/09/2030 
2023-2024 6.40 26/09/2031 

Information in respect of various outstanding dividends and the date by which they can be claimed by 

the shareholder from the Company arc as follows: 

consolidated claim in a financial year as per the IEPF Rules. 
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For Prasad Parah & Associates 
Company Secretaries 
Prasad Giridhar Parah 
Mem No. A25324 
UDIN NO. A025324G000602450 
CP No.10235 
PR 2189/2022 

Place:-Mumbai 
Date : 13"' May. 2025 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. 
This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Sr. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment 
No. in Comnanv 

l Saia! Sushilkumar lain 00314855 26/05/2008 
2 Govind Ramlal Parmar 03556411 30/05/2011 
3 Sachin Naearrnal Gunta 09332193 12/ 11/2021 
4 Y oeesh Patil 10464221 13 02/2024 
5 Yatin Narendra Shah 07155634' 13 02/2024 
6 Minakshi Ankush Mittal 07220741 01 06/2024 

The Members oflndo Borax & Chemicals Limited 
302, Link Rose, Linking Road, 
Santacruz (West), Mumbai 400054 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 
Directors of Inda Borax & Chemicals Limited having CIN :-L24100MH1980PLC023177 and bavingregistercd 
office at 302, Link Rose, Linking Road, Santacruz (West), Mumbai 400054 (hereinafter referred to as 'the 
Company'), produced before me/us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance 
with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause lO(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

Jn my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 
furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I, hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the 
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2025 have been debarred or disqualified 
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board oflndia, 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Mumbai or any such other Statutory Authority 

To, 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (lO)(i) of the SEBI (Listing ObUgations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 
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The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Annual Report 

Independent Auditor's Report 
To the MembersoflNDO BORAX&CHEMICALS LIMlTED 
Report on the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED ("the 
Company") which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), statement of changes in Equity and statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies 
and other explanatory information. 

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and 
other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit: of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the !CAi's Code ofEthics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 

Key Audit matter : 

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report. 

Emphasis ofMatter 

We draw your kind attention to the Note No. 44 to the standalone financial statement; The Company has given 
Inter Corporate Deposit in the nature of loan to one of the party; which has filed the application for corporate 
insolvency resolution process under The Insolvency and Bankruptcy code, 2016. 

The company bas filed its claim as ti nancial creditors as per the regulation 8 of the me code for the said 
outstanding amount. The company-is awaiting the outcome from National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT). Due 
to uncertainty in realization of the said debt and pending decision of NCLT company continues not to provide 
interest on the said loan for the financial yearended31-03-2025. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Other Information: 
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l> Our opinion on the standalone financial statements docs not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form ofassurance conclusion thereon. 

)> In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the standalone ti nancial statements or our knowledge obtained during the 
course ofouraudit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

)> If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial 
Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 ("The Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS standalone financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, (including Other Comprehensive Income), 
changes in equity and cash Hows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statement that give a 
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of unless the Board of Director either intends to liquidate the 
Company orto cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board offiirectorsisalso responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

(i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 

(il INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED 



whether due to fraud or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error; as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the overrideoflnternal control. 

(u) Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

(iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures in the standalone financial statements made by the 
Management 

(iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Stand alone financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report However; future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

(v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone consolidated financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation, 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 
individuaJJy or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope ofouraudit work and in 
evaluating the results ofourwork; and (ii) to evaluate the effectofany identified misstatements in 
the standalone financial statements 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding; among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order; 2020 ("the Order"], issued by the Central 
Government oflndia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we 
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d} (i} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief. no funds 
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or 
entities, including foreign entities [Tntermediartes"], with the understanding. whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall: 

e] On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2025 from beingappointedasadirectorintermsofSection 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
"Annexure-B~ 

g) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has paid/ provided managerial remuneration in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 

3) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and accordingto the explanations given to us: 

a) The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31" March, 2025 on its 
financial position in its Ind AS financial position in its standalone financial statements - 
refernote 43 to the Ind AS financial statements. 

b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivate contracts as at 31" 
March, 2025. 

c} There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection fund by the company during the year ended 31" March, 
2025. 

give in the Annexure "A" statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to 
the extent applicable. 

2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best ofour 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes ofour audit. 

b} In our opinion, proper books ofaccountas required by Jaw have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, (including other comprehensive 
income) the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone Cash Flow 
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books ofaccount. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. 
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For Bohra & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN No. 136492W 
Anil Jain 
Partner 

Membership No.04B991 
UDIN No.: 25039B03BMGPTM6110 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 13" May, 2025 

f) Based on our examination which included test checks, the company bas used an 
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording 
audittrail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not 
come across any instance ofaudittrail feature beingtarnpered with. 

(ii) The management bas represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief no funds 
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign 
entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding; whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall: 

• directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Funding 
Party or 

• provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; and 

(iii) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material misstatement 

e) The dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company is in compliance with 
Section 123 of the Act 

• directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by oron behalfofthe Company or 

• provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 
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Quarter Value as per Value as per the Difference Reasons for Difference 
q.uarterly statement books of account 

Filed with bank/ 
Financial lnstltutlen 

Ql 172S.S6 l783.25 57.69 Expenses forming part of 
finished goods and semi- 

Q2 1535.31 157l.15 35.64 Iinished geeds were not 

Q3 6226.09 6294.24 68.JS included in the quarterly 
statements 

Q4 464-9.l9 4667.43 18.24 

the books of account other than those assetoutbelow. 

(e) As per the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding have been initiated or 
are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions [Prohibition) Act,1988 ( 45 ofl 988) and rules made there under. 

The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the 
Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedures of such 
verification by Management is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical 
verification ofinventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate 
for each class of inventory. 

(b) During the year. the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of· 5 
crores, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company 
has filed quarterly returns or statements with such banks, which are in agreement with 

(ii] (a) 

(b) All fixed assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased periodical 
manner, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and 
the nature of its assets. According to the information and explanations given to us, no 
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) As per the information and explanations given to us, the immovable properties owned by 
the company are held in the name of the company. In respect of immovable property taken 
on lease and disclosed as fixed assets in standalone financial statements, the lease 
agreement is in the name of the Company. 

f d) The company has not revalued any ofits Property. Plant and Equipment (including Right of 
Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under 
Clause 3(i)( d) nfthe Order is not applicable to the Company. 

Anncxurc (A) totbciodcpeodeotAuditor's Report 

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the Independent 
Auditor's Report of even date to the members of INDO BORAX & CITEMlCALS LIMITED on the standalone 
financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025] 

(i) (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of property, Plant and Equipment 

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible 
assets; 
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(b) In respect of the loans outstanding as on the balance sheet date, the schedule of 
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated by the Company 
except for one loan aggregating Rs. 509.04 lakh where no schedule of repayment of 
prtncipal and payment of interest has been stipulated. Except for the aforesaid instances 
(where in the absence of stipulation of repayment/payment terms, we are unable to 
comment on the regularity of repayment of principal and payment of interest), otberthan 
above the parties arc repaying the principal amounts.as stipulated, and are also regular in 
paymentofinterestasapplicable. 

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit 
procedures performed by us, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of 
interest have been stipulated for loans and advances in the nature of loans, and the 
repayments of principal amount ofloans and receipts ofinterest have been regular during 
the year except one party. (Refer Note (b) above). 

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit 
procedures performed by us, there is no amount overdue of loans and advances in the 
nature ofloans granted by the company except those mentioned in clause (b). 

( e] According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit 
procedures performed by us, no loans or advances in the nature ofloan granted which has 
fallen due during the year, have been not been renewed or extended or no fresh loans 
granted to settle the over dues of existing loans given to the same parties. 

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based 
on the audit procedures conducted by us, the company has not granted any loans or 
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any 
terms or period ofrepayment. 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on 
the audit procedures conducted by us, the company has complied with the provisions of 

Particulars Value in Rs. ( lakh] 
Mutual Fund 4521.0l. 
Liquid Fund NI~ 

Balance outstanding (gross) as at balance sheet date in respect of the above cases 

Particulars Value in Rs . (Lakh) 

. ~oorei?ate amount Invested durma the vear 
Mutual Funds 4495.03 
Liquid Fund 3120.00 

(iii) Duringthe year the company has made investments in, provided any guarantee or security 
or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to 
companies, firms, Limited Liability partnerships or any other parties. 

Investments madeduringtheyearin 5 Mutual Funds: 
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(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 
company has net default in the repayment ofloans or other borrowings or in the payment 
ofinterest thereon any lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our audit 
procedures, we report that the company has not been declared willful defaulter by any 
bank or financial institution or government or any government authority. 

(viii) According to the information and the explanations given by the management, and based 
on the procedures carried out during the course ofour audit, we have not come across any 
transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 
1961. 

Name of Statute/ Amount in Rs' Period to which the Forum where dispute 
Descrtnuon lacs amount relates is pending 

Commercial Claim 9.02 1992-93 Bombay High Court 

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the 
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 prescribed by the Central Government 
under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion 
that prima facic the prescribed cost records bave been so made and maintained. We have, 
however. not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine 
whethertheyare accurate or complete. 

(vii) (a)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 
examination of the books of account, the Company has been regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' 
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value 
added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities and other 
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts 
payable in respect of including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state 
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added 
tax, cess and other undisputed statutory dues were outstanding; at the year end for a 
period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

According to the records of the Company, disputed Commercial Claim not deposited on 
account of dispute are as follows. 

sections 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to loans and advances granted, guarantees 
and securities provided and investments made by the company during the year. 

(v) The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits 
from the public within the meaning of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, 
provision of the Sections 73 to 76 of the act, any other relevant provision of the Act and the 
relevant rules farmed there under. 
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(c) lo our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 
company has not taken any term loans during the year. 
(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, and the procedure 
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statement of the company, 
we report that no fund raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes 
by the company. 
( e) According to the information and explanation given to us and on an overall 
examination of the financial statement of the company, we report that the company has 
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account oforto meet the obligations of 
its subsidiaries, associate or joiotventures. 
(f) According to the information and explanation given to us and procedure performed by 
us, we report that the company has not raised loan during the year on the pledge of 
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint venture or associate companies. 

(x) (a )The Company has not raised money byway ofioitial public offerdutingtheyear. 
(b)In our opinion and according to information and explanations obtained by us, the 
company has not raised any funds through preferential aJJotment / private placement of 
shares/ fuJJy /partially/ optionally convertible debentures during the year under review. 

(xi) (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried 
ou tin accordance with the generally accepted auditing practice in India, and according to 
the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of 
material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year. 
nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management. 
(b) During the course ofour examination of the books and records of the Company, carried 
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to 
the information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in 
Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
was not required to be filed with the Central Government Accordingly. the reporting 
under0ause3(xi)(b )oftheOnleris not applicable to the Company. 
( c) During the year under review, we have not come across any whistle-blower complaints. 

(xii) As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, 
the reporting underCiause 3(xii) of the Order is notapplicable to the Company. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations and records made available to us by the 
company and audit procedures performed by us, all transactions with related parties are 
in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the companies Act, 2013 
The details of transaction during the year have been disclosed in the Financial statements 
as required by the applicable accounting standards. Refer Note No. 37 "Related Party 
Disclosures" to the Financial statements. 

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit 
system commensurate with the size and nature ofits business. 
(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the 
period under audit. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year 
the company has not entered into non-cash transactions with its directors or person 
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Place: Mumbai 
Date: 13"' May, 2025 

For Bohra & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN No. 136492W 
Anil Jain 
Partner 

Membership No.048991 
UDIN No.: 25039803BMGPTM6110 

(xxi) The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of 
standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has 
been included in this report. 

(xix) 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly 
the reporting under Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is notapplicable to the Company. 
According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial 
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization offinancial assets and paymentoffinancial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statement, our knowledge of the 
board of ctirectors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumption, nothing has came to our attention, which cause us to believe 
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not 
capable of meeting is liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall 
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state thatthis is 
not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our 
reporting is based on facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 
guarantee nor any assurance that all liability falling due within a period of one year from 
the balance sheetdate, will get discharge by the company as and when they fa.JI due. 

(xx) The Company has during the year spent the amount of Corporate Social Responsibility as 
required under subsection (5) of Section 135 of the Act. Accordingly. reporting under 
clause 3( xx) of the Order is notapplicable to the Company. 

connected with the director and hence the provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 
2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) (a )As per the information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to get 
it registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank oflndia Act, 1934. 
(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial / Rousing Finance 
activities during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi) (b) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company. 
(c) As per the infonnation given to us, the company is a not a Core Investment Company 
(CIC) as defined in regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly. the 
reporting under clause 3 (xvi) (c) oftheOrderis notapplicabletothe Company. 
d) The clause related to whether Group has more than one CIC as part of the Group is not 
applicable to the company. 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash loss during the financial year ended on the date 
and the immediately preceding financial year. 
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Report on the lntemal Financial Controls under Clause (I} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements oflndo Borax & Chemicals Limited 
(the "Company') as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting of the Company as of that date. 

Management's Rcsponsi bility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reportingissued bythe Institute of Chartered Accountants oflndia (lCAI). 

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effoctivety for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct ofits business, 
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
rclia ble financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements based on our audit We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note"} and the Standards on 
Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable toan auditofinternal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 

Ourauditofinternal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence, we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our adverse audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning oflntcmal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting: 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

ANNEXURE 'B' TO THE lNDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH l(F) OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE flNANClAL STATEMENTS OF 
INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LlMITED 
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Place: Mumbai 
Date :13'" May, 2025 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting; includingthe 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively 
as at March 31,2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants oflnclia 

For Bohra & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN No. 136492W 
Anil Jain 
Partner 

Membership No.048991 
UDIN No.: 25039803BMGPTM6110 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

(1) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company 

(2J provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations 
of managementand directors ofthe company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 
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Notes 1to47 Iorm an integr a 1 part of these financial statements. 
As per attached report of even date. 
For Bohra & Ce., 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. I 36492W 

Tot.11 equtry and tlabitiries 

20 

2.62 

539.80 ~63.ZS 
21 87CJ,73 823.28 
22 0.00 0.00 
23 258.59 213 22 

<J6.20 Ji4.07 

1,776.94 1,$23.82 

35,524.76 31,044.46 

Tocal llabillties 

260.81 347.99 1'ornl non-euerem llabllltfes 
Current Itabltittes 
Fln('Joc;ial Habllutes 
I, 6()rrowlngs 
I. Trade payables 
Total o\1tsund1ng dues of ndtro .:ntertlr1ses ~uHI 
snl:\ll enterprtses 
Total outstotnding dues uf creditors other th.:111 
micro enterprises and srnalt erncrprrscs 
ii. Other fin01nr.:ial liabilities 
iii. Lease iiabiJities 
Employ~ D~nefil Obllgatlcn 
Income Ta~ tl:.blllth:s Net 

135.30 
122.25 

3.26 

18'1.04 
160.69 

3.2(, 

17 
18 
19 

29,259.83 Total equity 
UASILJTIES 
Non-<un-cul Itabttlues 
OtlH:.I' FlnanC'lal LlabUl1les 
Deferred Tnx Liabilites 
Lease l.iabilltie.o; 

29,259.83 33,399.83 £qui1y attributable- to owners <tr Indu Bnrax & 
Ch~mic.al.s Limited 
Non+WntrolUng interests 

320.90 
28,938,q) 

320.90 
33.078.93 

15 
16 

31,04-'J..46 35,524.76 

19,008.83 15,516.02 Total current assets 
Total assets 
EQUITY AND LIABILl'nES 
Equity 
£<1ulcy share capftal 
Other equlry 

2,238.39 

3,905.82 
l,360.7Y 

11,058.56 
58.64 
lJ.98 

374.65 

4,706.75 

4,521.01 
1,578.73 
3,95J..L9 

59.69 uzs 
787.39 

9 
10 
Jl 
1i ]3 
14 

12,G3S.63 20,008.74 Total ucn-euerent assets 
Current assets 
Inventories 
f'lnandal assets 
L lnvestrnents. 
ii, Trade receivables 
iii. C~sh and cash equivalents 
Iv. Bank balances other than t 111) above 
v. Leans 
Odu:I' currem asseu 

l,l 72.4S 
S64.98 

7,025.64 

1,864.36 
.112.52 

JO.JO 
7,96U3 
1.04om 

393.00 
573.15 

5~1.94 

2.100 64 
112.52 

10.15 
7,981.4'.l 
tM0.93 

I 
2 
3 
~ s 

S(a) 
6 
7 

ASSE'TS 
Nc..u--t:urtl'ul assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Capital wcrk-lu-nrcgrcss 
Right.of use Asst.•ts 
Investment in Properties 
Invescments in Subs1di:iry 
financial A~scts 
i. Investments 
ii.Loans. 
iii. Other Financial Assets 

As al March 31, 2024 As al l\tarch 31, 202S Note Partlcnlars 

lAmounts are in Lakhs unless stated otherwise) Standalone balance sheet as at March 31, 2025 
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Earnings per share 
Basie 
Dllut•<i 
The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanyiug notes. 

Notes 1to47 Iorm an integr a 1 part of these financial statements. 
As per attached report of even date. 
For Bohra & Ce., 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. I 36492W 

Total comprehensive lueome ro1· the year 

225.27 288.16 
47.43 (29.23) 

272.70 258.93 
272.70 258.93 

4,460.90 4-,100.17 

:n 
13.05 11.97 
13.0S 11.97 

OCI for the year 

ltems that will be ttclasslficd to pta{it or loss 
Tax relating to above 
o) tums Thar ~Viii Noc Be Reclassljied To Profit Or less 
b] Income Tax Relating To Items 1'hat \Viii Not Be.Reclassifled To Protlt or Loss 

Note Particulars 

Standalone statement of curer- ceuspreheustve lnceme tor- the year ended !\larch 31~ 2025 

Profit (or the year 
Profit from continuing operations 
1"ut3.I t:a.x e~pense/(credit} 

32 
32 

Profit before tax 
Income ta.'< expense 
· Current true 
• Deferred tax 

T ota.l expenses 

26 
27 
29 
29 
30 

l 
31 

Tetal Income 

Expenses 
Cost of raw materials and components rcnsumed 
Purchase Q( traded goods 
(lncreasej/decrease in Inventories of finished 
goods. work-In-progress and traded goods 
Employee benefit expenses 
Plnanrc Cusl 
Deprectattcn expenses 
Other expenses 

24 
25 

Continuing operations 
Revenue from operations 
Other income 

As at Marth 31, 2025 Asat Marth 31, 2024 

17,526J1 19,130.30 
1,475.08 1,101.39 

19.001.19 20,23'1.69 

0,182.61 10,19622 
15.23 

(S.91) 42.99 
1,430.16 J.188.71 

17.89 0.60 
263.98 228.33 

3,314.43 3,427.05 

13,218.39 15,083.90 

S,782.80 S,147.79 

5,782.80 S,147.79 

1,508.73 l,357.40 
OS.97 (SO.BS} 

1,594.60 'l,3()6.SS 
4,188.20 3,841.24 
4,188.20 3,841.24 

32 
Profit before excepucnat Items and tax: 
Exceptional items 

Nolt Particulars 

Standalone statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2025 tAmounts are in Lakhs unless stated otherwise) 
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Notes 1to47 Iorm an integr a 1 part of these financial statements. 
As per attached report of even date. 
For Bohra & Ce., 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. I 36492W 

Cash and cash equtvelents al the be-ginning of the year 
c.-.sh and cash equivalents at the end of the year 
A$ per attached report of even date, 

Net cash generated Irom operating activities 
8 Casb OO'i\' Irom Investing actlvittes: 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 
Gcvernrneut.Subsfdy 
Purchase oflnvcslrncnts 
Proceeds rroru redemption of mvestmenrs. 
lnterest recclved 
Dividend received 

Net cash used ln Investtng activities 
C C.a~h flow from financing activities: 
Interest paid 
Dividends Paid {Including Dividend Dlstrfbuuon 'fa~) 
Net casu generated from financing activities 

Oper~\tl11g profit before wurkfug capital changes 
Adjusnncnts fo1~ 
Decrease/Increase In lnventorles 
Decrease/Itncrease) in non-current finaocil)I assets 
Decreaseyftncrease] in current financial assets 
Oecreas~/(lnt'l'ease) In other current assets 
Increase in trade receivables 
Increase in trade payables 
increase Jo current Ilnanctal habllltles 
Increase in non-current financial Habililie-s 
Increase in other provisions 

5,782.80 S,147.79 

264.03 228.49 
(6228) {25.12) 

1.24 38.51 
•1-8.79 

(6.90) 112.81) 
(49.10) (0.55) 

(780.59) (53 J.18) 
17.99 0.60 

(612.71) (253.23) 

S,170.09 4,894.55 

(2.468.36) 3,550-07 
(6,956.16) (23.89) 

(0.33) (6.92) 
(412.74] 215.0S 
(217.93) {8L67] 

179.18 22.62 
56.44 (IHi.71) 
48.74 17.40 
45.37 22.13 

(9.725.79) 3,532.07 
(4-,SSS.70) 8,426.62 

(1.537.96) 
(1,537.98) (1.455.61) 
[6,093.68) 6,971.01 

(67l.93) ('157.Z6) 
172.77 

(5,531.33) (S,73?3Z) 
4.4i6.90 2,576.93 

780.59 531.18 
49.10 0.55 

(774.90) (3.087.9Z) 

( [7.89) [0.60) 
(320.90) (3Z0.90) 

(338.79) (321.SO) 
(7,Z07.37) 3,$61.59 
11,058.56 7,496.97 
3,851.19 11,058.56 

cash generated trem eperating activities 
Income Tax Patd (net) 

A Cash Ilow from operaung aeuvtues­ 
Proflt before ttuc 
Adj11stments for: 
Deprcclatlcn and amordzaden for the year 
(P1'00l'}/Loss on sale of lnvesunent (Net) 
Ind As effect LIQUID FUND OCI 
Assets writteu off ocl 
Actuarial gain/floss) Icrmtng partofOCI 
Dividend received 
Interest Income 
Finance cost 

As at l'vla_rch :i1, ZOZS A$ at March 31,2025 A."t al t\1arch 31 .• 2024 Parttculars 

tAmounts arc in Lakhs unless stated otherwise) Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025 
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Firm Registration No. I 36492W 

a) Capital Redemption Reserve 
The Coutpany has recognised capital Redemption Re-serve on buyback of equity shares From its retained earnings. The amount in 
capital Redcntption Reserve is equal to nominal amoumof'theequiry shares bought back. 

bJ SharcforfcitureAccount 
Amount originalty received on 19000 equity shares. inclusive of share premium on rorfeirure of shares r.ransferred co Share 
Forfeiture Account. 

c-J General Reserves 
The Company created general reserve in earlier years pursuant co die provisions of the Companies Actwherein certain percentage 
of profits were required to be transferred to general reserve before declaring dividends. As per the Contpanies Act 2.013, the 
requirement to transfer profits m general reserve ts not n1andatory. General reserve is a free reserve available to the Company. 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAi.: (An1ounrs are in l.akhs unless stated otherwise) 
Particulars Note No. of shares Amount 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares 
Equity share ofHs. I/· each 
Balance "sat I April 2023 15 32090000 320.90 
Changes In Equity Share Capita! during 1hc year 
Balance as at 31 r.1arc:h 2024 15 32090000 320.90 
Changes in Equity Share Capitol during die year 
Balance as at 31 March 2025 15 32090000 320.90 

B.OTHERE UITY 
Particulars Reserve & Sur lus 

Capllal Share General Retained Redemption Forfeiture Reseve Earning Tobi 
Reserve AttOUDl 

Balance as at 3 t March 2023 27.20 J.39 2.L84.J I 22,946.95 25, 159.65 
Profit for the year 3.841.24 3,841.24 
Other comprehensive income 2(!8.16 288.16 
lncome Tax Relating To Items Tbat Will Not (29.22) (29.22) 
Be Reclassified To Profit Or toss 
Total comprehensive Income 27.20 1.39 2,184.11 27,047.13 29.259.83 
Dividends distributed to equtty shareholders (320.90) (320.90) 

Balance as at 31 Marth 2024- 27.20 l.39 2,184.11 26,726.23 28,938.93 

Profit For du:: year 4,188,20 4,188.20 

Oth~r comprchcnstvc income 225.27 225.27 
Income Tax Relating To Items That Will Not 47.43 47.43 
Be Reclassified To Profit Or Loss 
TotaJ ccmprehenslve income 27.20 l.39 2.184.ll 31,187.13 33,399.83 
Dividends distributed to equity shareholders (320.90) (320.90) 

Balance as at 31March2025 27.ZO 1.39 Z,184.11 30,866.23 33,078.93 
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Summary of Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory lnfonnation for the year ended 31st March 2024 

Corporate Information 
lndo Borax & Chemicals Limited {the Company) is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India .. The registered of6ce 
is at 302, Liok Rose, Linking Road, Santacruz (West), Mumbai· 400054. The Company is engaged in manufacturlngof'Boron products 
and Lithium. 

a) General information and Compliance with Ind A.S: 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards [hereinafter referred to 
astbe 'tnd i\S')as notified byMinistryorcorporate Affairs pursuantto section133 of the CompaniesAct.2013 read witl1Rule3 
o( the Companies [Indian Aca>unting Standards) Rules, 201 S and Cempanies (tndian Accounting Standards) Amendment 
RuJt"S, 2016. 
The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting polieles are applied 
consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements, including the preparation of the opening Ind AS Balance 
Sheet as at 1st ApriJ, 2016 being tbe 'dace of transition to Ind AS'. AU assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non 
current as per the Companys normal operating cycle and other c:ritcria as set out in the Division U or Schedule 1.U co the 
Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and thetr 
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. the eo-n\pany has ascertained i~ operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of 
current ornon-cnrrent dassification of assets and liabilities. 
Authorisation of financial statements 
The financial statemcnts ef the Company for the year ended 31stM.arch, 2025 were approved for issue maceordance with the 
resolution oftbe Board of'Directors en Bth May. ZOZS. 

bJ CUrrentversusnoncurrentdassification 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in [he balance sheet based on mrrent/ non-current da.ssification. An asset is 
classiflcdaseurrenrwhen itis: 

L Expected t.o be reahsed or intended to sold oroonsumed in normal operatiag cyele, 
ii, Held prtmarilyfor thepurpose of trading. 

iii. Expected to be realised within twclve1nontl\S after the reporting period, or 
iv. cash or cash equivalent unless restricted f'rom being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at Ieastrwetve months 

after thereportmgperiod, 
All other assets are classified as non-current, 
AliabiJity is classified as current wb en : 

L It is experted to be settled in normal operating cycle 
ii. It is held primarily for ll1e purpose of trading 

iii. I tis due to be serried within twelve months after thereportingpertod, or 
iv. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after die reporting 

period. 
AJJ other liabilltiesare classified as non-current. 
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash 
equivalents. Deferred taxassets and ti.abilities arectasstfied asnou-currenrassetsand liabilities. 

c) Property, Plantand Eqaivment: 
Property. plant and equipment are stated at their eest of acquisition.. Th.e cost comprises purchase price. borrowing cost if 
capitalisation criteria are met and clircct.ly amibutablc costofbringingtheassct to icsworking condition for the intended use. 
Subsequent costs are in duded in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset. as appropriate, onty when it is 
probable that future economie benefits assodated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and malntenance 
costs are recognised in statement of profit and toss as incurred. 
Subsequent measurement (depreciation and usefuJ lives) : 
Depreciation on property. plant.and equipment is provided on straight Hne method on assets located in Factory premises. The 
company bas followt.-d written-down value method of providingdepreciatioo with respectto assets located at Head Office. The 
Depreciation iscomputed on the basis oruscful lives (assetoutbclow) prescribed in Sdtcdule II the A<-1:: 
The amortisatlon period and the amortisation method for finire-.life intangible assets is reviewed at each financial year end 
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Leasehold improvements have been amortised over tJ1c estimated useful life of the assets or the period of lease. whichever is 
lower. The residual values, useful lives and method or depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted 
prospe<'l:ivdy, if appropriate. 
De--ttrognitioo 
An iretn of property, plant and equipment and any signific.ant pan-initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when 
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset 
[calculated as the diJfercncc between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the 
income statementwhen the 3.SSC'ti.s de recognised. 
Transition to Ind A.S 
o·o transition co Ind AS, the Company bas elected to continue with the carrying value of all its 1>roperty. plant and equipruenr 
recognised as at 1stA_pn1, 2016 measured as per the provisions of previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed 
cost or property, plantand equipment. 

d) lmpainnentofnon-fmanciatassets 
At each reporting date, theCompanyasscsscs whether there is any indication based on inten1aJ/exten1al factors, that an asset 
may be tmpaircd. If any such indication exists. the Con1pany estimates the recoverable ameuntcfthe asset If such recoverable 
acnount of the asset ortbe recoverable amounr of'the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than us canying 
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and me reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is 
recognised in the statement ef profit and Joss. All assets arc subsequently reassessed for indications that an impainnentloss 
previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment loss is reversed if the asset's er cash-generating unit's recoverable 
amountexcccds itscarrytng amount, 
The impaimnent losses-and reversals are recognised in statemenrcf profitand loss. 

e) lovestmentsinSubsidiary 
Investments in subsidiary is carried at cost less accumulated impalrmcnr losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment 
exists. the carrying amount or the investment is assessed and written down Immediately to its recoverable amount. On 
disposal of mvestments in subsidiary the dilference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized 
in the StatementofFrofitand Loss. 

I) Financial instruments 
Financial assets 
Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial asset.sand financial liabiJltiesarc recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provtstons oftbe 
financial instrument and are measured initiallyatfairvalueadjusted for transaction costs. 
Subsequent measurement 

L Financial instruments at amortised cost - the financial lnstrumenr is measured at the amortised cost if both the 
following conditions are met 

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is co hold assets for coUccting contractual cash nows, and 
ContractuaJ terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash nows that are solely payrnents of principal and interest 
l SP Pl) on the principal amount outstandmg, 
After initial measurement, such financiaJ assets arc subsequently measured ar amortised cost using the ctfcctivcintercst 
rate (EIRJ ntetboclAU the debtjnstrumcnts oftbe eompaoyarc measured atamnrtised cost, 

Description q( .Asset Csd..1n~tec.l 11 ... tful Hf1.· 
(in years) 

()ffu·<! HuikHog- 6-0 
Factt>.ry Buiklin~ 3() 

Pbm and ccuineoem 20 
Offlce C<'luiPllM::ru 5 
c;.,01pnt(lrfi J 
Eleemc.mscallerion 10 
Futrul~ and fixtures Iii 
vehicle:; ~ 

and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
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Trade Receivables and Loans: 
Trade- receivables arc initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at amortised cost. using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future 
cash incoincthrough the expected life of'financiaJ instrument. 
Mutual Funds, Eq_uityinvesttnent, bonds and other financial instruments: 
Mutual Funds. Equiry Investment, bonds-and otherfinancia1 tnstrumcnts in the scope of Ind As 109 are measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income (FVfOCI). 
Financial liabilities 
Initial recognition and measurement 
AU financia.l tiablllties are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that isattrib-utable to the acquisition of the 
financial liabflities isalso adjusted. These liabflities are classified as amortised cost. 
SUbsequeot measurement 
Subsequent to initial recognition. these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective: interest method 
These liabilities include borrowings. 
De~recognitionoffinancial liabilities 
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another rmm the same lender on substantially different terms, or the re mis of an 
existing liability arc substantialty modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de- recognition of the 
originaJ liabiUty and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respeenve canying amounts is recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss. 

g) lmpairmentoffinancial assets 
In accordance with Ind AS 109. the Company applies expected credit Joss lECL) model for measurement and recognition of 
inlpairmcntlossforfinancialasscts. 
ECL is the ditfe:1'Cncc between all contractual cash llowsthatarc due to the Conlpany ill accordancewilh the contractand all the 
cash Dows tharthe Company expects to reeeive. When estimating the cash flows. the Company is required to consider. 

L AU conrraetual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life otmcassets, 
ii. cash flows from lhe sale of collateral held cr ethercreditenhancements that are integral to the contra(."tuaJ terms. 

Trade receivables 
The Con1pany applies approach permitted by tnd AS 109, financial instruments, whict1 requires expected liretirne tosses robe 
recognised from initial recognition of receivables. 
Other financial assets 
For recognition or impairment Joss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has 
been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition and if credit risk has increased significantly. impairmem 
loss is provided. 

b) Inventories 
RawMatcriaJ: Lowe-rof costornct realisable value. Cost is determined on first in first out ('FtF01) basis. 
Work in progress, are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Costof wol'k in progress and manufactured finished 
goods comprises direct materis], cost of conversion and curer costs incurred in bringing these inventories to their present 
location and condition. 
Finished goods: Lower or cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined on FIFO basis, includes direct material and labour 
expenses and appropriate proportion of1nanufactu.ring overheads based on thenormal capacity for manufactured goods. 
Net realisable value is the esrimated selling price in the on.tiuary course of business less estimated costs of complctiou and 
estimated costs of necessary en make the sale. 

i) Foreign Currency Transactions 
lnitial recognition 
The Company's finaociaJ statements are presented in JNR. which is also the Company's functional currency, Transactions in 
foreign currencies arc recorded on initial recognition in the functional cuJTCncy at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of 
me transaction. 
Measurementatthe balance sheet date 
Foreign currency monetary items or the Company, outstanding at the balance sheet date are restated at the yeat'-'eod rates, 
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Non~monctary items which 3J'C carried at historical cost deuominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange 

rate at the date o(the cransaction. Non-monetary Items measured at fair value in a foreign current.)' are translated using the 
exchange rates at the date when the fairvaluc is determined, 
Treatmentorexdlangediffe:rence 
Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monctaryitents oron reporting at each balance sheet date of the Company's 
monetaryttemsartne dosing rate are recognised asinoome or expenses in die period in which they arise. 

j) Income taxes 
Tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum or deferred tax and current tax not recognised in 
Other Comprehensive Income ('OCI') or directly in cquiiy. 
Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authoritiL'S in aa:ordancc with the Indian 
lncome-tax Act. CUrrent lncemc-tax relating to uems recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside 
statement of profit and loss (either in OCI crtn equity). 
Deferred iacome-tax is calculated using the liability method, DefCJTC-d tax liabilities are generally recognised in fuU for aU 
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss. 
unused tax credits or deductible temporary ditfcrenee will be utilised against future taxablc'income, This is assessed based on 
the Contpany's forecast of future operating results, adjusted tor slgniflcan; nen-taxable income and expenses and specific 
limits on me use of any unused tax toss or credit. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re .. assessed ateach reporting date and 

are recognised tD the extent that it has become probable that furore taxable profits will a.How lhe deferred tax asset to be 
recovered. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates tharare expected to appJy in the year when che asset is realised 
or the liability is settled. based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 
date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outstde statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of profit 
and loss L eithe~in oa or inequlty], 

kJ cash and cash equivalents 
cash and cash equlvalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits with banks/corporntions and short· term highJy liquid 
invcsDnents (original maturity less than 3 months] tharare readily convertible into known amount of cash and arc subject lO 
an insignlficanttiskof change in value. 

I} Post·eml'loyment, long term and sborttenn employee benefits 
i) SbortTenn Employee Benefits 

All employee b-encfits payable witbln twetvc months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term 
employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages. bonus and ex-grana, 

ii) Defined conlribulionplans 
Employee benefits in tlleform of contrlbution to Provident Fund managed by Govcmmentaulbotities. Employees 
State Insurance Corporation and Labour Wclfa.re Fund are cousidered as defined oontribution plan and the 
contributions are charged to the Profit and Loss Account of the year when die contributions to the respective funds 
are due. 

iii) Defined benefit plans 
Retircmeutbenefit In the form o(Gratuitybenefiti'i considered as defined benefit obligation and is provided for on 
the basis of an actuarial vaJuation. 

iv) Gratuity 
The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. 
The plan provides for payntentto vested employees at retirement, death whiJe in employment or on tcnnination of 
employment of an amount based on the respective emptoyee's salary and the tenure of employment Vesting occurs 
upon completion or give-n years of service. The company makes contribution to employees group gratnity fund 
established by Llfe Insurance Corporation of India. AttuariaJ gains and losses arising from changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognised in me Profit and Lossaccounrin the period in whicl\ they arise. 
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m) Operatingexpenses 
Operating expenses are recognised in profit or toss upon utilisation of the service oras incurred. 

n) Borrowingrosts 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisitions, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised 
during the period of nme that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing 
costsareexpensed in the period in which they arc mcurred and reported in finance costs. 

o) Fair-value measurement 
The Company measures financial instruments, at fair value a teach balance sheet date. 
Fair value is-the price that wuuJd be received to seU an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date, The fair-value measurement is based on the prcsumpdou that the transaction to 

sc.ll the asset or transfer the U .. ability·rakes place either 
L In the principal marketfortheassetorliabilicy, or 
ii. ln the absence of a principal market, in lhe rnost advantageous marketf or the asset oellabltity 

The principal orthemostadvanrageous marketmustbe accessible: by the Company. 
Thefairvalue or an asset or a Habilityis measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the 
asset or liability,assun\ing thatmarketpartlcipants act in their economic besttnterest, 

p) Provisions. contioge-ntassetsand contingent liabilities 
Provisions arc recognised only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate or the 
amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to 

rctlel't. the current bcstestimates, Provisions arc discounted to their presentvalucs, where the lime vaJue otmoncyts matcrtal, 
Continge.n r liability is disclosed for 

L PossiblcobUgationswhicb will be confirmed only by future events notwhollywithin tbccontrolofthe Company or 
Ii. Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable. that an outflow or resources will be required lO 

settle the obligation ora reliable estimate of the amountefmeobllgation cannot be made. 
Contingent assets are notrecoguized, However, when inOowof economic benefit is probable, related asset is disclosed. 

q] Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the nerprotitor Joss tor lhe period attributable to equity shareholders [after 
deducting aaributable taxes) by the weighted average number or equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted 
average numberer equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus issue. 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or Joss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number or shares outstanding during the period are adjtJsted for the effects of aU 
dilutive potential equity shares. 

r) SigoificantmanagemeotjlJdgementinapplyi.ng accoanling·policiesand estimation uncertainty 
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumpnenstnataffcct the reported amounts or revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disdosures. 
Significant manegemen tjudgemen ts and estimates 
Tile following arc significant management judgement') and estimates in applying lhe accounting policies of the Com-pany that 
have the- most signiflcantcffecrcn the financial statements, 
Recognlnen of deferred tax assets-The extent to which deferred taxassetscan be recognised is based on an assessment of the 
probabilityorthe future taxable incorueagainstwhlch the deferred taxassets can be utilised. 
Evaluation of indicators for hnpatrment of assets - The evaluation of applicability or indicators of hupairment of assets 
requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the 
assets, 
Recowr ability of advances/receivables ... _At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over expected 

life, the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstmdingrecrivablesand advances. 
Defined benefit obligation (DBO) - Management's esnmate or the 080 is based on a number of critical underlying 
assumptions such as standard races or inHation. medical cost trends, n)ortality. discount rate and anticipation of future salary 
tncreases. Variation in these assumptions may signific.antlyirnpattlhc DBO amountand the annuaJ defined benefit expenses. 
Fair value measurements - Management a pp-Hes V'J.lua:tion techniques to determine the fair value or financial instruments 
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(where active n1arket quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how 
market participants would price the instrument, Management uses the best informancn available. Estimated fair values may 
vary from the actual prices that wouJd be achieved in anarm's Jen.gt.h transaction atthe reporting date. 
Useful Jives or depreciable/amortizabJc assets - Managen1ent reviews its estimate or the useful lives or depreciable I 
amortizable assctsateacb reporting date. based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to 

tcchnic.al and economic obsolescence. 
s) Revenuerecognition 

Sales of goods 
The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of manufactured goods, traded goods and related services. 
The core principle of' lud AS 115 is that an entity should recognise· revenue to dcplcrthe transfer of promised goods or services 
to customers in an amounrmat reflects the consideration to which the c.ntii:y expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods 
orsc:rvices.Specific.alty. uie standard introduces a s.~stcp approach to revenue recognition. 
Revenue is recognized on satisfaction or performance obligation upon transfer of concrol of products to customers in an 
amount that reflects the consideration the Compaey cxpec:tsto receive in exchange for those products. 
Stepl : ldentifythecon1ract{s}witharustomer 
Step2 : ldentifytheperfonnanceobligationincontract 
Step 3 : Determine the transaction price 
Step 4 : AUocatc the transaction price to uie performance obligations in the contract 
Steps : Rcoognlserevenuewheo(orasJtheentitysatisfiesaperforntanccobligation 
Under Ind AS 11 Sf an entity recognises revenue when l or as) a performance obligaliou is satisfied. t.e. when 'control' of the 
goods or services underlying the particuJar performance obligation is transferred to the customer; The Company has 
completed itscvafuatlou of the possible lmpactortnd AS 115 and has adopted the standard fron11st April, 2018. 
lnt:erestlocome 
lnterest tucomcts recognised on an accruaJ basis using the effective interest method, 
Dividend 
Dividends are recognised atthctime thc righrto receive the payment is established. 

t) Segment Information 
The managing committee is considered to be the ·chief Operating Decision Maker' (CODMJ as defined in IND AS 108. The 
Operating Segment is the levc:I at which discrete financial Information is available. The CODM allocates resources and assess 

performance at this levet, The Company bas one operating segment i.e. Chemic-.t.l Manufacturing whid1 indudcs Boron 
Products and Lithium Hydroxjde. 

u) AccountingforLease 
Company-as a lessee 
1l1eCompauy applies a single recognition and measuremenrapproaeh for all leases. except forsnort-term leases and leases of 
low value assets. The Company recognises lease UabUitiesto make lease payments and right<()f..,use assets representing the 

right to use the un der1ying assets. 
A~ per Ind AS 11-6, the lessee needs to rccogmsc depreciauen on rlghts of use assets and finance costs on lease liabilities in the 
statcmemofprofltand loss. 
leases where the tessoreffcctivcly retains substantially aJJ the risks and benefits or ownership of the leased item are classified 
as operating leases. Operating lease paymenrs arc recognised as an expense in die Statement o(Profitand toss on a straight· 
line basis over the lease term unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to 
compensate tor the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases. 
Company-asalessor 
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards iacidental to ownership of an asset arc 
classified as operating leases. Rental income a.rising is accounted for on a stralght-fine basis over the lease terms. Initial direct 
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added ro t.he canying amount of the leased asset and 
recognised over the lease term on the same basis-as rental tncomc. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in 
whid1 thcyarceamed. 

vJ Gove:mmentGrants 
Govcm1ncnt grants / subsidies received towards specific fixed assets have been deducted l'rom the gross value of the 
co nee med fixed assets. Gap ital Subsidies under MP MSM E Protsaban Scheme, 2017 is recognised to the extent the claims are 
accepted and settled. 
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Note. (•l The amount refclceted In capital werk in progress represents advance gtven for allcuuem of UnJt /Flat No. 1601 and 1602 for 
preljtct named Avenue 5•1 at S. V. Road, Sa:ntac1·uz {\Vest) Mumbat ·400 054. 

Particulars Amount rn capital work-iu-progress for a penod of 
Total L('SS than 1 vear 1 ·Z vears 2·3 vears f\1ore than 3 vears 

Clpit::al work-In-progress (•) . . I . llZ.52 112.52 
I 

. . I . L 12.52 ll 2.S2 

Ageing (or capital work-In-progress as al l\'tarch 3 ! . 2024 ts as follo\vs: 

c.aoital wurk-In-nroercss 
Amount in canttal work-in-progress for a nertod of 

Particulars Less than l ye.1r J·Z years 2-3 YO<lfS More than 3 years Total 

Capital IA101'k•lt1•pl'OgteSS {'°l . . . 112.52 112.52 
Addlncn . . . . . 

. . . 112.52 112.52 

Note 2 · Cpaital Work In Progress 
Agclog for cap Ital work-tu-progress as at (\.ta.rch 31, 2025 Is as follows 

• Ncte . t>uring the year Distrtct Industrial (enter. Pithampur (Madya Pradesh) had sancauoned and approved Rs. 172.77 Lakhs { Previous year 
Rs. Nllj Industrial Invesuuent Susbsrdy, same has been de-ducted lrum the Cost Plant & Machinery & Factory Building. 
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Summary of Signillcant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2025 
Note 1 -Property, plant and equipment lAmounts are in Lakhs unless stated otherwise) 

Furniture 

Particulars Buildings 
l1xlUJ'C Plant and Office vehicles Leased Total and offlce.· machinery equlpmeuts land 

equipments 
Gross blot.•k 
As at Aptll 01, 2023 ll06.9S 127.66 1347.14 72.83 559.36 10.06 3224.00 
Additions 198.14 12.61 244.87 4.YG 2.47 463.0S 
Deduction 
As at March 31, 2024- 1305.09 M0.27 1592.01 77.79 561.33 10.0~ 3687.05 
Additions 0.29 24.41 648.24 672.94 
(Mdu<.i.iou 9:J.70 79.06 172.76 
A..'i 3t l\la.rc:b 31. Z02S 1Z'll.39 140.56 1512.95 IOZ.20 1210.07 10.06 4187.23 

F11t111turc 
PartJcuJars BuJldlogs fiXtUl'C Pinnt and Office Vchldl?s Leased 'l'uta.l and otnce- mOlJch1nery equlpmeuts Land 

equl1>n1ents 
Accumutated dce,reciation 
As at A1>rll nt, 2-023 444.82 111.qe 6S·8.73 64.<;7 114.16 1594·.36 
Deprect~don charge during the year 35.69 6.82 45.99 3.88 135.95 228.33 
Deduction 
As at ~Jorc:h 31, 2024 480.51 118.80 904.72 68.SS 250.11 1822.69 
Depreciation charge during the ye:lt 38.92 4.34 SS.14 11.68 153.80 263.RS 
Deducrlon 
As at ftl;arch 31, 2025 Si9.43 123.14 959.87 80.24 403.91 2086.59 
Net carrytng amount as al March 31, 2025 691.96 17.42 SSJ.08 Zl.96 806.16 10.06 HOO.M 
Net carrytng ameuut as at Marth Jt. 2024 824.SB 21.47 687.29 9.24 311.72 10.06 1864.36 



liii) Fllirvaluc oflnvcstmcntpropcnyason 31st Ma rcn, 2025 is Rs.9093 /· Lakbs(9088/ · Lakbs) 

1.421.64 l.736.40 Tot:tl 

365.16 
1,056.48 

431.46 

1,294.23 

10.71 

Within l year 
Later than I year but not later than S years 
tater than S years- 

As at March 31, 2024 A$ at: ~tarch 31,202S Particulars 

[ii} Leasing arran9en11.~ncs 
P.1ininn1n1 lease payments receivable under uon-caneellable operanng leases ofinvestmeut properties are as tollews: 

304.20 308.57 Profit from rnvesunenr properties 

304.20 308.57 Profit from investment properties before 
depreciation 
Depreciation 

348.65 

(44.45} 

355.20 

(46.63) 

Rental Income 
Direct upcratlng expenses for property that 
generated rental Income 
Direct operating expenses for property that did not 
generate rental income 

As at March 31, 2024 A.~ at l\tart.h 31,2025 Particulars 

7,981.43 
7,981.43 Net carrying amount as at f\o1arch 31, 2025 

Net carrying amount as at Ptfarcb 31. 202-S 
(i) Atnounts ret(t!)nised fn the staten1ent of profit one/ Jc»ssjOr investment properties 

7,981.43 7,981.+3 Closing gross carrying amount 

7.981.43 7,981.43 

Gross block 

Opening gross carrying amount 
Addltioos 

As at March 31, 2024 Asat March 31,2025 Particulars 
Note 4 ~ Investment proJ>ertr 

10.15 10.30 

10.30 10.46 

0.15 0.15 

3.27 3.27 

0.20 0.20 
0.20 0.20 
3.26 3.27 

3.26 3.27 
0.00 0.00 

Operating lease commitments as oflst Aprll, 2024 

Lease Ccmrnltmern Ou ring the year 
Amorti1'..adon durrlng the year 

Undiscounted future lease payments from 
operating leases 
Effcc.:t or discour1tln~ 
Interest on leasehold ri2hts 
tease Habi.lltle-s as of March 31. 2025 
tease Heblllrtes non-current as of March 31, 2025 

Lease liabilities current as of ~1arch 31. 2025 

Summary of Signillcant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2025 
Note 3 . Right of use Assets (.An1ouncs are in l..akbs unless srated otherwise) 
Particulars Asat t\1arch 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024 
The Company recengnlsed ROU asserts for the followfng assets categcrtes: 
Lease hold land 
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131.lS 393.00 
nus 393.00 

2,082.ll 1.040.93 
0.03 0.03 

AJ)Src~te amounl or quoted investments 
Aggregate market value oflC.1L>d and quoted Investments 
AAA~i!le amount of unquoted investments 
A~n."gillt' amount uf Impairment in value or Icvestmeets 

No.O( Fore As at March No.or Fae< As at March Particulars Sh;1re/Bond Unit value 31, 202S Sh>re/Dond value 3·1, 2024 
Unit 

a) Investments l_n substdlartes : 
On quoted 
In Equity Instruments a_t cost, fully paid-up 
Indcberax Infrastructure Prlv-.tte Limited 110000 10 L,Q40.93 110000 LO 1,040.91 

Total 1,040.93 1,040.93 
Note S(a) ·NON CURRENT INVE~TMENTS 
Other Equity Instrnments : 
Unquotcd1 fully patd up 
Reliance ~te<lla works Ltd 6?5 . 675 . 
Investment lo Equity tustruments 
Quoted, fully paid up 
At Fair value through OCt 
Central Bank of India Ltd 3200 LO 1_17 3200 10 l.91 
taiprakesh Associates Limited 4500 2 0.14 4500 2 O.Ul 
Kantan\vnla Industries Limited 57395 10 6.51 57395 10 9.79 
Larsen & Toubro Limited 900 2 31.42 900 2 33.97 
Mphasts Ltrmtcd 300 . 300 . 
Nation;d Thermal Powel' Un1jted 3600 LO 12:88 3600 10 12:09 
runj Lloyd Llmitod .1460 2 0-04 1460 2 0.04 
Reliance Conuninucation Limited 2000 5 O.o3 2000 5 0.04 
Reliance Industries Llmltt<l 0 . 0 
Unity Prolects LJmitcd 2000 2 0.02 2000 2 0.0'1 
Nifty Bees 29918 I 78.74 . . 

Investemenr in Preference Shares· fuJly paid up 
Unquoted. 

Men:edes Beaz. Financial services Pvt Ltd 100 1000000 J.041.30 
AtF~fr value through OCJ 
NTPC Ltd. NQn Conv¢rtJb1e Oebe1Jt\lres . . 6000 12.5() 0.30 
Investment i.n Mutual Fund- fully p:1id up . 
Quoted . 
At Fair value through 00 . 
Bandhan r;rusll .. lBXG\lt fune, 2027 Index fund Regular . . 28,67.815.769 334.04 Plan Cro\Vlh 
(wtwhllc IDPC Crlsll lBX GUt June 2027) 

Total 1,172.45 393.00 

The company obtains independent valuations for its invesnnent in properties. The best evidence of fair value is current prices 
in an active marketfor similar properties. Where such information is not available. the company consider Information from a 
variecyofsources including: 

current prices in an active market for properties of different nature or recent prices of stmilar properties in less active 
markets. adjusted to reflect those differences. 
discounted cash Oow projections based on re.liable estimates of futurecash Jlows. 

capnahsed income projections based upon apropcrty'sestimated net markerlecome.and a capitaJisation rate derived 
from an analysis of market evidence. 

The fair values of investment in commercial properties have been determined by lndepcndentValucr It. Mehta & Associates. 
The main inputs used are the rental growth rates, expected vacancy rates, terminal yields and discount rates based on 
comparable transactions and Industry data AU resulting fairvalucestimates for investment properties are indudc-d in level 3. 

Notes -Ncn-currenr Investments (An1ounts are in l.akhs unless stated otherwise) 
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3,905.82 
3,905.82 

4.521.01 
4,521.01 

AJ)Src~t:e amounl or quoted investments 
Aggregate market value oflC.1.c.>d and quoted Investments 
AAA~i!le amount of unquoted investments 
A~n."gillt' amount uf Impairment in value or Icvestmeets 

Parncelars No. O( Share/MF As at l\tarc:h I No, or Asat~tarch 
Unit 31, 2025 Shllre/MF Unit 31,20Z4- 

Investment In 1'o1utual Fund· fully patd up ' 
Unquoted 
Al Fair value through OCt 
SBI Arbftr;lgie 01>1> Fund-Dtrect Plan 95,66,832.252 3,-025.21. 56,42, t 4 l.9lltl 2,3S6.S9 
lCICI Prudential balance Advantagl! Fund 9.05,759.639 69Y.61 9,05.759.639 646.17 
ICICI Prude:ntial C()rp CrP.dir OJ)p. Fund Q?,251.257 92.61 19.885.bSJ 20.15 
tCICt Prudcoti.al £t1ully & Debt Fund ) 3,319.525 54.39 80,205.%7 101.60 
IC:ICl Prudential F.quity Sav1ng.'i Fund lZ,46,560.70~ 272.00 3S,74,330.7W 724.'16 
(CICI Prudtnll.al Enhanced Dyna1nlc Fund 75,213.607 104.80 . . 
Kctak Equity Arbitrage Fund Regular Growth 1,64,471.255 (l0.66 . . 
ICICI Prudential 1-tulti Asset fund Direct Growth 7,061.067 SS.SO . . 
SUl Arbitrage Opportunlly Fund- Regular Plan- Growth . . 1,93,452.929 56.85 
B~n.:lh;u1 t:RISll. lRX Gjit June, 2027 Index funct Regular Ptan 12.40,039.393 155.931 . 

-"'3;905:82 l Growth 
(erstwhile IDFC CJ'ISll IBX Cllt June 2027) 
Total 4,521.01 

2,238.39 4,706.75 Total 
Note 9 - Current invest:ments 

2,066.19 
50.60 
14.48 

107.12 

4.527.03 
70.64 

0.26 
108.82 

Raw materials (Refer note 26) 
Stock In Process 
Finished goods 
Stock of Consumable Stores & Spare parts (at cost) 

As at March 31.2024 As at March 31, 2025 Particulars 

59.94 7 025.64 Total 
Note 8 - Inventories 

59.94 61.38 
790.00 

5,850.01 
324.25 

Unsecured, considered good 
Security Deposits 
Fixed Deposit with banks 
Fixed Deposit with Corporates 
Interest Receivable 

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2025 Particulars 

573.15 564.98 Total 
Note 7 -Dther Non Current l'inancial Assets 

64.11 54.57 

Other loans and advances, unsecured, considered good 
Loans to employees 64.1 I 

1.37 

54.57 

Provision for doubtful advances 
1.37 
1.37 

509.04 509.04 

Summary of Signillcant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2025 
Note 6 · Loog term loans and advauces (Amounts are in Lakh.< unless stated otherwise) 
Particulars As at March 31,2025 As at March 31,2024 
Loans· lntercorporare Deposits 
Inter Corporate Deposits (Refer Note No. 44) 
Advances recoverable In cash or kind 
Unsecured, considered good 
Other loans and advances, unsecured, considered good 
Advance inrnme-tax{net of provision for taxation) 
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Nate :Deposit with government authorities includes 58,62.806/{ Previous Jl"ar Rs. 1.58.62,806/·) [Deposit or Rs. 61,55,946/· 
(Previous year Rs. 1.61,55, 946/·) less input tax credit taken 1.awards IGST of Rs. 2, 93.140/ • (previous year Rs. Z.93, 140/·) depositwith 
custom department, 

374.65 787.39 Total 

65.58 
61.34 
79.42 

168.30 

28.32 
362.37 

53.86 
342.64 

P-repaid expenses 
Deposit with govt. authorities (refer note below) 
Advances to Suppliers 
Others 

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2025 Particulars 
Note 14 · Other current assets 

11.98 U.26 
11.98 11.26 Loans to Employees 

Total 

Asat Marcb 31,2024 As at Marth 31, 2025 Particulars 

Note: Unclaimed divdiend are not due for deposit to the Invest.ors Education and Protection Fund. 

Note 13 ·Short term loans and advances 

56.64 59.69 Total 

32.79 
25.85 

32.79 
26.90 

Margin money deposits 
Unclaimed dividend account (refer a note below) 

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2025 Particulars 
Note 12 • Other bank balances 

1.1,058.56 3,851.19 Total 

526.18 
8,614.00 
l,754.67 

162.05 431.70 

641.04 
2,778.00 

J.66 0.45 Cash on hand 
Bank balances 

- Current Account 
· Pixed Deposit maturing within 12 months 
- Investment in Liquid Mutual Fund 
• Interest Receivable on Fixtl Deposit Maturing 

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2025 Particulars 
Note 11 · Cash and cash equivalents 

lhnt~iing (!,jf foll111rini; pttltoils - 6x di« c,f rl~llll"lll Ous~undinc Wr foH(rliing !)('.I~ frwo dm: da~ ()( ~ymen' 
P~rtf(\llats L<ssW.6 6mc.ntll5· 

t·Z}lS. Z·l Mt1rellun 31·03-2021 Pa1'Cicul.ars l.e$s-tb:an 6 6 months· l·lyrt. 2·3)·~ MorE th.in 31'0H0:!4 
m<inrt'A lyt.31 yrs. )yn;. 111<1ntb~ I year 3yrs. 

(i) Und:lputcd'l'r.id< [I) Un<bp•~d 
rectr.•11b!es- 1,448.17 0~2 UA2 o.w 0.0! J,46051 1't<i~ 1tm1•.abk-S• l.319.15 0.06 0~8 0.10 1.3611.19 
con~dtr~dg,:i1Jd ro11sldtn:d &(lod 

(ill Undlfl)u1'<1Trol!e (II} Undl'J)•"'1 
R-oW..· . . Tr;idt ltt«i'f •11les· . 
Coosi~r'd Doub\fu! C6nsit!ered OoobUul 

(ill) Dlsp11ttd Tt><le [Ill) Dlspu"d 'll'a<le 
Rtttn'llbfd . . R""'ohltl 
cot1s.i~reC. g<ir.J tvllSi~g<>od 

(ivJ Dispu1£<11'ra&> (iv l Dilj>ulad Trad. 
ftmr,.abh-l 11a12 . . . 118.22 Rtirrn•abtes 
ron~ldtl't'.d do1.1Mful t'Onsi1k-red dwbdul 
Tot.ll 1,506.39 0.62 11.42 0.28 O.ll2 1..178.73 Tot;I 1,359.75 0.06 0.88 0.10 . 1,360.19 

Summary of Signillcant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2025 
Note 10 ·Trade receivables (Amounisarc in Lakhs unless stated otherwise) 
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As al March 31, 2025 As at March 31 2024 - 
Nan\e of the shareholder %holdlog %qfch:mgc % hohlltt& in •b~ % of eruiugc Nos. ofSban>s lnlhe during rue NOj. o(Sb1U'eS cbss dnrinl'! lh'l yc::1r d3S$ 'ft:ilr 

Equity Shares Eou1tv shares of Rs .l/· oer share 
Mr. SaJal fain 84.55.390 26.35 . 84,55,390 26.35 . 
~irs. Sreelekha fain 20,77,020 6.47 . 20.77.020 M7 . 
Mr. Saumya laln 46,30.810 14.43 . 46,30,8)0 1M3 . 
?.,rs, Pranfka Jai11 JO . . 10 
t-1rs. Shubhra laln Slveradlcu 2,32.000 0.72 . 2.32,000 o.n . 
Sajal [nln. Karta or HUF 9,05,000 2.82 . 9,05.000 2.B2 

[d] DetailsorPromoter holding (as per the register of members of the Company are as under): 

As at March 31., 2025 As at Mar.:h 31, 2024 
Na1ne of the shareholder Nos. of 'Yo holding in the Nos. of Shares o/o holding in 

shares class the class 
Equity shares ofRs. J f -each fully paid 
Mr. Sajal loin 84.~S.390 26.35 84,55,390 2(..35 
~1rs. Sreelekha Jain 20,77,020 6.47 20.77.0ZO 6.47 
Mr. Saum ya Jain %,30,810 H.43 46,30,810 14.43 

lb) Tenns/ rightsattached toequityshares 
The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of R.~ 1/· per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to 
one vote per share. The company declares and paysdividendo; in l:ndi:ao rupees, The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors 
Is subject to the approval oftllesharcboldcrs in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
ln the eventofliquidation of the Co1npany. the holders of equity sharcswUI be entitled to receive remainlng' assetsof thc Company, 
after dlstribution or all preferennal amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders. 
Thed1stributioo will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the equity shareholders. 
During last five years no shares were alloted without payment being received in ca.cob or as bonus shares, however company were 
bought back and extinguished 2,72,000 equitysharesduriug the financial year 2014· 15. 
Amount originally received on roreilCd shares Rs. 1.39,350/ • ( lnduslve or share premium) indude<l in Reserve& Surplus 

[c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5%sbares in the Company 
(as pertbc register of members of the Company arc as under] 

32090000 32090000 

32090000 32090000 Balance as at 31$t March 2024 
Changes during the period 
Balance as at 31st March Z025 

Nos. Nos. Equity Shares 
(a) Reconctltation of the shares outstanding at the beglrming and at the end of the reporting period 

320.90 320.90 
320.90 320.90 

322.80 
322.80 322.80 

600.00 600.-00 
Authorised shares 
60000000 F.qulty Shares of Rs L/~ each 
(Previous Year 6-0000000 Equit)• Shares of Rs.1/­ 
Issued, subscribed shares 
32280000 Equity Shares of Rs l{· each 
(Previous year 3Z280000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1{ -eacb) 
Issued, subscribed and fulJy paid-up shares 
32090000 Equity Shares of Rs. l{· each 
(Previous year 32090000 £<1uity Shares of Rs. 1{· each) 

As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024 

lAmounts are in Lakhs unless stated otherwise) Note lS -Share.capttal and other equity 
Sh.are ca Ital 

Summary of Signillcant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2025 
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Note O· ra e nava es 
Outst•tnding for tolluwing periods lrom 31·03·2025 Ou1st·ou1ding fur fullowiog periods fn>m 

31·03·202• 
Partieul>1rs due d:ate ofpayn1~nL Particulars due: date ofpa,t"ftH.'-nt 

Less than 1·2)'!'S.. 2·"3 yrs. More than l'ot:i.l Less than 1 L·2 yrs. 2~3 yrs. More than Total 1 vr. 3vrs. vr J vrs. 
ilMSME 2.62 . . . 2.62 n MSME!. . . . . . 
rm Others 0.01 I 25.93 . 5'.19.80 (Ul Others I n&.0•1 I 19.35 I S.70 12.lS I 363.25 
(iii) D1spu1od . . . . (iii) Disputed . . . . . 
d1;e:1·MSME 1.h)~S· MSME 
(iv) Disputed . . . . . (iv) Dispurcd . . . 
dues- Others dues-Orhee, 
l'ut.:il 2.6j 2S.93 . . 542:.43 i·otoil 326.04 L9.3S 5.70. IZ.LS 363.25 

2 T d bl 

3.26 3.26 Tola! 
3.26 3.26 tease t.iability 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 202" Particulars 

Total 
Note 19 ~ Lease Liabilities 

8.33 3.80 
8.10 

8.33 11.90 

121.59 134-.15 

47.43 

169.02 134-.15 
!60.69 122.25 

160.69 122.25 

TOTAL OF DEFERRED r AX ASSETS 
Deferred tax llabtllry arising on account of Difference 
between accounting base and tax base of PPE 
Deferred tax liability arising on account of Financial assets at fair value through OCI ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
TOTAi, OF DEFF.RRED TAX l.IABll.ITY 
Diff. between accounting base and tax base orPPE 

Deferred tax liabl1ites ilrlsing on account of: 
Deferred tax asset arising Oil account of Provision for employee benefits 
Deterred tax asset arising Oil account of Finauctal assets at fair value through OCI 

As at ~larch 31, 2025 As ac M•m:h31. 2024 Parnculars 
Note 18 ~ Deferred tax liabilities 

135.30 184.04 Tor-JI 
135.30 181.04 Leased Deposits 

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2025 Paruculars 
Note 17 ~ Other non-current financial liabilities 

Closing Balance 
TOTAL 

General Reserve 
Balance Brought Forward 
Transfer from Surplus In P'roflt and Loss Account 

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss 
Balance as per me last financial statements 
Profit for the year 
Dividend distributed on equity shares 

1.39 1.39 
1.39 1.39 

2,184.11 2,184.1 l 

2,184.11 2,.184.11 

26,726.24 22.94·6.95 
4,460.90 4,100.18 

320.90 320.90 

30,866.23 26 726.23 
33 078.93 28,938.93 

e) Final & Interim Dividend on Equity Shares 
Final dividendofRsl (Le.100%) perequityshareofRs 1/· eachfcrthe Flnandal vear ended March31,20Z4on3209000 equity 
shares declared by ShareholdersatAnnual General Meeting held on 27th August, 2024 

Note 16 ·Other Equity (Amounts are in Lakbs unle.<S >"lated otherwise) 

Reserves and Surplus As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 
Capital Redemption Reserve 27.20 27.20 
Balance Brought Forward 27.20 27.20 
Share Forfeiture Account 
Balance Brought Forward 
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19,130.30 17,526.11 
8.49 

16.12 

19.121.81 17,509.99 

Sale of products comprises: 
Manufactured goods 
Sales of Boron Product & other chemicals 
Traded goods 
Sulphuric Acid 
Chemicals & others 

19130.30 17,526.11 

19,121.81 
8.49 

17,509.99 
16.12 

Operating Income: 
Manufactured goods 
Traded goods 

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2025 Particulars 

Provision for grarutty (netj(Reler Note 29) 204.51 173.23 
_P_ro_v_is_1_on~fo_r_L_e_~v_e~(R_e_~_e_r_N_or_e_2_9~)~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~5_4_._08~~~~~~~-39.99 
Total 258.59 213.22 

Note 24 -Revenue from operations 

As al March 31, 2025 Asat March 31, 2021 Particulars 

Total 

Note 23 -Employee Benefit Obligation 

Particulars 
Note ZZ ~ Current Lease Liabilities 

Total 

a) Statutory dues payable 
b] Salaries due to director 
c) Advance received from clients 
e) Other Liabilities 
d) Unclaimed Dividend 

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, ZOZ4 
292.08 324.75 
448.14 381.12 
104.63 80.84 

7.98 10.72 
26.90 25.85 

879.73 823.28 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

Lease Liability 

Note 21 -Dther current financial liabilities 

NIL NIL 

NIL NIL 

NIL 0.11 

NIL NIL 
2.6l 

(al I.he principal amount and the Interest due thereon {Lo be shown scparatcly) remajning 
unpaid lo any suppJier al the end of each acceunungyear 

(bl the amount of intc:rcst paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro. Small and 
Medium Enterprtses Dcvelopmeru Art.. 2.00(, (27 of 2006). aJong with I.he amounl uf the 
paymemmadc to the su pplicr beyond the appointed day du ring t.oacb accouanngyear 

(cl the amounlofintcrc,.1:duc and payable for the period of dclay in making payment (which 
has been paid but beyond the appctnted day during the yt.-ar] but without adding the 
Interest specified under the Micro, Small and Mt...Jium Enterprises lkvclopme-nlAd..2006 

(dl the amountufintcn:staccruc.>d and remaining unpaid attheend of each accounti~year 
[e] I.he amount of further intcn."Sl remaining due and paydb)e even in the succeeding years, 

until such date when the Irucrest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, ror 
I.be purpose of dlsallowance uf a deductible cxpt"nditure under section 23 or the Mlcro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Oc."VelopmentArt, 2006 

A.s at ~i::trch 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023 Particulars 
(") OETAllS OF DUES TO MICRO ENrERl'RJSESAHO SMALL ENTERPRISES 
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14.48 57.66 
50.60 50.42 
65.08 100.08 

0.2() 14.48 
70.63 50.61 
70.89 65.09 
(S.01) ~2.99 

Inventories at the beginning of the year 
Finished goods 
Work·ln~prugrc-~s 
Inventories at the end of the year 
Hnlshed goods 
\V<irk~in~progress 

As at March 31,2025 As at March 31,2024 Particulars 

15.23 Total 
Note 28 • (lncrease)/Pecrease in inventories 

15.23 Sulphuric Acid 
As at March 31,2025 As at March 31,2024 Particulars 

Note 27 · Purchase of Traded goods 

100.00 10196.22 100.00 8,182.61 

93.81 
6.19 

9,564.71 
63151 

89.27 
10.73 

7,304.98 
877.63 

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 Percentage As at March 31, 2024 Perce11tage 
Raw Materials 
(i) Imported 
(ill Indigenous 

(b) Value of imported raw materials consumed and the value of all indigenous raw materials similarly consumed and 
the percentage of each to the total consumption. 

Total 
(a) Raw Materials Consumed Comprise: 
Boron Ores 
Sulphuric Acid 
Borax Pentahydrate 
Others 

Less; Closing Stock 

9,713.82 6,066.85 
558.30 519.29 
331.45 2'.!.89 

39.88 91.02 
]2,709.C,4 12,262.41 

4,527.03 2,066.19 
8,182.61 10,196.22 

7,304.98 9,564]1 
557.59 522.55 
289.33 18.76 
30.71 90.20 

8,182.61 10.196.22 

2,066.19 5,561.36 Opening Stock 
Add: Purchases 
Boron Ores 
Sulphuric Acid 
Borax Pentahydrate 
Others 

Particulars As at March 31,2025 As at March 31,2024 

1,101.39 1,475.08 Total 
Note 26 -cosr of materials consumed 

Summary of Signillcant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2025 
Note 25 .. Other incon1e (An1ountsare in l.akhs unJessstatcd otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31,2025 As at Marc.h 31,2024 
Divideud income from investments 49.11 0.55 
Interest received 780.59 531.01 
Interest received on Debenture 0.01 0.17 
Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Investments 121.78 90.74 
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation 143.25 128.30 
Misc. income 0.15 0.70 
Rent & Facility Charges 355.20 348.65 
Sundry Balances w /back 3.10 L27 
Sale of Sera 21.59 
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taJ As per Accounting Standard 15 "E1nployc.-cbcncfi13"", the disclosures as defined in the Accounting Standard arc given below: 
Defined Contribution Plan: 

Conoibution to Provident Fund is Rs. 58.96 Laklls/· (PreviousYearRs.49.67 Lakhs), ESICand Labour Welfare Fund lndudcsRs. 
3.93 Lakhs· (Previous Year Rs.3.70 Lakhs). 

Defined llenefit Plan : 
Graw:ity and Leave Encascrnent: 

The Company makes partly annual contribution to the Employees' Group Graruil)"1:um..-Llfe Assurance Scheme of the Life 
Insurance Corporation of India, a funded benefit plan for qualifying entployccs. The scheme provides for lump sum paynlcnt to 
vested employees at retirement, death while in cmpleymentor on termination of empioymentof an amountequbalent te 15 days 
service for each completed year of service or part thereof depending on the date of joining. The benefit vests after five years or 
continuous service. 

Summary of Signillcant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2025 
Note 29 ·Employee benefit expenses (Amounts are in Rupees unless stated orJienvi 
Particulars As at March 31,20ZS As at Manh 31,2024 
Salaries. \i\tages, Bonus & Ex~gr-atia 1.336.04 1, 118. 70 
Contribution to £.S.1.c: 3.93 3. 70 
Conrributton to Provident Fund 58.96 49.67 
Prevision /Contribution to C.ro11p Gr:1t11lty and LIC 20.36 6.26 
Workmen & StaffWelrareexpcnses l0.87 10.38 
Total 1,430.16 1,188.71 
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The esttmates of future salary increases. consldered In acurartal valuation, take acccum of'Inflarton, seniority, promotion. 3nd other relevant 
(actors, such as: supply and demand in the employment market 

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate 

6.84% 7.23% 
5.00% 5.00% 
7.00% 7.00% 

6.84% 7.23% 
S.00% S.00% 
7.00% 7.00% 

Discount Rate 
Employee Turnover 
Salary Escalation 
Mo1t11!ty 

Leave Encashment Non Funded 
AsatMar·cb31, AsatMarcb31, 

2025 2024 

~:.pep§rs (or the ye~r 
Current service cost 
Prior service cost 
Interest cost on benefit obligation 
Expected return on plan assets 
Net actuarial (gain)/los.s recognised in the year 
Total Ex)1ense.o; Recognised tu the Profit and Loss Account 
Ren1ea~yre1nent effgc:ts retogn!ztd In other CQmprehensh•e !t1cna1e 
Acturtal (gain)/L.osses due to Demogrnphlc Assumption changes in DB( 
Acnu-tal (gain)/Losses due to Financial Assumption changes in 080 
Actuarial (Gain)/Losses due to Experience on 080 
Return on Plan Asets (Greater.}/ Less than Discount rate 
Net actuarial {gain)/los.s recognised U1 the-year 
Total Actuarial (gain)/loss included in OCI 

Assumptions 
Gratuity Punded Non Funded 
As at March As at March 31, 

31,2025 2024 

23.78 

23.78 

39.99 

39.99 204.51 173.23 
173.76 146.54 

30.75 26.69 

18.46 15.14 

13.14· 11.03 
(11.24} (19.91) 

20.36 6.26 

7.86 5.57 
(2.90) 4.62 

1.94 2.61 

6.90 12.80 

NII 

19.59 
(Jq,59) 

19.59 
(19.59) 

39.99 
(19.59) 

35.81 
23.78 

35.93 

35.93 

54.08 

54.08 

NIL 

21.84 
(21.84) 

21.84 
(21.84) 

54.08 
(21.84) 

39.99 
35.93 

12.36 11.03 
4.96 10.20 

(4.50) {18.4-3) 
204.51 173.23 

146.54 l'.l9.61 
11.24 10.50 
(1.94) (2.62) 
22.42 7.42 
( 4.50) (8.38) 

173.76 Mii.S<I 

14ii.54 139.61 
9.30 7.89 

22.42 7.42 
(4.501 (8.38) 

173.76 146.54 

NII NII 

Recouciliatlon of openill~ and closing balances oftbe present value. of the defined benefit Oblij.!ation: 
Present Value or obligation as at beginning of year 173.23 155.29 
Current service cost 18.46 IS.Vt 
Prior service cost 
Interest cost 
Actuarial (gain)/ loss 
Benefits paid 
Present VaJuc o( obligation as at end of the year 
Change in Plan assets 
Plan assets 3l period beginning. al fall· value 
Expected return on plan assets 
Act11a.rial (gain)/ loss 
Contribution 
Benefits paid 
Fair value of Plan assets at end of the year 
Fajr yalue oCP!an Assets 
Fair Value of plan assets at beginnjng of year 
Actual return on plan assets 
Contrlbutions 
BcnefiL< p•ltl 
Falr Value of plan assets at the end Qf year 
Funded s~'HUS 
Excess of Actual over eselmaeed return 
The Amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet and 
statements of profit and loss 
Present value or (tbllgatfons as at the end of year 
Fair-value of plan assets as at the end of the year 
Funded status 
Net as>et/[liability) recognized in balance sheet 

Leave Encasbment Non Funded 
As at r.tarch 31, Asat March 31, 

2025 2024 

G·ratulty Funded Non Funded 
AsatMarch AsatMarcb31, 

31,2025 2024 
Assumptions 
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Total deferred tax expense/(benellt) 

Total current tax expense 
Deferred tax 
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets 
(Decrease )/increase in deferred tax liabilities 

1,522.50 1,357.40 
(13.77) 

1,508.73 1,357.40 

85.87 (50.85) 
85.87 {SO.SS) 

1,594.60 1,306.SS tncome tax expense 

Current tax 
Current tax on profits for the year 
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March :n,2024 Particulars 

a) imported 
b) Indlgenous 
Note 32 -Taxation 
-tncome ta» expense 

Particulars 
Consumable Stores & Spares and Packing: 
Total 

Stores, Spares and Packing 
Power & Fuel 
Repairs & Maintenance {Building} 
Machinery & Electrical Repairs 
Water Charges 
Factory Expenses 
Insurance Charges 
Repairs-Others 
Rent and Other Charges 
Rates & Taxes 
Donation 
Freight, Coolie & Cartage 
Commission and Brokerage 
Corporate Soda! Responsibility Contribution 
Travelling and conveyance 
Telephone charges 
Printing & Stationery 
Directors Sitting Fees 
Vehicle Expenses 
Auditors' Remuneration 
Legal and Professional charges 
Bank Charges 
Goods & Service Tax 
Advertisement & Sales Promotion 
General Expenses 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024 
411.74 490.57 
612.53 838.07 

2.95 20.96 
188.12 107.29 

15.34 18.08 
376.25 404.51 

12.65 11.01 
27.30 7.43 
81.23 83.92 

3.04 2.84 
2.51 2.91 

43.03 41.60 
764.93 839.06 
111.00 110.00 
126.58 83.67 

3.70 4.14 
3.78 3.01 
1.89 1.80 

22.54 19.39 
9.00 9.00 

373.73 222.99 
0.61 2.17 
1.37 0.82 

86.16 78.50 
32.44· 2331 

3 314.43 3,427.05 

As at March 31, 2025 As at MaJ'Cb 31,2024 

411.74 490.57 

Particulars 

Summary of Signillcant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2025 
Note 30 ·Net finance costs tAmounts are in Lak:h.s unless stated otherwise) 
Particulars As at March 31,2025 As at March 31., 2024 
Interest on Working Capital 0.64 0.05 
Other Interest 17.25 0.55 
Total 17.89 0.60 
Note 31 -Other expenses 
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Note 37 - Details of Related parties transactions are as under: 
a) List of related parties and relationship where control exists or with whom transactions were entered into: 
Subsidiary 
lndoborax tnfrastrucrure Private Limited 

Key Management Personnel 
Mr. Sajal fain, Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer 
Mr. Govind Parmar, Executive Director 
Mr. Sachin Gupta, Independent Director 
Mr. Yatin Shah, Independent Director 
Mr. Yogesh Patil, Independent Director 
Mrs. Minakshi Mittal, Independent Director 
Relative of Key Management Personnel 
Mr. Saumya Jain, Chief Executive 

9.00 9.00 

4.50 
1.50 
3.00 

4.50 
1.50 
3.00 

As Auditors 
Tax Audit 
Other Services 
Total 

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2025 Particulars 

36.84 9.71) 1. Foretgn Travels 
2. Others 
Note 36 · Remuneration to Auditors: 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024 Particulars 

9.589.71 8,230.05 Raw l\iaterials 
Note 35 -Expeudlture In Foreign Currency: 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024 Particulars 

J,841.24 
3.20,90.000 
3,20,90,000 

11.97 
11.97 

4.188.20 
3,20,90,000 
3,20,90,000 

13.05 
13.05 

Profit after Tax 
No. of shares outstanding 
Weighted Average No. of shares + potential shares o/s 
Earning per share (Basic) 
Earning per share (Diluted) 
Note 34 - Value Oflmports Ou C.J.f. Basis: 

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2025 Particulars 

8.00 
39.91 

1,357.40 

43.83 
(29.93) 

58.60 
(69.73) 
(12.36) 

65.37 
8.67 

16.54 
1,522.50 

income tax expense 
Non Deductible Expenses 
Deductible Expenses 
Deduction Available 
'fax on income at different rate 
Imerest ou Income Tax 
Others {net) 
Total Income tax expenses 
Note 33 - Earning Per Share: 

Summary of Signillcant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2025 
The reconciliation of estimated income tax expenses at Indian statutory income tax rate to Income 
tax expenses reported in the statement of profit & loss is as fo1lo\vs tAmounts arc in Lakhs unJess stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024 
Profit before taxes 5,782.80 5,147.79 
Indian statutory income tax rate 25.17% 25.17% 
Expected income tax expenses 1,455.42 l,295.60 
Tax effect <>f adjustments to reconcile expected lncome tax expense ta reported 
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level 3 : inputs for the asset or liabilicy that are not based on observable ma.rk:etdata (unobservable inputs). 

Level 2 : The f.airvalue of financial instruments that arc not traded in an active n1arket is determined using valuation techniques which 
maximise the use of observable market data and reJy as.little as possible on entity specific estimates. 

Level 1 : quoted pricestunadjusted] tn acnvemarkers foridenticaJ assets or liabilities; 

Financial assets and financial Ji.abilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three 
levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of significant Inputs to the 
measurement, as tOllows: 

Note 38 · Financial instrume.nts 
i) fairvalueshicrarehy 

Sr. Subsidiary Cotnpany Key ft1anagement Personnel Relatlves of Ke)' 

No. 
Particulars J.h1nageriaJ Person 

20Z4-2S 2023-24 2024·25 2023·24 2024--25 2023·24 

I Outstanding Payables 
-,..ir. Govind Parmar 1.40 1.30 
Mr. SaJal Jain 446.74 379.73 
~ir. Saumya Jain 4.44 2.07 

z Out.st.anding Receivables 
Sajal [atn 4.80 4.80 

c) Amount outstanding at the year end 

ransac tons unng re year wi re a e par es: f Amounts are in l..akhs unless slated otherwise 

Sr. SubS'idlary Company l<~y lt1anag~nu~nt: Personnel Relatives of Key 

No. Particulars r.tanagcrlal Person 

ZOZ4-Z5 Z023·24 2024-ZS ZOZJ-24 Z024-Z5 ZOZJ-24 

l lndoborax lufrasn-ncutre Private Ltd - - - - - - 
2 Payments to & provtsiou for Directors' 

remuneration 
Mr. Govind Parmar 19.35 18.11 
Mr. Sajal laln 598.13 531.23 

3 Rent Received from K~tP 
~1r S<1.Ja1 ja1n·R~11t Recelved 57.60 57.60 

3 Salary to Relatlvt> 
Mr. Saumya [aln 8!.41 64.71 

4 Directors Sitting fees 
t.ir. Arun Sureka, Independent. Director - 0.45 
~4r. N.K. ~!ittnl, Independent Director - MS 
~1r. Sachin Gupt:!I. Independent Director U.Sl 0.$1 
Mrs. Sreelekha Jain, Non-Executive Dlreceer 0.2·~ 0.30 
"tr. Yatin Shah, lndependent-Directur M2 0.03 
"1r. Yogesh P;ttil. Independent Director 0.4S 0.0() 
Mrs. ~linl.'ksh.i Mittal, Independent Director 0.27 - 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Otber Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2025 
b) T ti d ti 'th I t d ti 
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(fi) The Company does not bavc any Benami prop;:rty, where any proct>clinghas been Initiated erpendtng againstthe Company 
foraoyBen.ami property. 

(iiii) The Company doesnethave anytransaetion with rompanies strueknff 
(Iv) The: Company docs not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the st.arotory period. 
( v) The Company has not traded ormvested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. 
( va) The Company has nor been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial instlwtion or government or anygovemn1ent 

authority. 
(vii) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds 10 any other person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities 

(Intermediaries) with me undcrstandingthatthe Intermediary shall; 
(a) di:rertlyorindtrecdy lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever-by oron behalf or 

the company (Ulthnatc Beneficiaries) or 
(b J provide any guarantee, security or the like to oron behaJf of the Ultin\ate Beneficiaries 

(viii) The Company has not received any fund from any persou(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ('Funding Party) with 
the undcrst:mding(whether recorded in writingorotberwise) that the Company shall: 
(a] directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by oron behalf of 

the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
lb) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf orthe Ultimate Beneficiaries, 

(ix) The Company docs not have any transaction wbldt is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or 
disclosed as incomeduriog the year in the tax assessments under the lncomc Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any 
other relevant provisions of the Income TaxAtt. 1961. 

Agregate Amount Amount 
Name utilised disclosed as Amount as 
of the working during Quarter ended per per books Difference Reasons 
Bank caplral limit the quarterly of account sanctioned quarter statement 
l<otak 1035.00 . 30-06-2024 1,7Z5.56 1.783.25 {57.69) Primarily certain expenses 
Mahin 1035.00 . 30-09-2024 1,535.31 1,57 J.15 {35.84) forming part offinish goods and 

dra 1035.00 - 31-12-2024 6.226.09 6.294.2'1 (68.lS] seml-Ilulshed goods were not 
Bank 1035.00 31-03-2025 1.649.19 4,667.43 (18.24) included in the quarterly statements 
Ltd - 

(ii) Valuation process and technique used LO determine fair value 
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include; 
The use of quoted market prices for investments in shares and mutual funds. 

Note 39 • Other Information 
i) The company has filed quanerly return orstatements with me bank Jn lieu or the sanctioned working capital facilities, which 

are Jn agreementwith the: books of accounts other than those as set out below 

As at 31 March 2025 Levell Level2 Leve13 Total 
Financial assets 

Investments at fair value through Other Comprehensive lncome 

Shares 1,172.45 . l,040.93 2.213.38 
Mutual funds 4,521.01 . . 4,521..01 
Other . - . 
Total financial assets 5,693.46 . 1,040.93 6,734.39 
As at 31 March 2024 Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total 
Financial assets 

investments at fair value through Other Comprehensive lncome 

Shares 58.66 . 1,040.93 1099.59 
Mutual funds 4239.86 - . 4239.86 
Other 0.30 . 0.30 
Total financial assets 4,298.82 - 1,040.93 5,339.75 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Olher Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2025 
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value· recurring fair value measurements 

(Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise] 
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The Company's risk management is carried out by a central treasury department of the Company under policies approved 
by the Board orDirectors. The Board ofDircrtors provide written principles roroverall risk managcment.aswell as policies 
covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk. interest rate risk, market risk. credit risk and investment of excess 
llquidity. 

A) Credit Risk: 
Credit risk is the risk that a eustomcror oounterpartytoa financial tnstrumcnrwin fall to perform or pay amounts due to the 
Company causing financial loss. It arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and financial instirutions. 
scrurity deposits, loans given and principally from credit exposures to customers rcla:ting co outstanding receivables. The 

Po.rlfoljo dlversiflt:al1011 Sensluvtty <\!.o<ilysts tnvestmenrs in equity, Muto al fund 1-1ru·kl"l risk· St!CUrity price 

The ulexilc and other raw 
111.alt'rial Is pl1N'hllSe at the 
pre,•:in1og prtce Ircm supplters. 

Market risk • Utr.xin:, Litbium & 
other raw· merertal prim 

Mix cf borrowings taken at 
fixed and Ho3ting rates 

Sensitivity anaJysis Borrowings at variable rates Market risk · interest rate 

1'1c1tt'ri~I bl)ugh1 ()n receipt uf 
<.f(l<:ll•nenrs.. If nv1terfal bvug}n 
011 credit same are hedged. 

Cash flew forecasting 
Si!'nSibvity analysis 

R('oogniscd 6nancial assets and liabilities not 
denommated jn Jndli.ln rupee (k:>.J 

Ma.rk<:'t risk • lon:ign 
exchange 

Av:1ll~billl;y of ccuuntrted 
credit lines and borro,vlng facilities: 

Rf>lllng e1Sh now 
rerecascs 

Borro\Y-ln~s ;111d other liabilities Liquidity risk 

IJauk deposits, dtverstttceticn 
<>fas.set base, credit Urnits 
and C'>ll.3:l'Crat 

Aging analysis 
r~h end cash equivaterus, trade recewcbles.desweelve 
financial instruments, nnandaJ assets measured at 
('morflsed oost 

Credit risk 

Measu.r.:me11.t ~usurt ~rlstu.g Irom IUsk 

a) The carryingvalue of trade receivables. securities deposits, insurance claim receivable. loans given, cash and bank balances 
and other financi.aJ assets recorded at amortised cost, is considered to be a reasonable approximation offalrvaluc. 
The carrying value of'borrowtngs, trade payables and other financial liabHities recorded at amortised cost is considered co 
bea reasonable approximation of fairvaluc. 

il) riskmanagement 
The Company's activities expose it co marker nsk, liquidity risk and credit risk. Th:is note explains the sources of n'skwhich 
the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements: 

at March 31, 2025 As at March 31.2024 
Particulars FVTOC:l Amortised Cost Amortised Cost FVTOC:I 

Financial assets; 
Investments 
mutual funds Shares and Bond 6,734.39 . 5.339.75 . 
Loans 
ro others . 65.83 . 76.09 
to other body corporates . 509.04 - 509.04 
Trade receivables . l,578.73 . 1,360.79 
Securtty deposus - 61.38 - 59.94 
Cash and cash equivalents . 3,851.19 . 11,058.56 
Undni1ned dividend accounr . 26.90 . 25.85 
Total 6,734.39 6,093.07 s 339.75 13 090.27 

Financial Lfabllltles 
Borrowings . . . . 
Trade payables . 542.43 - 363.25 
Other financial tlablltrtes . 1,063.77 . 958.SB 

Total 1,606.20 . 1,321.83 

lAmounts are in Lakhs unless stated otherwise) Note 40 -Ftuauctal Risk t.fanagen1ent: 
i) f'lnancial Instruments by Ca_rtagory: 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Olher Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2025 
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BJ Liquidity risk: 
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of 
funding through an adequate amount of cornmittcd credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature or the 
business, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability undcrcomtnitted facilities. 
Management monitors roJJing forecasts of the Company's liquidicy position and cash and cash equivalents oo the basis of 
expected cash nows. The Companytakes into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates. In addition. the 
Company's fiquidltymanagement policy involves projecting cash nows in mejor curreneics and considering the level of liquid 
assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory 
requiremcntsandmaintainingdebtfinancingp1an.o;. 
Finandnganange1ncnts 
TI1e Company had obtained credit facility of R<. l 035 L.akhs from Kotak Mahindra Baok Ltd. however thesame has not been 
uttlllzed, 
Cont.TaCt.Ua1 m.aturitiesof fiuanctal liabilities 
The tables below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maru:rity groupings based on their contractual 
manrrities for all non .. derfvanve financial liabilities. The amounts disdosed in the table are tbe contractual undiscounted 
cash nows. Balancesdoewithin 12 monthscquaJ theircarryingamounts as the lmpacr of discoonting' is notsignlficant, 
Refer Note No. 20 forlheTrade payables bifurcation. 

C) Market risk· foreign exchange 
The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign current')' transactions. primarily with respect to US 
Dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a <.'UJTCncy that is not the 
Company's functional currency. The Company, as per its overall strategy unports raw materials on the basis of market 
demand, The Company does not use forward contracts and swaps forspeculanve purposes. 
Sensitivity 
The sensitivity to profit or Joss from changes in the exchange races arises mainly from financial instruments denominated ln 
USO. lo case of a reasonabty posstbte change in lNR/USO exchange rates of+/· 2% [previous year +/·2%) at the reporting 
date, keeping all other variables constant, there would have been an impact on profitsoONR 239.67 l..akbs (previousyearlNR 
H156L.akhs). 

1,360.79 1.578.73 

1,2'13.81 
29.76 
75.45 
10.73 
l.04 

1,348.34 
95.51 

2.87 
36.51 
95.51 

Nol due 
0-30 days past due 
31..UO days past due 
61-90 days past due 
f.1ot-e than 
"rounded olTto nil 

As at3 I ·Mar·24 As at 31·Mar·2S Particulars 

Company's maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carryingamountoffinancialassetsrecogni!ied at reporting date. 
The Company eontinuousty moniters defaults or customers and other counterparties, identified either individually or by the 
Company, and incorporates this infonnation into its credit risk controls. Where available at reasonable cost, external credit 
ratings and/or reports on customers and other counterparttes are obtained and used, The Company's policy is to deal only 
witJ• aeditworthy counterpartics. 
ln respect of trade and other receivables, the Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any singtc 
countcrparty or any company of counter-parties having sintilar characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a large number-of 
customers in various parts of lndia. The Company has very limited history of customer default, and considers the credit 
quality of trade receivables that arc not past due or impaired to be good. 
The credlt risk for cash and cash equivalents, mutual funds, bank deposits, loans and derivative financiaJ instruments is 
considered negligible.since thecounterparties are reputable organisations with high qualityextemaJ credit ratings. 
Company provides for experted credit losses on financial assets by assessing individuaJ financial mstnnnents for expectation 
of anycredit losses, Since the assets have very low credit risk;. and arc forvaried nanrresand purpose, there is no trend that the 
company can draws to apply conslstcndy to entire population. f'Or such financial assets, the Company's policy is to provides 
for12 month expected credit losses upon initial recognition and provides for lifctin1e expected credit losses upon significant 
increase in credit risk. The Company does not have any expected loss based impatrment recognised on such assets 
considering their tow credit risk nature, though lncurred Joss provisions arc disclcsed under each sub-category of such 
financial assets. 
Detail of trade receivables that are past due is given below : 
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3,.20,90,000 

3,20,90,000 (I) Final dividend for the ye3r 

Dividends 
E<auilv shares 

The sensitivity to profit or loss in case of an increase in price of the instrument by 5% keepingaJI other variables constant 
would have resulted in an impact on profits by INR 56935 Lakhs (previous year INR 429.88 Lakhs ). 

Exposure from trade payables: 
Cornpany generally import on adavance payment or on payment at the time or receipt documents. lf there is any 
transaction ctfmpcrts on credit basis, then such trnsaction is hedged. 

Notc41-Capital Management: 
The Company's capita) management objectives are: to ensure the Contpany's ability to continue as a going concern, to 
provide an adequate rcrum to shareholders. The company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amountof equity 
less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the fare or balance sheet 
The Maoage.ineut assesses the Con1pany•s capital requirements in order to malntain an efficient overall financing 
structure while avoiding excessive leverage, This takes into account the subordination levels oftbe Company's various 
classes or debt. The Company manages the capitaJ structure and makes adjustments to it in the light or changes in the 
economiccondltionsand the risk characteristics of the underlying assets, 

The company monitors the capitaJ on the basisoffollowing ratios: 

Sensitivity 

E) Price risk 
Exposure from investments in mutual funds : 

The Contpany's exposure to price risk arises from investments in mutual funds held by the Contpany and cJassified in the 
balance sheet as fair value through other comprehensive income. To manage its price risk arising from investments in 
mutual funds, the Co1npany invest only in liquid funds. 

The sensitivity to profit or Joss in case or a reasonably possible change in interest rates ot+]» SO basis points Iprevious 
yc.>aJ": +/·SO basis polnts], keeping all other variables constant. would have resulted in an impact on profits bylNR0.006 
Lakhs (PrcviousycarlNR 0.002 Lakhs] 

ii) Assers 
The Company's financial assets arc canied al: amortised cost and are at fixed rate only. They are, therefore. not subject to 
interest rate risk since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows wiJJ nucruatc because of a change in market 
interest rates. 

'fot;iI Bon-owlngs 

Sensitivity 

Variable rate borrc w 'Ing 

AsatJl·Mar-25 AsatJl·Mar-24- Particulars 

(An\Ounts are tu tashs unless SWlCd orherwtse) BelowlstheoverallexposureoftheCompanyroinreresrrarerisk: 

D) lnterestrarerisk 

1) Liabilities 
The Company's policy tsro minimise Interest rare cash ftowriskexposureson long-term financing. At31 March 2025, the 
Companylsexposedmcrumgesinmamr!nterestraresthrougbbankbonowingsatvariableinreresrrares. 
lnll!rest rare risk exp<>.<UJ'C 
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45 Corporate Social Responsibility: The Company has inrum.'<I LNR 111-00 lakbs (previousyearlNR 110.00 l.akhs) towards Social 
Responsibility activities. It is included in in the Statemenrof Profitand Loss, Fun.her; no amount bas been spent on construction/ 
acquisition of an asset or the Company and the entire amount has been spent in cash, The amount required to be spent under 
Section l 35 of the Companies Act. 2013 for the year 2025 is INR 110.57 lakhs i.e. 2% of average net profits for last three fmancial 
years. calculated asper Section 198 of the CompaniesAct.Wl 3. 

44 Inter Corporate Deposit con.<ist of a sum of Rs. 509.04 l.akhs given to M/s. Radius Estates Projects Private Limited lfonneriy 
known as Ytshwaroop Realtors Prlv;ite Limited. Thi! said company is in the process of corporate insolvency resolution process 
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy code, 2016 llBC). The company bas filed itsdaim as financial creditors as per tberegulation 
B of the IDC rode for the said outstanding amount. The company is awaiting the outcome from National Company Law Tribunal 
(NCLT). Due to uncertainty in reahzation of the said debt and pending a decision of NCLT the company continued not to provide 
interest on me said loan during the financial year, 

c) The company bas created a fixed deposit or Rs, 31 Lakhs marked lien in favour of Customs towards securi:r:y against 
imported raw material. 

bJ Balance instalment towards work-in-progress of Rs. 2086.06 Lakhs. payable on t11e basis of various stages of completion 
of projectoverthc period of five years. 

a) In 1992. STC oflndia Ltd had claimed for Rs. 9.02 l.akhs towards price dlll'ereucc & ethers, against this, Honourable 
Bombay lligb Court ordered Company to givebankguaranteeofRs. 1.65 LakhslPreviousyea1·Rs. 1-65 Lakhs) 

43 CommitmeotandContingentl.iabilty: 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Olher Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2025 
Note 42 -Dlsctosure t\'1tb res:pc:-ct lo Ratio: 

Ratio Nun1cralor nenomtnator Curn.•nt Previous % vartance Reasons 
Period Period (or Variance 

(a) Cum:nt l~tio cerrem A:rsets <:umonl l.l~bility R.73 LZ.47 ·30.00% R>?fcr Note 

{h) Debt Equity Ratio Borrowings- lntere51 Tot11! Equity 
accrued 

( c) Debt Service Nt..'t (J)vfil ~Iler "r;tJt Dt.1bl St!nrice. ":" 249.81 6,738.81 ·9629% Redu<.tio1l W<i.!> primarily 
Coverogt r(Jdo • nepeecratten • Interest & lA.•a:w on account or 

lutf:rc~t • lns5 on saie llf payments +Prlnclpal increase In 1.irQfll before 
t;:-11' and increase m 

l-'b1<:<l A$er,: Rep.:iyrnents pay1nentof interest. 

ld) uerum on Eql1ity R.<ldo Ncl Pnifil ~((er 'l'ax "''et:ige 13.05 ll.97 9.03')\ 
Sbareh(Jlder'!I Refer-Not<-' 
Equity 

( e J Inventory turnover ratio Con t.1f Goods.sc>)d or sales Avtar.'lgt: l11VeJIWI')' 2.•19 Z,67 ~6.99% Refer Note f0penin~ tnvenrorv 

lf) Trad~ Recetvabltos- NeL Cri!dlt Sales Aver.igc Acccums 11.92 14.4(J -17.72% R¢(erN<Heo 
Turnover r.:itio Receivables 

(g) Trade P:iy;.)blcs turnover ~ct f;n-dit Pun:m .• ~cs Average Trade ZJ.50 L9..()4 23.44% 
P:iy:ibl~> ReferNot·e 

[b] Net C:ipli:ll urrnover rauc NetS..1Je:1 \Yorklng C.uplr::tl 1.28 ·1.0~ 16.59% Rt-fer Note 

{I) Nti Prvlll R..<JU1J Ni:t P'vlTt Net S3lt$ 0.2~ 0.20 19.0'1% Refer N<>t.: 

(j) Retum en C'lplt.:41 Ernpluyed Earning before laterest C~pit:'ll E1npk1y1Xi 0.)7 0.18 ·L3U% ReferNort'- and taxes 

(le) Return on nwesemem Net Return :.ft-\~r T;ix Investments 0.11 0.13 -4-48% ReferN<1te 
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Place : Mu1nbal 
Date : 13th May, 2025 

Yatlu Shah 
Independent Olri:-ctor 
DIN.07155634 
Yogcsh Patil 
Independent Director 
OIN· 10464221 

Govind Parmar­ 
Execucive Direccor 
OIN·0355641 t 
Mlnaksbt ~tlttal 
Independent Director 
OIN~0722074'1 

Pravtn Chavan 
CollllJa;ny Secretary 

M.No.16857 

Anll)aln 
Partner 
Mernbcrshlp No. 039803 

Sachln Gupta 
Independent Directer 
DIN·09332 t 93 

Forand on bqhalfofthc Board Directors 
lndo Borax & Chemicals Limited 
SajalJain 
Managing Director & CFO 
DIN·0031485S 

Notes 1 to 47 form an integral part cf these financial statements. 
As per attached report of even date, 
For Bohra & ce., 
Chartered Accountants 
firm Registratioo No. I 364'J2W 

47 The previous year's figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to make in compliance with the current 
financial year. 

4-6 All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other 
criteria set out in t.he Schedule U I to the Companies Act. 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition 
of assets for processing and their realiution in cash and cash equivalents. the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 
months for the purpose or current- non current classification ofassets and liabilities. 
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Independent Auditor's Report 
To the Members oflNDO BORAX & CHEMJCALS LIMITED 
Report on the Audit oftbe Consolidated Financial Statements 
Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements oflNUO BORAX & CHEMICALS 
LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the 'Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its 
subsidiary together referred to as "the Group"), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 
31, 2025, and the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, the consolidated statement of changes in equity 
and the consolidated cash flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial 
statements, material accounting policy information and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred 
to as "the consolidated financial statements"}. 

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformlty with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their 
consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, of consolidated profit/loss, consolidated 
changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended. 
Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities forthcAuditofthe Consolidated Financial Statements section ofour report. We are 
independent of the Group in accordance with the CodeofEthics issued by I CAI.and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
Key Audit matter: 

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report. 

Other Information: 
The Holding Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. 

The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company's annual report, but does 
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors' reportthereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materiaUy inconsistent with the 
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done/ audit report of 
other auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
Emphasis ofMatter 

We draw your kind attention to the Note No.45 to the consolidated financial statement; The Group has 
given Inter Corporate Deposit in the nature of loan to one of the party, which has filed the application for 
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corporate insolvency resolution process under The Insolvency and Bankruptcy code, 2016. 
The Group has filed its claim as financial creditors as per the regulation B of the IBC code for the said 

outstanding amount. The Group is awaiting the outcome from National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT). Due to 
uncertainty in realization of the said debt and pending decision of NCLT Group continues not to provide 
interest on the said loan for the financial yearended31-03-2025. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
Management's and Board ofDirectors' Responsibility fortbe Consolidated Financial Statements: 

The 1 loldingCompany's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these 
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and 
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash 
flows of the Group including its Associates and Jointly controlled entities in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the 
Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and ofits associates and jointly 
controlled entities are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that arc reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. which have been used for the purpose 
ofpreparation ofthe consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the 1 lolding Company,as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities are responsible for assessing the 
ability of the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless.management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and 
jointly controlled entities are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and ofits 
associates and jointly controlled en ti ties, 
Auditor's Responsibility for tbeAudit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements ran arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughouttheaudiL We also: 
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(i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
Tbe risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override ofi nternal control. 

(ii) Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing an opinion on whether the Holding Company has in place an 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in 
place and the operatingeffectiveness of such controls 

(iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made bymanagement 

(iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis ofaccounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. llowever, future 
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a goingconcem. 

(v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlyingtransactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

(vi) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities 
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of 
the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of 
which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated 
financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors 
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by 
them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion 
We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other 
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent 
auditors regarding. among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them aU relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
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related safeguards. 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, the auditor determines 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. In accordance with the requirements of 
SA 701, the auditor describes these matters in the auditor's report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, the 
auditor determines that a matter should not be communicated in the auditor's report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication 

Other Matters 
a} We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiary whose financial statements reflect total assets 

of Rs. 1185.65 Iakh as at 31st March, 2025, total revenues of Rs. 83.33 lakh and net cash flows 
amounting to Rs. 83.33 lakh for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial 
statements .. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group's share of net profit/loss 
after tax of Rs. 62.33 lakh for the year ended 31st March, 2025, as considered in the consolidated 
financial statements, in respectofabove mention associates, whose financial statements have not been 
audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have 
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in 
so fur as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiary and our report 
in terms of sub-sections (3} and (11} of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid 
subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the 
work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements/ financial information 
certified by the Management 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements: 
L As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report} Order, 2020 ("CARO 2020"), issued by the Central 

Government ofladia in terms of sub-section ( 11} of Section 143 of the Act, we report that there are no 
qualifications or adverse remarks included by us in our CARO 2020 report issued in respect of the 
standalone financial statement of Holding Company which are included in there Consolidated 
Financial Statements. Hence this report does not contain a statement on the matter specified in 
paragraph3(xxi} of CARO 2020. 

2. As required by Section 143(3} of the Act, we report, to the extentapplicable, that: 
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors. 

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the 
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements. 

d, In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding 
Company as on 31st March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors ofits subsidiary company, incorporated 
in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, its associate companies and jointly 
controUed companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from 
beingappointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) ofthe Act 

f. With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 
Annexure. 

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in ouropinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 
I. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the 

consolidated financial position of the Group, its associates and jointly controlled 
entities- Refer Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements. 

ii. Provision bas been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under 
the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on 
long-term contracts including derivative contracts. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
company, incorporated in India. 

iv. (a) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries and associate 
companies which arc companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have 
been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such 
subsidiaries and associate companies respectively that, to the best of their knowledge 
and belief, no funds (which are material either individuaUy or in the aggregate) have 
been advanced or loaned or invested l either from borrowed funds or share premium or 
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or any of such subsidiaries and 
associate companies to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities ("lntermediaries1, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfof the Company 
or any of such subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associate companies 
("Ultin1ate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
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FRN No. 136492W 
Anil Jain 
Partner 

Membership No.048991 
UD!N No.: 25039803DMGPTN6132 

For Dohra & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 13"' May, 2025 

(b) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries and associate 
companies which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have 
been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such 
subsidiaries, and associate companies respectively that, to the best of their knowledge 
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate] have 
been received by the Company or any of such subsidiaries from any person[s) or 
entity[ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or any of such subsidiaries 
and associate companies shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf ofthe 
Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
[c) Based on the audit procedures, that has been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, performed byus and those performed bythe auditors 
of the subsidiaries and associate companies which are companies incorporated in India 
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or 
other auditor's notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub­ 
clause (i) and [ii) ofRule 11( e) contain any material misstatement. 

v) The dividend declared and paid during the year by the Holding Company, its subsidiary 
companies, associate companies and jointly controlled entities incorporated in India, is 
in compliance with Section 123 of the Act- 

vi] Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by the 
respective auditors of the subsidiary company incorporated in India, whose financial 
statement have been audited under the Act, the company; have used an accounting 
software for maintaining its books ofaccount which has a feature of recordingaudittrail 
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we and 
respective auditors of the above referred subsidiary company did not come across any 
instance ofaudit trail feature beingtampered with. 

3. The Group, its associate companies and jointly controlled entities incorporated in India have paid/ 
provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions ofSection 197 read with Schedule V of the Act- 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company and its 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgement including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note oo Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note"} issued by the !CAI and the 
Standards on Auditing. prescribed under section 143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reportingwas established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary company, which is the 
company incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)".] These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguardingofits assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the 
year ended March 31, 2025, We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of lndo 
Borax & Chemicals Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company") and its subsidiary company, 
which arc companies incorporated in India, as of that date. 

ANNEXURE 'A' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"] 
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Place: Mumbai 
Date: 13"' May. 2025 

In our opinion, the I lolding Company, its subsidiary companies, and its associate companies which are 
companies incorporated in India have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively 
as at March 31, 2025, based on tbe internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by tbe Institute of Chartered Accountants oflndia 

For Bohra & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN No. 136492W 
Anil Jain 
Partner 

Membership No.048991 
UDIN No.: 25039803BMGPTN6132 

Opinion 

Inherent Limitations oflnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because ofthe inherent limitations ofinternal financial controls over financial reporting. including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected Also, projections of any evaluation of tbe internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that tbe internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree ofcompliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on tbe 
financial statements. 

(1) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately and Fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets oftbe company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance tbattransactionsare recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

Meaning oflnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

subsidiary companies, wllich are companies incorporated in India. 
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Total equity and liabilities 

Notes 1to48 form an integr a 1 part of these financial statements. 
As per attached report of even date. 
For Bohra & Ce., 
Chartered Accountants 
firm Registration No. I 36492W 

Total uauntnes 

20 
2.62 

540.55 363.60 

21 879.73 8Z3.28 
22 0.00 0.00 
23 258.SY 213.22 

96.70 124.57 
I 778.19 152•l-.67 

35 669.49 31126.46 

2,100.64 1.,864.36 
ll2.52 112.52 

10.15 10.30 
7,981.43 7,981.43 

l,172.45 393.00 
565.32 573.15 

8,148.95 60.19 
20,091.46 10,994.95 

1,706.75 2.238.39 

4,521.01 3,905.82 
l,57R.7:l 1.360.79 
3.911.62 12,140.11 

59.69 58.64 
JL26 11.98 

788.97 415.78 
15.578.03 20,132.51 
35 669.19 31126.46 

320.90 320.90 
33 222.41 29.020.08 
J3,S43.3l 29,340.98 

33 543.31 29 340.98 

18,J..04 135.30 
l (•0.(jfJ 122.25 

3.26 3.26 
347.99 260.81 

J7 
18 
19 

Total equity 
LIABJUTl&S 
Non-current liabilities 
Otber- Plnanclal Llabll(tl(.!S 
Deferred T<1x l,iabilites 
Lease l.iabilitics 
Total neu-curreut Habtlltles 
Current liabilities 
Fluanclnl Habtlttles 
i. Trade ~W•bles 
Total outstanding dues CJ( mlcre enterprises and small enterprises 
T<11"1I outstanding dues of creditors other 
than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 
fl. Other tinanci<ll tlabllltles 
iii. Lease Unbilities 
Employee Benefit Ohligation 
Incuruc Tax Ltabtlltfes Net 

l::quily attributable to owners ot'Jndo 
Borax & Chen•icals lhnlted 
Non·contruUlng Interests 

1.5 
16 

Total current assets 
Tot<d assets 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Equity sh:irec.a1>ira1 
o.ber equity 

8 

9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
l4 

Total ucn-cerrent assets 
Current assets 
111 v 'entories 
Ftnandal assets 
I. Investments. 
ii., Trade receivables 
lit Cash and cash equtvatcnts 
iv. Bank balances other than {iii) above 
v. Loans 
Other current assets 

5 
6 
7 

l 
2 
3 
4 

Note As at March 31.2025 As at March 31,20H Particulars 
ASSETS 
Nen-currenr assets 
Property, plant and eqctpment 
c~1plta1 work-In-progress 
Riitht of Use Assets 
111 v -estment in Prcuerties 
tnvesunents tn Subsldtary 
financial Assets 
I. tnvestmenrs 
u Loans 
iii. Other Fin;:ind<il Assets 

(An1ouncs arc in l.akbs unless stated otherwise) Consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2025 
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225.27 288.!6 
~Mo (29.2:1) 

272.70 258.93 
272.70 258.93 

4,&23.23 4156.69 

4.250.53 3.897.76 

4-,250.53 3,8'97,76 

272.70 258.9:.t 

272.7(1 ZSS.93 

4,523.23 4.LS6.69 

•.523.23 4.156.69 

13.ZS LZJS 
13.25 12.15 

17,526.11 l'J,130.30 
L.559.26 1,177.49 

19,085.37 Z0,307.79 

8.182.61 10,196.ZZ 
15.23 

(5.81) 42.C:JIJ 
l,430.16 l,188.71 

17.89 0.60 
263.88 228.:l3 

3,315.28 3,427.62 
13 219.24 15 084.47 

S,866.13 S.223.32 

5,866.13 S,223.32 

1,529.73 J,376.41 
85.87 (50.85) 

1.615.60 J,325.56 
4,250.53 3,897.76 
4250.53 3,897.76 

33 E'arnin~s per share 
Basil.' 
Oiluted 
Notes 1to48 form an integr a 1 part of these financial statements. 
As per attached report of even date. 
For Bohra & Ce., 
Chartered Accountants 
firm Registration No. I 36492W 

'fqt:\I Cqtt11)r~hC:n$l't'e lntume anrtbmable tu: 
"' Owners oftbe.Comp:iny 
b) Nnn {;(mtrolling lntf'n:rt 

Otb!!r ComprebcnsJve Income anributable 111 • 
~) uwners .,r the Comp<1n)' 
h) Non Cantrolltn~ lnterest 

Total cemprehenstve Income tor the year 
Net l'rofit armbutabte ro : 
11j Owners oftbc Company 
bl Nc>1J Cuntt'Olllug 1nu·1~·s1 

OCl ror the year 

Profit for the year 

Consolidated statement of other cemprehenstve Income for the year ended f.1at"('.b 31, 2025 
Items rllor will be rec:lassifie<l to µrojit or /QS:i 
Tax relating to above 
o) ilcms Thar Will No1 B• Rtdass//1cd To Pro/11 Or loss 
b} Income T:lX Rtl.1tlng To Items That Will Not Be Recf::tssified To Pr1lfit<>r Loss 

Profit eom continuing operations 
Total tax C)l!peosc/(i.TCcllt] 
· Deterred tax 

32 
32 

Profit before tax 
lnrumc tax expense 
· Current tax 

Pront before excepttonal Items and tax 
Exce tlcual Items 

Tot.-tl expenses 

Total Income 
£;11,'J)eoses 
Cost o( r:'.IW mmenals and components consomed 26 
Purchase of traded goods 27 
(lncreasej/decrease m hl\1entorles or nn1shed goods. work-tn-progress and traded 
goods 2fl 
Employee benefit expenses 29 
Finance Cost 30 
Depredation expenses I 
Other expenses 31 

Continuing operations 
Revenue from operations :?4 
Othcl' Income 25 

Note A.satMar('h3·J,202S Asa.tMartb3t,2024 
Consolidated staten1ent of profit and loss for the year euded l\o1arch 31, 2025 (An1ounts are in lakhs unless stated other\visel 
Pardculars 
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lash and cash equlvalents at the beginning of the: year 
cash and rash equivalents at the end or the year 

Notes 1to48 form an integr a 1 part of these financial statements. 
As per attached report of even date. 
For Bohra & Ce., 
Chartered Accountants 
firm Registration No. I 36492W 

Nat cash generated from uperaung acttvittes 

8 Cash ftcwfrcm Investing activ1tlts: 
Purchase Qf property. plnnr and equipment 
Proceeds from sale of assP,~ 
Purchase of lnvestrneuts 
Proceeds from redemption of Investments, 
Interest received 
Dlvidend received 
Net cash used lo lo vesting activities 

C cash OO\\." frem nnanclng at.'1'.ivltfes: 
Interest pald 
Dividends Paid (Including DlvJdend Distribution Tax} 
Net cash generated e-om financing activities 

Ca~h generated from opcrdtlng ac:tivith.•s 
Income Ta:ic- Paid I ner] 

Opt>1-ating ptofit before workJng capita I changes 
Adjust1ncuts: Ior: 
Decrease/Increase In lnventortes 
Decrease/Ilncrease) In non-current tluaoctat assets: 
Decre;ase/fincre.ase) in current flnnnctal assets 
Occreasc/(inc:rease) In other current assets 
Increase In trade recetvebtes 
lncrease in trade payables 
tncrease Jn current financial llabHities 
Increase in non-current financial l.iahilities 
Increase In other provisions 

5,866.13 S,223.32 

264.03 228.49 
[62.28) (25.12) 

4.Z4 38.5-t 
48.79 

(6.90] (12.81) 
(49.10) [O.SS) 

(864.76) (607.28) 
17.89 0.60 

(696.88t (:l29.34) 

5.169.25 4.893.98 

!2,468.36] 3.550.o? 
(8.079.22) (20.2Sl 

(0.33] (6.9.2 
(373.19) 208.17 
(2'17.93) (81.67) 

179.58 22.76 
S6.4S (182.81) 
48.71 17.40 
45.37 22.12 

(10.808.92) 3.528.87 
(5,639.67] 8,422.85 

(1.559.3 I] (1,4 70.48) 
ll.55931) (1.470.48) 

(7,198.98) 6,952.37 

(672.93) (457.26) 
112.?i 

(5.531.33) (5,739.32) 
4,426.91 2,576.93 

8H.76 607.28 
i9.IO 0.55 

(690.72) (3,011.82) 

(17.89) (0.60) 
[320.90) 1320.90) 

(338.79) (321.50) 
[S.2211.49) 3,619.05 
12.140.11 8,521.06 
3,911.62 1.2,140.11 

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 202 5 tAmounts are in Lakhs unless stated otherwise) 
Particulars As at March 31. 2025 As ac "1arch 31.,2025 A.sat March 31, 2024 

A Cash Oo\V from operating acttvittes s 
Prolit before tax 
Adjustmen.ts for: 
Depredation and aruortlzanou (or the }'e-.ar 
(l°'rbfit)/Loss on sate of lnvestrnent fN<.!l) 

Ind As effect UQUIO FUND OCI 
Assers written off ocl 
Actuari:tl tgnin)/Joss forming part of OCI 
Dividend received 
Interest Income 
Finance cost 
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cj General Reserves 
The Contpany created general reserve in earlier years pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act wherein certain 
percentage of profits were required to be transferred to general reserve before dedaring dividends. As per the Companies Act 
2013, the requirementrn transfer profits to general reserve is not mandatory, General reserve is a free reserve available to the 
Company. 

Notes 1to48 rcrm an integr a 1 part of these financial statements. 
As per attached report of even date. 
For Bohra & Ce., 
Chartered Accountants 
firm Registration No. I 36492W 

a) C..pirnl Redemption Reserve 

The Company has recognised capital Redemption Reserve on buyback of equity shares from its retained earnings. The 
amounrln capita.J Redemption Reserve is equal to nominal amount of the equity shares bought back 

b) SbareForfeitureAcooUJJt 

Amount origin.ally received out 9000 equity shares. inclusive of share premium on forfeiture of shares transferred to Share 
Forfeiblrc Account. 

2,18-4.ll 1.39 2.1.20 

2,18-t.LJ 1 • .39 21..20 

2.18-t.11 1.39 27.20 

22.971.59 25,184.29 
3.897.76 3)197,76 

2~816 2$8.16 

!29.23) c,..m 
27,'126-.26 Z"9,~40.98 

(120-901 (32Q.90) 

l!:6,807.38 29,0i0.08 
4-,2SO.S3 4,2:5053 

22$27 ns.21 
47.43 47,43 

31.330.61 33,543.31 
(320.~0) 1310.90) 

J1.ooq,11 33,222.41 

1,39 27.20 

(1111\"r oompreh(•n.s.iv,. i.n.c:ntoc: 

Income T,u RclalingTo lli:-wThaJ. \Viii Not~ Reclassified Tu Pn1fit Or Leiss 

Tout «1otpn'.he,,s1ve lucorne 

01\l!d(·nds dlstrlbuteJ t<i<eqully Jih\lreholders 
Balance :as at 31 March 2024 
l'rotlt r1>r the! )'e.lt 

Other comprch<'nslv~ lnrrnn~ 

Income T.ax R<!Jat.lng To looms That \Viii Not Bi! R<.'dass11i..-d To Profit Or Loss 

Totul cempreueuslve Income 
Di\•hiends dlStrlbuted to equlty sh:.lreholders 

uetanee es ae 31 r.tarcb io1s 

z 18'1.l l B;Uancc <1:s at31 M'11rth 2023 

ProOl ror the '>'ear 

Geoer~I 
aeseve 

Capital Share 
Redemptten Forfeiture 

RfSC'f'\'C ACt-OUUl 
Tot.al 

Parrlcutars geserve & Surplus 

320.90 32090000 IS 

320.90 32090000 15 

320.90 32090000 15 

B. OTB.ER EQUITY 

Issued. subscribed and fully paid-up shares 

EquHy share offts. 1/· each 
Balance as at 31 ~tattJ) 2023 

Changes in F.quity Share Capital during the year 
83lauec as at 31 March 2024 
Chang-es ln Equlty Share CapJral during the year 
Balance as at 3'1 March 2025 

No. of shares Amount Note Parrtculars 

(Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise) 
STl\TOMENTOF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
A. EQUITY SH/\RE CAPITAL: 
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified by the Companies (Lodi.an 
AccountingStandanls) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules. 2016. Accordingly. the 
consolidated financial statements fortheyearended 31March2025 are the Group's Ind AS consolldated flnancial statements, 
For periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2025. the Group prepared its consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Acr 2013 (the J\cl"). read together with 
paragraph 7 oflhe Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014(lndianGMP). 
Overall C.Onsideration 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared u.sing the significant accounting policies and measurement bases 
summarised below. These were used throughout all periods presented in the financial statements, except where the Group has 
applied certain accounting. 
Basisorpreparation 
The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The aeeoundng' policies: are 
applied consistently to all the periods presented in the Consolidated financial statements, All assets and liabilities have- been 
ctassified as eurrent cr non current as per the Group normal operarteg eycle and erner errterta as see eur tn the Division JI of 
Schedule Ill to the Contpanies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisltiou of assets for 
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents .. the Group has ascertained its operating cyde as 12 months for 
the purpose of currentornon-currentclassification of assets and liabilities. 
Subsidia.ry entity wneee the group exercise or controls 100% or its total share capital The net assets and results of acquired 
businesses are included in the consolidated financial statements from their respective dates of acquisition, being the date on 
wbid• the Group obtains control 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting potictes for like transactions and other 
events in similar circumstances, The accounting policies adopted in the preparation or consolidated financial statements are 
consistent witlt those of previous year: The financial statements of the Con1pany and its subsidiary have been combined on a 
line-by- line basis by adding together the book vaJuesof like items of assets, liabilities, tneeme and expenses, after efintinaling 
intragroup balances, intra group transactions and theunreaJised profits/losses, unJcssrost/revc.nue cannot be recovered. 

bJ CUrrentversusnoncurrentdassification 
The Group presents assets and liabilities In die balance sheet based on current/ non-eurrenr classification.. An asset is 
classified as rorrc.ntwhen it is: 

L Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating eye-le, 
ii. Held primarily fortbepurposeo[trading. 
iii. Expected to be realised within twelve months artertne repcrrtngperiod, or 
iv. cash ore.ash equivalent unless restricted trem being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at Jeasttwclve months 

after the reporting period. 
All other assets arc classified as non-cu rrent, 

Namt of the Subsidiary Prlnclple activities Country of tncorperauen Proportion or ewnershtp Interest tn (%) 

2024-25 ZOZl-24 

ludoborax Infrastructure Prhtate Limited BuJJde1's and Developers India 10-0% J-0-0% 

Summary of Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory lnfonnation for the year ended Jtsr March 2025 
Corporate Information 

Indo Borax& Chemicals Limited (the Company) is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India Its shares 
arc listed on Stock Exchange in India. It has formed its subsidiary lndoborax tnfrastrncmre Private Limited. The registered 
office isat302, Link Rose. Linking Road. Santacruz (West), Mumbai -400054. Tbe Company is engaged in manuf.icturingof 
Boron products. 
The Consolidated accounts for the year ended 31st March, 202.5 were consolidated on the basis of audited accounts 
presented by the subsidiary In do borax Infrastructure Private Limited. 

a) GeneralinformationandComplianrewitblndAS: 
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the parent company and its subsidiary 
[hereinafter referred as group) 

(il INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED 



Leasehold intprovcmcnts have been amortised over the esrimated useful lifC of the assets or the period of lease. whichever is 
lower. The residual values, useful lives and metnod of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate. 
Material items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and service equipment arc classified as PPfi when they meet the 
definltion of PPE as specified in Ind AS 16- Property. Plautaud Equipmenl 

De-recognition 
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when 
no future economic benefits arc expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recogntnen of the asset 
{calculated as the difference between the net disposal proeeeds and the carryingamountoftheasset) is included in the mcome 
state·mcntwhcn the asscrtsdcrecognised. 

d) lmpairmentof non·finandal assets 
A teach reporting date. die Group assesses whether there isany indication based on intema1/extemaJ factors. that an asset 1nay 
be Unpaired. If any such indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable ameuntcf'the asset, If such recoverable amount 
of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount. 
the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amcunrand the reduction is treated as an Impairment toss and is recognised 
in me statement of profit and loss. AU assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an tmpalrmcm loss previously 
recognised may no longer exist An hupairment loss is reversed if the asset's or cash-generating unit's recoverable amount 
exceedsjts carrying amoum. 
The impairmcnrtossesand reversals arc recognised in statement of profit and Joss. 

Description of Asset Estimated useful life (In years] 

Office Building 60 

Factory Building 30 
Plant and equipment 20 
Offlce equipment 5 
Computers 3 

Electric installation 10 

Furniture and fixtures 10 

Vehicles a 

A liability is dassified as rurrentwheo 
i. Jt~s expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
ii. It Is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
Hi. I l is due to be settled within twelve- months after the reporting period, or 
iv. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 

period 
All otl1crliabilitics arc classified as non .. current, 

The operating cycle is the time between tne acquisition or assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash 
equivalents. Deferred tax assets and liabilities arc classified as non-eurrentassctsand liabilities. 

c) Property. Plantand Equipment : 
Property. plant and equipment arc stated at tJ1cir cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if 
capitalisation criteria are metand directJyamibut.ablc oostofbringingthcassct to its working condition for the intended use. 
Subsequent costs arcindude.d in the asset's carryingarnountor recognised as a separate asset.as appropriate, ontywht"D it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item wiH now to the Company. AU other repair and maintenance 
costs are recognised in statemenrof profitand toss as incurred. 

SUbseqoent measurement( depreciation and useful lives): 
Depreciation on property. p1antand equipment is provided on sO'aightlinc method on assets 1ocatcd in Factory premises, The 
company has followed writtc.u-down value method or providing depreciation with respect to assets located at Head Office. The 
Depreciation jscomputed on the basis of useful lives (as set out below) prescribed in Schedule JI the Act: 
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for finite-llfe intangible assets is reviewed a teach fi1iancial year end and 
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
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e) FinaociaJ instromenas 

Financial assets 
Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial assets and fioanciaJ liabilities are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions or the 
financial instrument and are measured initially at tairvalue adjusted tOrtransaction coses. 

Subsequentmeasurement 
t) Financial instruments at amortised cost- the financial instrumentts measured at the amortised cost ifbotll the folJowing 

couditionsare mec 
The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to boJd assets lhr collecting contractual cash flows, and 
Contractual terms oruie asset give rise on specified dates to cash nows that are solely payments of'princtpal and interest 
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding, 
After initial measurement. such financial assets are subscquendy measured at amortised cost using the eff ecnve interest 
rate ( EIR) method.All the debt instruments of the Group are measured at amortised cost 

Trade Receivables and Loans: 
Trade receivables are initiallyrccognise-d at fair vatue.Subscqucmly, these assets arc held at amortised cost, using the effective 
interest rate (EIR) rnethod net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash income 
through die expected ti-re or financial instrument 

Mutual Funds, Equity·invesnnent. bonds and other 6nancial instruments: 
Mutual Funds, Equity tuvesrmenr, bonds and other financial instruments in the scope oflnd Asl09 are measured atfalr value 
through profit &loss acoount(FVOCI). 

Finan.cial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition or the 
financial habillties is also adjusted. These liabilities are classified asamortised eest, 

Subseque.ntmeasurement 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amornsed cost using the eft'ective interest metbod, These 
liabilities include borrowings. 

De-recognition of financial liabilities 
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an 
existing financial liabiUcy is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantialty modified, such an exchange or ntodific.ation is created as the de· recognition or the original 
liabilityand the recognition of a new liability. The diff'ercncc in the respective carrying ameunts is recognised in the statement 
ofprofitaod loss. 

f) Impairment of financial assets 
In acconlance with Ind AS 109. the group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement aod recognition of 
lmpairment loss for financi.aJ assets. 
ECL ts the difference between all contractual cash flows tbat are due co the Group in accordance with the contract and all the 
cash flows thatthe Corupanyexpcct-i to receive. When estimating the cash fiows, the group is required to consider; 

i. AH contractual tcnnsof the financial assets (includlngprepayrnentand extension) over the expected life of the assets, 
ii. cash nows front the sale of collateral held orothercrcditcnhanc:c1ncntsthatarc·intcgra.J w the cootr.tctual terms. 

Other financial assets 
For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure. the group determines whether there has been a 
~ignificant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition and if credit risk has increased significantly. impairment Joss is 
provided. 

g) Inventories 
Raw Material: Lower of cost or nelre.alisable value.Cost is determined on first in firstoutfFIFO') basis. 
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Work in progress, are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of work in progress and manufactured finished 
goods comprises direct material, cost of conversion and other costs i11rurred in bringing these inventories to their present 
Jocation and condition. 

Finished goods: Lower or cost or net realisable value. Cost Es determined on FIFO basis. includes direct material and labour 
expenses and appropriate proportion of n:ianufat."tllriog overheads based on the nomta1 capacity far manufactured goods. 
Net realisable value is the estimated selJjng price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and 
estimated costs of necessary to make the sale. 

hJ ForeignCUnt'ncyTransaction 
Initial recognition 

The Con1pany's flnanciaJ statements are presented in INR, which is also the Group's functional cuJTCncy. Transactions in 
foreign eurrencies are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the date or 
the transaction .. 
Measurement at the balanresbeetdate 
Foreign currency monetary uems or the Group, outstanding at the balance sheet date arc restated at the year-.-end rates. Non· 
monetary items which are carried at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported ustng the exchange rate at 
the date of the transaction. Non-rnonetary Items measured at fairvalue in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rate-sat the date when the fairvafuetsdetermtned, 
Treatmentofexchangedjfference 
Exchange differences that arise on settlement of mouetary items or on reporting at each balance sheet date of the Group's 
monetaryltemsarthe ctosing rate are recognised as tncemeorexpenses in the period in which they arise. 

l) tneomeraxes. 

Tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not recognised in 
Other Comprehensive Income ('OCI') ordirectlyin equity. 
Current income .. tax is measured at the amount expected co be-paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income­ 
taxACL Current tneome-tax relating to uems recognisedcutside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of 
profit and loss (either in OCI or-In cquify). 
Deferred tncome-tax is calculated using the liability method, Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised in fuU for aU 
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets arc recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss, 
unused tax credits or deductible temporary difference will be utilised againstfuture taxable income. This is assessed based on 
the Group's forecastoffutureoperating-result.~~adjusted f or signtftcanrnou-taxabte income and expenses and spt."Cific lint its on 
the use of any unused tax loss or credit, De(erred r.ax assets or liability arising during tax holiday period is not recognised to the 
cxtt"nl it reverses ourwuntn the tax.holiday period. Unrecognised deferred tax assets arc re-assessed at ead• reporting date 
and arc recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits wiU allow the deferred tax asset to be 
recovered, 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in me year when the asset is realised 
or the liability is settled. based on tax rates (and tax laws J that have been enacted orsubstantivetyenacr.ed atthe reporting date. 
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of profit and Joss 
leitberin OCI orin equity]. 

j) cash and cash equivalents 
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand. demand deposits with banks/corporations and short .. term highly liquid 
investments {original maturity less than 3 months l th a tare readily convertible into known amount or cash and arc subject to 
an insignificant risk of change in value. 

k) Post-employmen1< Iongterm andshorttermemployee benefits 
i) SbortTerm Employee Benefits: 

All employee benefits payable within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term 
employee benefits. These benefits include saJariesand wages.bonus and ex-grana, 

ii) Defined contribution plans: 
Employee benefits in the fonn of contribution to Provident Fund managed by Government authorities, Etnployces 
State Insurance Corporation and Labour Welfare Fund are considered as defined contribution plan and the 
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iv) Cratulty: 

The group '"'5 an obligation towards gratuiiy. a defined benefit retirement plan cove ring cligible employees. The plan 
provides for payment to vested employees at renrement, death while in employmenrcren terminarion of employment 
of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of cmploymcnL Vesting occurs upon 
completlon of given years orservtce, The company makes contribution to employees group gratuity rund established by 
Life Insurance Corporation or India. Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognised in the Profit and Loss account in the period in which theyarise, 

I) Operatingexpenses: 

Operating expenses arc recognised in profit or Joss upon utilisation orrhcservtcecras incurred. 
m) Borrowingeosts 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisitions, construction or production or a qualifying asset are capitalised 
during the period of nme that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intend~ use or sale. Other borrowing 
costs arc expensed in the period in which they arc incurred and reported in finance costs. 

n) fai:rwluemeasu:rement 
The Group measures ftnanci.al mstruments.at fair value ateach balance sheet date. 
r-a.ir value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participantsat the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to 
sell the assetor transfer the liability takes place either: 

i. lo the principal marketfor the asset or liability. or 
ii. In the absence of a principal markct.Inthe mcstadvantagcous market fe>rthe asset or liability 

The principal or the mostadvantagecus markctmusr be aceessible by the Group. 
The tair vaJuc of an asset or a liability is measured using me assumptions that market participants would use when 
prid ng me asset or liability, assu rui ng that market parti ci pan lS act in their ecenomic best interest, 

o J Provisions, contingentassetsand contingent liabilities 

Provisions are recognised only-when there is a present obligation.. as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the 
amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These csumatesare reviewed at each reporting date and adjustc.d to 
reflcerthe current best estimates. Provisions arc dlscounted to their present values, whcrcthettmevalucof money is material, 
Contingentliabiliiy isdisdose<I for 

i. Possible obligations which will beconfirmed only by future events notwholly within the control of the Group or: 
iLPresentobligations arising front past events where it is nor probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 

settle the obligation ora reJiahle estimate of thcamoumot'the obfjgarion cannot be made, 
Contingent assets arc notrerognizcd However; when inflow of economicbcncfitis probable, related asset isdisdoscd. 

pJ Eamingspersbare 
Basic earnings pershareis calculated by dividing the net profito.r Joss for the period attributable ro equity share-holders (after 
dedueting attributable taxes] by tho weighted average number cf cquiiyshares nutstanding during the period. The weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus issue. 
For the purpose of caJcuJating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or Joss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period arc adjusted for the effects or all 
dilutivepot.ential cqutty shares. 

q) BusinessCombinadonsand Goodwill 

Acquisition method 
Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business 

contributions are charged to the Profit and Loss Account of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are 
doe. 

iii) Delinedbenefitplans 
Retirement benefit in the fonn of Graruity benefit is considered as defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the 
basis of an actuarial valuation. 

(il INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED 



Goodwill is measured at cost. being the excess of the aggregate of' the consideration transferred. the amount recognised for 
non-controllinginterests, and any previ ous Interesrnetd, over the net identifiable .assets acquired and liabi Ii tics ass um ed. 

After initiaJ recognition. goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impalrmenr losses. For the purpose of impairmenr 
testing. goodwilJ acquired in a business combination ts, fron1 the acquisition date. altocated lO each of the Group's cash· 
generating units that are expected to benefit from the combtuanon. irrespective of whether other assets or llabilitit.."S of the 
acquiree are a.i;signed to those units. 

A cash generating unit to whidl goodwill has been attocatcd is tested rorimpainncntannually,ormorc frequently when there is 
an indication that the unit Olay be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its canying 
amount. the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount cf any goodwill allocated lD the unit and then to 
the other assets of the unitpro-rata based on the carrying amount or each asset in the unit Any impairment loss for goodwill is 
recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised forgoodwiU is not reversed in subsequent periods. Where goodwill 
bas been allocated to a cash generating unit and pan of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated 
with die disposed operation is included in the carrying amountef the operation whendctcrmtntng the gain or Joss on disposal, 
GoodwilJ disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion 
of the casb-generanng unit retained. 

r) Revenue recognition 
Sales of goods 

IND AS 115: Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

Revenue from Contracts with Customers Ind AS 115 establishes a single comprehensive model foreotitic:s to use in ac:countlng 
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Ind AS 115 will supersede tlle current revenue recognition standard lod AS 
18 Revenue, Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts when it becomes effective. The core principle- of lnd AS 115 is that an entity 
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the 
consideration ID which the entity expects to be cntided in cxc.bangc for those goods or services. SpccificaUy, tile standard 

combination is measured ar fair value, which is calculated as the sum or the acquisiuon-date fair values of the assets 
transferred by the Group. liabilities iacurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued 
by the Group in exchange forconlJ'OI of the aequiree. Ac:quisition related costs a re recognised in the Consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss as incurred. 

AL the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed arc recognised at their acquisition date (air 
values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and Lhcy are 
measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources c.nlbodying economic benefits is not 
probable. However, the foUowing assets and Jiahi1ities acquired in a business combination arc measured at the basis indicated 
below: 

a) deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabiHtics related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised 
and measured in acconlancewitb Ind AS 12 'Income Taxes' and lnd AS 19 "Employee Benefits" respectively: 

b] liabiUties or equity iastruments related LO share based payment arrangements or the acquiree or share - based 
payments arrangements oftbe G'J'·oup entered Into ID replace share based paymcn1arraogements of the acquiree are 
measured inacccrdancewith lnd AS 102 "Share-based Payments" attheacquisitiondate; and 

c) assets (ordisposaJ Groups) that are classified as held for sate in accordance with Ind AS 105 "Non-cum!nt Assers Held 
for Sale and Discontinued Operations" are measured in accordance with tharstandard, 

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate 
dassification and designation in accordance with the contracru.al terms, economic circumstances and pertinent 
conditions as at the ac:quisition date. When a business combination is achieved in stages. the Group's previously held 
equity interest in the acquire is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date [i.e. the date when the Group obtains 
control} and the resuJting gain or loss, if any. is recognised in the Consolidated Statemenr of Profit and Loss. Any 
contingent consideration to be transferred bytlleacquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Cootingcnt 
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 
"Financial tnstruments'; is measured at fair value with changes in fair vaJue rccogni~d in Consolidated Statcn1ent of 
Profit and loss. lfthecontingentconsideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with 
the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration d\at is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent 
reporting dates andsubsequentitsscttlementisaccouotcd for within equity. 

Goodwill 
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Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective mterestmethod, 

Dividend 

DMdcnds are recognised atthc time the right to receive the payment is established. 

sJ Segment Information 
The managing committee is considered to be the 'Chief Operating Decision Maker' (CODM) as defined in IND AS 108. Tbe 
Operating Segment is the level at which discrete financial mformation is available. The CODP.1 allocates resources and assess 
performanee at this level. The Comp.any has one operating segment Le. Chemical Manufacturing whidt indude.s Boron 
Products. 

t) AccoontingrorLeasc: 
Group as a lessee: 
The Group applies a single a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases. except for short-term leases and 
leases of low value assets. The Conlpany recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-ot-use assets 
representing therightto use theunderlyingassc'ts. 
As per Ind AS t 16. the lessee needs co recognise depreciation on rights or use assets and finance costs on lease liabilities in the 
statement of profitand loss. 
Leases where the Jessorctfective·ly retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of'the leased item arc classified 
as operating leases, Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statemeut of Profit and Loss on a straight· 
line basis over the lease term unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to 
compensate fort.he lessor's expected i.nflalionary cost increases. 
Leases where die lessor effcctiveJy retains substantially all the rights and benefits or ownership of the: leased assets are 
classified as operating leases. At the date of commencemeur of lease the Group Company recognizes a right-of -use asset {ROU) 
and a ccrresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lease except for teases with a term of twelve 
months or Jess and low value leases, For these short term and tow value leases uie Group Contpany recognizes the lease 
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 
The 1ightto use assets arc initiaUyrccoguized at cost which comprises initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease 
payment made at or prior to the date of the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs Jess any lease 
incentives. They arc subsequently measured at cost lcssaccumulated depreciation and impairment losses, 
Rig;ht~tr>- use assets are depreciated froan the commencemeiu date on straight line basis over lesser oft.he lease period or the 
useful lifeortheasseL 

Lease liabilicy is initially measured atamorti:ud cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are 
discounted using the interest rare implicit in the tease or, if notread:ilydetcnninable usingrheincrc:mcntal borrowing rate for 
the Group. 

u) GovemmentGrants; 

Government grants / subsidies received towards specific fixed assets have been deducted from me gross value of the 
concerned fixed assets. 

Under Ind J\S 115, au entity recognises reveouewnen [or as] a performance obligation is satisfied. Le. when 'control' of the 
goods or services underlying the particuJar performance ob1igation is transferred t:o the customer, The Contpany has 
rompletcd itsevaluatiou o(theposslble impactorlndAS 115 and will adopt the standard from 1stAprll, 2018. 

Interest Income 

Identify the contract( s) with a customer 

Identify the performance obligation in contract 

Determine the transaction price 
Allocate the transaction price to thcperformanee obligations in the contract 
Recognise revenue when ( oras J the entity satisfies a perfonnaoccobUgation 

Step1 

Step2 

Step3 

Step+ 

Step5 

iatroduces a s .. step approach co revenue recognition: 
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Note: C-) The amcuncrcfelcetcd incapitai worki.n pr-ogrcssreprcscnt:sadvanccgivt:n fur aJlotmentofUnit /Flat No. 1601 and 1602 (or protect named 
AVl.'flucS4 atS. V. Road., Santacruz (West) Mumbai-400054. 

Particulars Arnount In caulral work-In-eroeress for a oeriod of 
Less than 1 vear i-z veers 2-3 vears More than 3 vears Total 

Capital work-In-progress r) . . . '112.52 112.52 

. . . 112.52 112.52 

Ageing for capital work-In-progress as at r.1a1·ch 31, 2024 ls as follows: 

Canttal work-in-nroeress 
Amount in caoltal wcrk-ln .. oreercss for a oertod of 

Particulars 
Less than l vear 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 vears 'J'oral 

Wlpltal work-In-progress (') . . . 112.52 112.52 

. . . '112,52 112.52 

Note Z - Cpaital Work in Progress 
Ageing for capital work-in-progress as at l\otarch 31, 2025 fs as follows 

-*Note: During the year Di.strict lndustriaJ Center. Pithampur(Madya Pradesh) had sancanoned and approved Rs. 172.77 L.akhs C Previous year Rs. Nil) 
Industrial Investment Susbsidy.samc has been deducted trom theCostPlant&Machincry & Faaory Building. 

Swnmary of Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Informanon for lbe year ended 31st March 2025 
Note 1 · Property. plant and equlpmeut (Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise] 

Furnftu1·e Oxlure Plant and Office 
Particulars Buildings and office· mat.·blntry 

equipments vehicles leased Land Tata I 
equipments 

Gt'Oss bloc:k 
M ~ttA1nil Ol. 2023 1.106.95 127.66 t.347,H 72.83 559.36 10.06 3.2H.OO 
Additi(!OS 198.14 12.61 244,87 4,96 2.-17 4'63,0S 
Deduction 
As at March 31, 2024 J.:105.09 140,27 1,592,01 71,19 561.83 J0.06 3.687,0S 

Addlt1n!l$ 0.29 21.41 6<~,24 6?2.9S 
Oerluctlon 93,70 79.06 172.76 

AsatMan:h 31, 2025 J,21 L39 110.57 1,512,95 102.20 1,210.0? 10,06 4,IA7,23 

Furniture fixture Plant and Office 
Partjculars Ou\Jdlngs and offlce- machinery 

equip1nents Vehtclts Leased 'Land Total 
equipments 

Acr:u1uulaUd dte!l't!t:la'llon 
As at April 01, 20·23 444.82 J lJ.98 858.73 64.67 l 14.16 1,594.36 
Depredation charge <luring the )'('<IT 35.69 6,82 4S.99 3.88 135.95 228.33 
lled1u .. xton 
As at March 31, 202·1 ~80.51 l 18.80 904.72 68.55 250.tl 1.822.69 
Oepr('ci.ation charge during the year 38.92 4,34 55,14 Ll,68 L53.80 263.88 
Dedurttcn 
As ~t~tarch 31, 2025 SJ9,H 123.14 9s9:e1 80.24 403.9] 2,086,59 

N~tcarrying amount as at March 31,, 2025 69L96 17.43 553.08 21.96 806.16 10.06 2.100.64 

Netcarrying amount as at March 31, 202.f s2+.sa 21.47 687,29 9.24 311.73 10.06 1,864-.36 
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1,736.40 1,421.64· Total 

431.46 365.16 
1,294.23 1,056.48 

10.7 J 

Within l year 
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 
Later than 5 vears 

As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024 Particulars 

Profit from investment properties 308.57 304.20 
(fl) Leasl119 arranqements 

Minimum lease payments receivable under non-canceuable operanng leases of investment properties are as follows: 

304.20 308.57 
Profit from Investment properties before 
depreclarion 
Depreciation 

Direct operating expenses for property that did nor 
generate rental Income 

(44.45) (•1·6.63) 

348.65 355 .. 20 Rental income 

Direct operating expenses for property that 
generated rental Income 

Particulars Asnt March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024 
{f) Amounts 1-eco9nlsed lo tile sco1eme111 of profit 011d loss for investment prooerues 

7,981.43 

7,981.43 7,981.43 
7,981.43 

Closing gross carrying amount 
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2025 
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 

7,981.43 7,981.43 
Gross block 
Opening gross carrying amount 
Additions 

As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024 Paruculars 

J0.15 10.30 

10.30 10.46 

0.15 0.15 

3.27 3.27 
0.20 0.20 
0.20 0.20 
3.26 J.27 
3.26 3.26 

Operating lease commitments as of Isr April, 2024 
Lease Comrnlnuent During the year 
Amoruzauon durring the year 
Undiscounted future lease payments from 
operating leases 
Eff.ect of discounting 
Interest on leasehold rinhts 
Lease liabllltles as of March 31, 2025 
Lease liabilities non-current as of March 31, 2025 
Lease liabilities current as of March 31, 2025 
Note 4 - Investment property 

The Company rccongntsed ROU asserts for the following assets categories: 
Lease hold land 

As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024 Particulars 
(Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise] Nole 3 - Right of use Assets 

Swnmary of Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Informanon for lbe year ended 31st March 2025 
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Total 

Other loans and advances, unsecured, considered good 
Loans ro employees 

Provision for doubtful advances 

1.70 

L.70 

1.70 

54.58 64.l l 
54.58 64.11 

565.32 573.15 

509.oq 509.04 
Loans- Inrercorperate Deposits 
Inter Corporate Deposits (Refer Noto No. 45) 
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 
Unsecured, considered good 
Other loans and advances, unsecured. cousldered good 
Advance lncome-taxtner or provision for taxation] 

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 20ZS Particulars 

0.()3 

393.00 
393.00 

131.15 
J3LLS 

1,041.30 
0.03 

Aggregdte ameunt ef quoted l11vcst1ncncs 
A~regate market value of lisred and quoted investments 
Aggregate -'mount Qr UOlJUOtt:d tnvesnnenrs 
Aggregdte ameunt ef lmpatrment in value of tnvesuncuts 

Note 6 • Long term loans and advances 

Note 5 • Non-current investments fA111oui1rs are lu ruoees unless stated othtrwise' 

Particulars NC>. 0( Share/ As at r.tarch 31, No. Of Sha·re/ I i\s at Marc.h 31, 
Bond Unit 2025 Bond Unit 202:4 

Noto 5 • l'ION CURR£Nr INV£S'l'M£NTS 
Other Equity tnstrumerns : 
Uoquoted, fully paid up 
Rt'IL1ncc Media Works Ltd 675 . 675 . 
Investment in £quit}' Instruments 
Quoted, Cully paid up 
At Fair value through OCI 
Centr.11 Bank of lndi~ Ltd 3200 1.37 .l200 1.91 
Ialprakash Associates Limned 4500 0.14 4500 0.81 
Kam:tn\val:i Industries Limited 57395 6.51 57395 9.7? 
Larsen & Toubro Llmiled 900 31.42 900 33.97 
N31iona1 Thenn3l Power Limited 3600 rz.aa '.!600 11.09 
Punj Lloyd t.lmned t460 0.04 1460 0.04 
Rettance Comminucation. Limited 2000 0.03 2000 0.04 
Untcy Protects Lindtcd 2000 ooz 2000 0.01 
NiftyBt:oes 29918 78.74 . . 
lnvestemenr tn Preference Shares- fully paJd up Unquoted, 
Mercedes Ben'l.: F1n;)nciaJ ScrVl<.:CS Pvt Ltd ·100 1.041.30 . . 
At Fair value through OCI . 
N·rpc Ltd, Noa Ccnvcrtthle Debentures . 3000 0.30 
8a.ndh:.n GRJSIL IBX GRr June, 2027 Index fund Regul.tr Pl11n Crro\vtiJ, . . Z8,67,8!5.77 334.04 
(crsl\\fh.iJe JOF'C Cri.Sil lffX CiltJunc 2027) . . 

Tot.11 1,l??.45 393.00 

(iii) Fair valueofmvestment propertyason 31st March. 2025 L< Rs. 9093/ • Lakhs(9088.00 Ucahs) 
The co·mpanyobtains Independent valuations for in: investment in propernes. The best evidence offalrvalue is current prices in 
an active market for similar properties. Where such intbrmation is not available, the cempany consider inforrnation Frorn a 
varietyofsourccsincJuding: 
• current prices in an active market for properties of different nature or recenrprices cf sindlar properties in Jess active markets, 

adjusted (D re0ect tl)OSC differences. 
•discounted cash now projections based on reliable esnmateseffuturecash Dows. 
• capitaJised mcome projections based upon a property's estimated net market income, and a capitalisation rate derived from an 

analysisofm:arkctevidencc. 
The fairvalueso(invesanc.ntin commcretal properties have been determined by tndependcntvatuer H. Mehta & Associates. The 
main inputs used arc the rental growth rares. experted vacancy rates. terminal yields and discount rates based on comparable 
transactions and industry data.AU resulnngfalrvahreestimates for-invesouentprope.rties arc included in IC'Vel 3. 
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011tsl<1ndi ti' for fe>ltowlll1' orrklds r.rom 1h1f'tlatc ot Oulstandirtl! for lolJo\vflll! oeriud~ from dtu:t da1~of 
Partkubrs Lesstb~nb 6 months- l·2yrs. 2·3)'ri. More.tlun ll·ft3·102S fl1H1icul~r.s Wstb:m6 6monthi- 1·2yrs. HY"· Mt1~::han3 31·0l·'Z02'1 

nx.m!bs- J ~·rar 3·~. nwnills I vc.or ~· 
f i) Undtspu'l:d (IJ Un~-kputed 
Tr<1de rt'«'ivnbk>s- J,44&17 Ohl lL42 0.26 0.02 J,~60.51 'rrad.e rccrivablns- 1,277.39 QJl Uil (110 l,360.7~ 
c1J,1t$Jdmd g(lnd oon~idel\-d f'lod 

I ii J Undis.:put~ Iii) Undisputed 
'J c.ade fl.l:«i'l'abln . . . Tr,11!-e.' Rt<riYaMfs, . . . 
Co.:1sld~ed l>uubtfol 1:011sldf.red DoubtfuJ 

(iilt Ois~tl'd Tradl! riiJ) Doputed Trade 
Rttrivablt.s . . . Rrl~vaMts . . 
COOihJ.-1l'd g<lvd CCtll:dd~red ptocl 

b\'J C>ispu~cd tr.idt: liY} Oiltputt'd trade 
Rrci:t\•:ibf~> 11822 . . 11&22 Re~!\•aMl't . . 
crmsiMJt:d dou~ul ronsi&!red doobliut 
·rl>bl 1366.19 0.62 11.•2 aza 0.02 I Ci7fl.7J Totll 1 277.J9 (1.)2 1.61 0.10 1 l(J.0:79 

Note l 0 <Trade receivables 

3405.82 
3905.82 

0.00 

4,S2t0l 
4.S2L01 

No.Of As at March 3 l, No.or As at ~fat-ch 31, 

-- Share/Mf ueu 2025 Sb<lf't!:/MF Un)t 2024 
d · fully l'hld "I' 

crt PJ~n 8S.~.832.252i 3,025.21 56.42,141.988 Z,356.89 
v:u11.:ige Furid 9,05,759.639 6<)().61 9,05,759.639 64<1.l? 
011p. Fund 87.251.257 q2.61 I ~,885.65 l 20.15 
br Fund l3,3l9.525 54.39 80,205.%7 101.60 

ngs Fund 12,4(,,560.709 272.00 35,74,'.!30.728 724.16 
'.)'~1n1c Pu11d 75.213.6071 '104 80 . . 

Ri~utar GJ'l)Wth 1.,64, .. 7l.2SS 6<>.66 . 
Fund Oin:cl Growth 7.0GL.067 55.80 . . 
1.J1ul· R(!t{uh1r Pbu- Gl'o,\•th . . 1,83ASZ.82'J 56.BS 
e. 2027 Index fund Regular Plan Gn>w·th 

I 
12,1-0,0~<).39 155.93 . . 

ih June zoi11 . . 
4-.52\.01 3,905.82 

mvesnneut In ~fu111al Fun 
Unquoted 
At Fa1r ~:.lue through OC:I 
SSI Arbilrag(I Op11 fund·Dir 
ICICI r>rudentl,1) bill.inceAd 
CCICI Prudenti.ul Corp Crt>dlt 
ICICI Prudential Equity & 01! 
ICICI Prudential Equity S.-vi 
IClCJ l'nulential Enbanoed Q 
Ko1':'.lk £qltl~ Arblt"r:it;e fund 
ICICI Prudential .Molti Asset 
SGI ArbHMlg~ Opp<>1·\unlty f 
Bandhan CRISIL IBX G-iJt Jun 
lerst,vh1.l<: IOl?C Cris1I IBX G 
'for:il 

l\ggrega~e a1nuunl ol' (IUOtC'd Investments 
t\ggn:-gatc m~rket value or listed and quoted investments 
Aggregate arncunr or unquoted tnvesrmems 
Aggreg"re PrtJvtsfl)n for ln1pWmtent ln the vsrue <)rfr1~'c.'Stm~nts: 

Not~_ 9 -Current Investments 
P:arth:ulars 

2,238.39 4,706.75 Total 

2,066.19 
50.60 
14.48 

107.12 

.4,527.03 
70.64 

0.26 
108.83 

Raw materials (Refer note 26) 
Stock In Process 
Finished goods 
Stock of Consumable Stores & Spare parts (at cost) 

As at March 31, 2024 As at M;orch 31, 2025 Parttculars 

60.19 8,148.95 Total 

Note 8 ~ inventories 

60.19 61.63 
l,890.00 
S,850.01 

347.31 

Unsecured. considered good 
Securlry Depcslts 
Fixed Deposit with Banks 
Fixed Deposit with Corporates 
lnteresr Hece[vablt.i 

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31. 2025 Particulars 

(Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise] Note 7 ~ Other Non Current Financial Assets 
Swnmary of Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Informanon for lbe year ended 31st March 2025 
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32090000 32090000 

32090000 32090000 Balance as at 31st March 2024 
Changes during the Year 
Balance as at 31st March 2025 

Nos. Equity Shares Nos. 

(a' Reconctliatton or the shares outstanding at the beginning-and at the end of the reporting period 

320.90 320.90 
320.90 320.90 

322.80 322.80 
322.80 322.80 

600.00 600.00 
Authorised shares 
60000000 Equity Shares of Rs. I/· each 
(Previous Year 60000000 Equity Shares of Rs 1/· each) 
tssued, Subscribed shares 
32280000 Equity Shares oFRs. I/· each 
(Previous year33280000 Equity Shares] 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares 
32090000 Equity Shares of Rs .. 1/- each 
(Previous year 32090000 Equity Shares of Rs. I/· each] 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 Particulars 

Note: Ocpos-il with government aulhoritiC"S lndudcs SS,62.806/-( Previous year Rs. 1.58,62,806/-) [Deposit or Ks. 61,S5,946/- [Previous year 
Rs.1,61.55,946/-} less input tax crcdittakcn towards tC.SrorRs. 2,93, 140/- ( previous year Ks. 2.93, 140/- ldepo!>;l with custom tlcpartmenL 

Note 15 - Share ca.pital and other equity 
Share C3J>fta1 

415.78 788.97 Total 

65.58 
62.41 
79.42 

208.37 

28.32 
363.95 

53.86 
342.BS 

Prepaid expenses 
Deposit .... dth govt. authorlues (refer note belo .. vl 
Advances to Suppliers 
Others 

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2025 Particulars 
Note 14·· Other current assets 

11.9f! 11.26 Total 

As at March 31, 2024 
11.98 

As at March 31, 2025 
11.26 

Particulars 
Loans to Employees 

Nore: Ilnclaimed dtvdlend are not due (or deposit to the Investors Education and Protection Fund. 
Note 13 ·Short term loans and advances 

58.64 59.69 Total 

32.79 
25.85 

32.7? 
26.'IO 

Margin money deposits 
Unclaimed dividend account (refer a note b¢IO"') 

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2025 Particulars 

12,140.11 3 91L62 Total 
Note 12 - Other bank balances 

662.72 
2,814.00 

532.39 
C),669.00 
1,754.67 

162.05 434.12 

2.00 0.78 Cash on hand 
Bank balances 
-Current Account 
- Fixed Deposit 
· lnvestmeut in Liquid Mutual Fund 
• I ntcrest Receivable 

A< at March 31, 2024 AsatMarch31, 2025 

Swnmary of Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Informanon for lbe year ended 31st March 2025 
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e) Final& lnterimDividendonEquitySbares 

Final dividend of Rs 1 (t,c, 100%) per equity share of Rs 1/· each for tbe Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 on 3209000 
equity shares declared by SharchoJdc.rsatl\nnuaJ General Meeting held on 27th August, 2024 

As at Ma1·cb 3l, 2-02S As at lttarcb 31, 2024 

Name of the shareholder %hotdin1 '\ti of c:h"1n1e % l1-0hU11g In tltt %ofdtang..- 
NO$. (1{$'haT~'C In use dt:1rill;g0H: """' 11f$~A-J ctass durt11g tM ,-ear d ... year 

l!..quiq.· ,Slur~ Eauitv shares of Rs At- uer share 
Mr. Sajnl fain 84,55;l90 26.35 . 84,55,JCJQ 26.35 . 
Mrs. Sreelekha J<lin 20,77,020 6.47 . 20,77,020 6.47 . 
Mr. Saumya Jain 46,30.810 14.43 . 46,30.810 14.43 . 
Mrs. Pranfka lain 10 . 10 . . 
Mes, Shubhra lain Si\l<lradjou 2,32.000 0.72 . 2,32,000 0.72 . 
Sajal [aln, Karia ofHUF 9.05,000 2.82 . 9.05,000 2.82 . 

. 

( dJ Details ofPromoter holding (asper the register or members of the Company are asunder): 

Equity shares (If ns. 1/· each ftLU)" p~id 
Mr. S•t•I )•In 
Mrs. Sreelekha l~ln 
Mr. Saun1yo fain 

As ot1'hirch at, 202• As at March 31, 2023 

Nos. cf Shares %holding in Nos, cf Shares l>fo holding in 
the class rbe class 

84,55.390 26.35 84,SS,390 26.35 
20.77,020 6.-<7 20,77,020 6.47 
46,30,$10 IM3 46,30.JJIO 14.43 

Name of the shcrehetder 

(as per the reglseer cf members of the Company are as utider) :· 

The distribution will be in proportion to the number or cquityshares held by the equity shareholders. 

During-last five ye.a.rs no shares were alloted withoutpayn1eut being received in cash or as bonus shares. however company were 
bought back and exttnguished 2, 72,000 equity shares during the financial year 2014-15. 

Amountoriginallyreeeived on foreited shares Rs. "l,39,350/ • (Inclusive of share premium] included in Reserve & Surplus 

( e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company 

Thcconapany hasonlyone classof equitysbaresbavingparvaluc of Rs.1 per share. Ead1 holder of equity shares isenutlcd to one 
vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by die Board of Directors is 
subject to theapprovaJ of the shareholders in the era..<ruingAnnual General Meeting. 

In thcevcntofhqujdauon of theCompany, the holders of cqultys:h:arcswilJ be entitled ro receive remaining assets of the Company, 
after distribution of aU preferential amounts. The distribution wiU be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders. 

(b J Terms/ rights attached to equitysbares 
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Out~t.anding for tOllcn~1ing. periods from due 31·03'2025 Outstandlng for (QIJCJwing period$ from 31-0'J.2024 
Particulars d:Hcofpaynu.~ut Particulars due date o( payment 

" Less than l More Ihan l..('SS than l yr. t-z yrs. 2·3 yrs. lhan.3 To:tal vr. l ·2 yrs, 2~3 yrs. 3~. Total 

'i1 MSME 2.62 . - - 2.62 ilMSMF. - . - . 
IUOthers I 514.17 26.3R I - I I 540.SS 11111 Othm 336.0S 9.35 5.70 12.50 363.60 

(lii) Olsputed . . . D•I) Disputed . . . 
dues· MSME dues· MSl4f. 
(ivJ O!sputed - . . (iv} Disputed - - - - 
duc·s· uuers dtu-s· Oth~ts 
'l'otal 516.79 26.38 . . 543.18 Tot.JI 336.0S 9.35 5.70 12.50 363.60 

3.26 3.26 Total 
Note 20 - Trade payables 

3.26 3.26 tease Liability 

A< at March 31, 2024 Mat March 31,2025 Particulars 

122.25 160.69 Total 
Note 19 ·Lease Liabilities 

122.25 160.69 
131-.15 169.02 TOTAL Of DEFERRED TAX llASlllTY 

Diff. between accounting base and tax base of PPE 

47.43 

131-.15 121..59 

lt.90 8.33 ·roTAJ. Of DEFERRED TAX xsssrs 
Deferred tax liability artslng on account of Difference 
between accounting base and tax base of l.,PE 
Deferred tax liability arising on account ol' Finnncia) assets at fair value. through OCJ 

3.80 
8.10 

8.33 
Deferred tax JJ.abUites arising on account or: 
Deferred tax asset arising on account of Provision for employee benefits 
Deferred tax asset arising on account of Flnancial assets at fair value through OCI 

Mat Marclt 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2025 Particulars 

Total 

Note 18 ~Deferred tax liabilities 

Surplus In the statement of protlt and loss 
Balance as per the last Hn:"-tt1Cia1 staLen1ents 
Profit for the year 
Dividend distributed on equity shares 
Transfer to General Reserve 
Closing Balance 
TOTAi. 
Note 17 -mner non-current flnanelal ltabfUUes 

General Reserve 
Balance Brought r:onvard 
Transfer from Surplus in Pro tit and Loss Account 

27.20 27.20 

1.39 1.39 
1.39 1.39 

2,184.11 2,184.11 

2,184.11 2,184.11 

26,807.38 22,971.59 
4.523.23 4,156.69 

320.90 320.90 

31,009.71 26,807.38 

33,222.41 29,020.08 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 
104.04 135.30 
184.04 135.30 

Particulars 

27.20 27.20 Capital Redemption Reserve 
Balance Brought Forward 
Share Forfeiture AccounL 
Balance Hroughr Forward 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 
[Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise] 

Reserves and Surplus 
Note 16 - Other Equity 
Swnmary of Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Informanon for lbe year ended 31st March 2025 
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19,130.30 17,526.11 
6.49 

16.12 

19,121.81 17.509.99 

19.130.30 17.526.11 
Sale of products comprises: 
Mt1.nufactured goods 
Sales of Boron Product & other chemicals 
Traded goods 
Sulphuric Acid 
Chemicals & others 

[9.121.81 
9.49 

17,509.99 
16.12 

Operating Income i 

Manufactured gc.iuds 
Traded goods 

As at Morch 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2025 Particulars 

213.22 258.59 

173.23 
39.99 

204.S'l 
54.08 

Provision for gratuity (net) [Refer Note 29) 
Provision for Leave (Refer Note 29) 
Total 
Note 24 • Revenue from operations 

As at March 31, 2024 As ar March 31, 2025 Particulars 

0.00 0.00 Toto! 
Note 23 • Employee Benefit Obllgat1on 

0.00 0.00 Lease l..iabiJ.ity 

AS at March 3 l, 2024 Asar March 31, ZOZS Parttculars 

823.28 879.73 Toral 
Note 22 -current Lease Liabilities 

324.75 
381.12 
80.84 
10.72 
25.85 

292.08 
448.14 
104.63 

7.98 
26.90 

a) Statutory dues payable 
b) Salaries due co director 
c] Advance received from cllenrs 
e) Other Liabilities 
d) Unclatmed Dividend 

As at March 31, 2024 As at 1-tarch 31, 2025 Particulars 
(Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise) Note 21 -omer current financial liabilities 

NIL NIL 

NIL NIL 

NIL 0.11 

NIL NIL 
2.6Z 

(a) I.he principal ameent and the Interest due thereon {Lo be shown scparalcly) remaining, 
unpaid loanysuppJierat the end of eacbacceunungyear 

(bl the amount of intc:rcst paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro. Small and 
Medium Enterprtses Dcvelopmeru Art.. 2.00(, (27 of 2006). aJong with I.he amounl uf the 
paymemmadc to the su pplicr beyond the appointed day du ring t.oacb accouanngyear 

(cl the amounlofintcre;1o1:duc and payable fur the period of dclay in making payment (which 
has been paid but beyond the appctnted day during the yt.-ar] but without adding the 
tnteresrspcdfied under the Micro, Small and Mt...Jium Enterprises lkvclopme-nlAd..2006 

( d'J the amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounti~year 
[e] I.he amount of further intcn."Sl remaining due and paydb)e even in the succeeding years, 

until such date when the Irucrestdues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, ror 
I.be purpose of dlsallowance uf a deductible cxpt"nditure under section 23 or the Mlcro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Ol."VelopmentArt, 2006 

A.s at ~i::trch 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023 Particulars 
(") OETAllS OF DUES TO MICRO ENrERl'RJSESAHO SMALL ENTERPRISES 
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Inventories al lhc cod oflhc year 
Finished g<.uxls 
wcrk-tn-progrcss 

I 4.4ll 57.66 
50.60 50.42 

65.08 108.08 

0.26 14.48 
70.64 50.6.l 
70.90 65.09 
(5,Bl] 4Z.'l9 

lnventories at the beginning of the year 
Finished goods 
work-in-progress 

Asat March 31, 2025 AsatMaJ'cb 31,202•$. Particulars 
Note 28- (1naease)/De<"rease In inventories 

15.23 Total 
15.23 Sul hurtc ACid 

Asatlt1arth 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024 Particulars 

Note Z7 • Purchase of Traded goods 

Raw Materials 
(i) Imported 
(ii) Indigenous 

115 ot Marth 31. 2025 Percentage As at March 31. 20Z4 Percentage 

7,304.98 89.11 9,564.71 q3.s1. 
893.86 10.89 631.Sl Ct.19 

8197.84 100.00 10,196.22 1.00.00 

Particulars 

(b) Value of Imported raw materials consumed and the value of all tndfgencus raw materials slmllarty consumed and the percentage of each to 
the total consumption. 

10,196.22 8,197.84 

9.564.71 
52255 

18.76 
90.20 

7.304.')8 
572.82 
289.33 
30.72 

(3) Ra\\' Matcrl.als Consumed Cornjmsc : 
B(lron Ores 
Sulphuric Add 
Borttx Pentahydrate 
Others 

Total 
Less: Closing Stock 

Opening Stock 
Add: Purcltases 
Boron Ores 
Sulphuric Acid 
Borax Penrahydrare 
Others 

Dtvidend income from investments 
Interest received 
lnterest received on Debenture 
Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Investments 
Net gatn on rcrelgn currency rransacrtons and translatlcn 
Sale of Scrap 
Misc. Income 
Rent & focility Charges 
Sundry Balances w/back 
Total 
Note 26 ·Cost of materials consumed 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

4'l.1 I o.ss 
864.76 607.11 

O.oJ 0.f7 
121.78 90.7~ 
143.25 128.30 

2'L.59 
O.l6 0.70 

355.20 348.65 
3.40 1.27 

1559.26 1177.49 

A.satMarch3t, 202S A$ at Maroh 31, 2024 

2,066.19 5,561.36 

9,713.82 6.066.85 
558.30 519.29 
33 l.45 ?3.89 

39.88 91.02 
12.709.64 12,262.41 
4,527.03 2.066.19 
8,182.61 10,196.22 

Partlculars 

Swnmary of Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Informanon for lbe year ended 31st March 2025 
Note 25 · Olher income (A1n-ounts are in lakhs unless stated other\vise) 

Particulars 
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(a) /\s per Accounting Standard 15 "Employee benefits". the disclosures asdetlned in the Accounting Standard arc given bcJow: 
Defined Contribution Plan: 
ContributiorJ to Provident Fund is Rs.58.96 Lakhs/- (.Previous Year Rs. 49.67 takns), ESICand Labour Welfare Fund Includes Rs. 
3.93 Lakhs- (PreviousYoar Rs.3.70 Lakhs). 

Defined Benefit Plan: 
G:ratuiryand Leave Eocascment: 
The Company makes partly annual oon[J"ibution to the Employees' Group Gratuity-cum-Life Assurance Scheme of uie Life Insurance 
Corporation onndia, a funded benefit plan for qualifying employees. The scheme provides for lump sum payment to vested employees 
al renrcmenr, death while in employment or on tennination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days service for each 
completed year of service or partthereof depending on the date ot)oining. The benefitvcstsafter five years of continuous service. 

l.118.7() 
3.70 

49.67 
6.26 

1038 
1,188.71 

l,336.04 
3_q3 

5S.9G 
20.36 
t0.86 

1430.16 

Sul::iries, W~ges, Bonus & E~·gn1tJ3 
Contribution to F..$.1.C. 
Cootributton to Provident fund 
Provision/ Conttfhutlon tu Group Gratulry and LIC 
\Vorkm~u & StOlfT Welfare ex nses 
Totul 

Asat l'tlarch 31, 2025 As atl\f:trch 31, 2024 Particulars 
[Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise] Note ZC) ~ Employee benefit expenses 

Summary of Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March ZOZS 
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The esttmates of future salary increases. consldered In acurartal valuation, take acccum of'Inflarton, seniority, promotion. 3nd other relevant 
(actors, such as: supply and demand in the employment market 

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate 

6.84% 7.23% 
5.00% 5.00% 
7.00% 7.00% 

6.84% 7.23% 
S.00% S.00% 
7.00% 7.00% 

Discount Rate 
Employee Turnover 
Salary Escalation 
Mo1t11!ty 

Leave Encashment Non Funded 
AsatMar·cb31, AsatMarcb31, 

2025 2024 

~:.pep§rs (or the ye~r 
Current service cost 
Prior service cost 
Interest cost on benefit obligation 
Expected return on plan assets 
Net actuarial (gain)/los.s recognised in the year 
Total Ex)1ense.o; Recognised tu the Profit and Loss Account 
Ren1ea~yre1nent effgc:ts retogn!ztd In other CQmprehensh•e !t1cna1e 
Acturtal (gain)/L.osses due to Demogrnphlc Assumption changes in DB( 
Acnu-tal (gain)/Losses due to Financial Assumption changes in 080 
Actuarial (Gain)/Losses due to Experience on 080 
Return on Plan Asets (Greater.}/ Less than Discount rate 
Net actuarial {gain)/los.s recognised U1 the-year 
Total Actuarial (gain)/loss included in OCI 

Assumptions 
Gratuity Punded Non Funded 
As at March As at March 31, 

31,2025 2024 

23.78 

23.78 

39.99 

39.99 204.51 173.23 
173.76 146.54 

30.75 26.69 

18.46 15.14 

13.14· 11.03 
(11.24} (19.91) 

20.36 6.26 

7.86 5.57 
(2.90) 4.62 

1.94 2.61 

6.90 12.80 

NII 

19.59 
(Jq,59) 

19.59 
(19.59) 

39.99 
(19.59) 

35.81 
23.78 

35.93 

35.93 

54.08 

54.08 

NIL 

21.84 
(21.84) 

21.84 
(21.84) 

54.08 
(21.84) 

39.99 
35.93 

12.36 11.03 
4.96 10.20 

(4.50) {18.4-3) 
204.51 173.23 

146.54 l'.l9.61 
11.24 10.50 
(1.94) (2.62) 
22.42 7.42 
( 4.50) (8.38) 

173.76 Mii.S<I 

14ii.54 139.61 
9.30 7.89 

22.42 7.42 
(4.501 (8.38) 

173.76 146.54 

NII NII 

Recouciliatlon of openill~ and closing balances oftbe present value. of the defined benefit Oblij.!ation: 
Present Value or obligation as at beginning of year 173.23 155.29 
Current service cost 18.46 IS.Vt 
Prior service cost 
Interest cost 
Actuarial (gain)/ loss 
Benefits paid 
Present VaJuc o( obligation as at end of the year 
Change in Plan assets 
Plan assets 3l period beginning. al fall· value 
Expected return on plan assets 
Act11a.rial (gain)/ loss 
Contribution 
Benefits paid 
Fair value of Plan assets at end of the year 
Fajr yalue oCP!an Assets 
Fair Value of plan assets at beginnjng of year 
Actual return on plan assets 
Contrlbutions 
BcnefiL< p•ltl 
Falr Value of plan assets at the end Qf year 
Funded s~'HUS 
Excess of Actual over eselmaeed return 
The Amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet and 
statements of profit and loss 
Present value or (tbllgatfons as at the end of year 
Fair-value of plan assets as at the end of the year 
Funded status 
Net as>et/[liability) recognized in balance sheet 

Leave Encasbment Non Funded 
As at r.tarch 31, Asat March 31, 

2025 2024 

G·ratulty Funded Non Funded 
AsatMarch AsatMarcb31, 

31,2025 2024 
Assumptions 
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Total current tax expense 
Deferred LOX 
Decreasejqfncrease] In deferred tax assets 
{Occrcasc)/lncreasc In deferred tax llablllties 

1,529.73 1.376.49 
(0.08) 

1,529.73 1,376.41 

85.87 (50.85) 
85.87 (50.85) 

1.615.60 1,325.56 Income tax expense 
Total deferred tax expensejfbeneflt] 

Current. ttr,x 
Current tax on proflts for the year 
Adjustn1ents for current tax of prior periods 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024 Particulars 

490.57 411.74 
a) Imported 
b) Indigenous 

Note 32 ·Taxation 
-tncome tax expense 

Particulars 

Consumable Stores & Spares and Packing: 
Total 

Stores. Spares Md Packing 
Power& Fuel 
Repairs & Maintenance (Building) 
Machinery & Electrical Repairs 
Water Charges 
Factory Expenses 
Insurance Charges 
Repairs-Others 
Rent and Other Charges 
Rates & Taxes 
Donation 
Freight, Coolie & Cartage 
Commission and Brokerage 
Corporate Social Responsibility Contribution 
Travelling and conveyance 
Telephone charges 
Printing & Stationery 
Directors Sitting Fees 
Vehicle Expenses 
Auditors' Remuneration 
Legal and Professional charges 
Bank Charges 
Goods & Service Tax 
Advertisement & Sales Promotion 
General Expenses 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 3L2024 

411.74 490.57 
6 I 2.53 838.07 

2.95 20.96 
188.12 107.29 
15.34 18.08 

376.25 404.51 
12.65 11.01 
27.30 7.43 
81.23 63.92 

3.07 2.86 
2.51 2.91 

43.03 41.60 
764.93 839.06 
l.11.00 I.I 0.00 
126.58 63.67 

3.70 4.14 
3.78 3.01 
1.89 1.80 

22.54 19.39 
9.18 9.18 

374.36 223.34 
0.62 2.17 
1.37 0.82 

86.16 78.51 
32.47 23.32 

3,315.28 3,427.62 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024 

Particulars 

0.60 17.89 Total 

Note 31 · Other expenses 

0.05 
0.55 

0.64 
17.26 

Interest on Working Capital 
Other Interest 

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 20ZS Particulars 
[Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise] Note 30 · Net finance costs 

Summary of Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March ZOZS 
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Note 37 - Details of Related parties transacncns are as under: 
a) List of related partles and relationship where control exists or with whom transactions were entered Into: 

Subsidiary 
lndoborax Infrastructure Private Limited 

Key Management Personnel 
Mr. Sajai Jai11, Managing Director & Chief Pinanclal Officer 
Mr. Govind Parmar, Executive Director 
Mr. Sachln Gupta, Independent Director 
Mr. Yatin Shah, Independent Director 
Mr. Yogesh Patil, Independent Director 
Mrs. Mlnakshi Mittai, Independent Director 

Relative of Key Management Personnel 
Mr. Saumya Jain, Business Development Manager 

As Auditors 
Tax Audit 
Other Servtces 
Total 

4.68 4.68 
1.50 1.50 
3.00 3.00 
9.'18 9:18 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024 Particulars 

9.78 36.84 L Foreign Travels 
2. Others 
Note 36 - Remunerarlon to Auditors: 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024- Particulars 

6.230.05 9,589.71 Raw Materials 
Note 35 - Expenditure In Foreign Currency: 

As at March 31, 2025 As at Marc.h 31,2024 Particulars 

3,897.76 
32090000 
32090000 

12.15 
12.15 

4,ZS0.53 
32090000 
32090000 

13.25 
13.25 

Profit after Tax 
No. er shares <1utstandil'lg 
YVeighted Average No. of shares + potential shares o/s 
Earning per share (Basic) 
Earning per share {Dlluled] 
Note 34 - Value Of Imports On C.l.F. Basis: 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024 Particulars 
[Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise] Note 33 - Earning Per Share: 

Summary of Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March ZOZS 
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Note 38 ~ Financial instruments 
i) Fair values hierarchy 

Fi11ancial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three 
levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the 
measurement, as follows: 
Level 1 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities: 
Level 2 : The tatr value of financial instruments that arc not traded in an active market is: determmed using valuation 

techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific 
estimates. 

Level J : inputs for the asset or liabilitythatare not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 
financial assets and liabilities measured at f.airvalue ~ recurringfairvalue measurements 

Sr. Subsidiary Company Key Management Personnel Relatives or Key 

No. Particulars ftfan.agerlal Person 

2024-25 2023-24 2024·25 2023·24- 2024·25 2023·24 

1 Outstanding Payables 

Mi'. Gcvtnd Parmar 1.40 1.38 
Mr. Salal Jain 446.74 379.73 
Mr. Saumya [aln . . 4.44 2.87 

2 Outstanding Receivables 
Sajal lalu 4.BO 4.90 . . 

c) Amount outstandlng at the year end 

(Amounts ate fn rucees unless stated 

Sr. Subsidiary Cempauy Key Mauage1ttent Personnel Relatives or Key 

No. PartlcuJars Manage.rial Person 

2024-25 2023-M 2024--25 2023-2+ 2024-25 2023-2<1 

I lndoborax lnfrastrucutre Private Ltd - . . . - 
2 Payn1ents to & provision for ub-cocrs' 

remuneration 
r.tr. Govind Parmar 19.35 18.11 
~Ir. Sajal fain 598.13 531.ZS 

3 Rent Received from Kr.IP 
Mr Safa) Jain-Rent Recelved 57.60 57.60 . . 

3 Salary to Relative 
f\1r. Saumya Jain - . - 8L4l 64.71 

4 Directors Sitting Fees 
fl.fr. arun Sureka, Independent Director - 0.45 
Mr. N.K. ~final, Independent Director - MS 
Mr. Silchh1 Gupta. lndependent Oh·ector 0.51 0.51 
Mrs. Sreelekha Jain, Non·EMecutlvc Director 0.24 0.30 
fl.1r. Yatln Shah, Independent DlrC'c1or 0.42 O.Q3 
Mr. Yogesh Padl, tndcpendem Director 0.45 0.06 
Mrs. Mln~kshl Mittal. Independent Dlrector O.Z7 - 

b) Transactions during the year with related partles: 

(il INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED 



ii The Con1pany docs not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has be-ton initiated or pending against the 
Company rorany Benami property. 

iii The Companydcesnorbave any transaction with companies strucko~ 
iv The Contpanydoes nothaveanychargesor satisfaction whidt is yet to be registered with ROC beyond die statutory period, 
v The Company has not traded or invest-Cd in Cryptocurrcncy or Vinual Currency during the fioand:al year. 
vi The Company has not been declared wllfuJ defauJter by any bank or financial institution or govcmmentor any government 

authority. 
vii The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other pcrsonts) orentity(ics), including foreign entities 

[lntermedtartcs] with the understandingthattbc tntermedlaryshall, 
(a) directly or indirecr.ly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any mauner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of'the company{Ultilnate Beneficiaries) or 
(b J provide any guarantee. securityorthe like to oron behalf oftbe Ultimate Beneficiaries 

viii The Company has not received any fund from any person(s] orentity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) witb 
tile understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 

(a} directly or Indirectly lend or invest ill other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalfofthe Funding Party lUltilnate Beneficiaries) or 

lb] provide any guarantee.security or the like on bcllalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
ix The Company does not have any transaerion which is not recorded in the books of accounts thaL has been surrendered or 

disclosed as income during the year-in the ClX assessments under the Income Tax Ac.1., 1961 (such as.search or survey or any 
ether relevantpruvtsicnsortne tneome TaxAct,.1961. 

Agregate Amount Amount 
Nan1e utilised disclosed as Amounr as 
of the working during Qu~rter ended per per books Difference Reasons 
Bank capital limit the quarterly of account sanctioned quarter starernene 
Kotak 1035.00 . 30·06-2024 1.725.56 1,763.25 {57.69) Prlmarlly certain expenses 
Malun 1035.00 . 30-09-2024 l,535.31 1,571.15 {35.84) forruing part of finish goods and 

dra 1035.00 . 31·12·2024 6.226.09 6,294.21 (68.15] semi-Finished goods were not Bonk 1035.00 31·03·2025 4.649.19 4,667.43 {18.24) included in the quarterly statements 
Ltd 

. 

(ii) Valuation process and technique used to determine fair value 
Specificvaluation techniques used to value financial instruments include: 
The use of quoted market prices for investments in shares and mutual funds. 

Note 39 • Other lnformation 
L The company has filed quarterly return or statements with the bank in lieu of the sanctioned working capital facilities, 

which are in agreement with the books of accounts other than those as set outbclow. 
(Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise] 

As at 31 March 2025 L<'vell Level 2 Level 3 Total 
Plnancial assets 

Investments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 
Shares l,172.'1·5 . . 1.172.45 
Mutual funds 4,521.01 . . 4.521.0l 
Otber . . . 
T0..31 flnantlal assets 5,693.46 . . 5,693.46 
Asat31March2024 Level 1 Levet z Level3 Total 
Financial assets 

lnvestJnents at fbir value through Other Comprehensive Income 
Shares 58.67 . . 58.67 
Mutual funds 4239.86 . . 4239.86 
Other 0.30 . o.so 
Total Ilnauctal assets 

,.. 
4.2.2_1!,jll . . 4.298.g 

Summary of Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March202S 
FlnanclaJ 3SSct'S: and liabilities measured at fair value· recurring fair value measurements 

(il INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED 



The Company's risk management is carried out by a central treasury department or the Company under policies approved by the 
Board of Directors. The Board of Directors provide written principles for overall risk management, as wcl1 as policies covering 
specificarcas,such as f orcign exchange risk. interest rate risk.markerrtsk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity. 
A) Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or countcrpanyto a financial instrument wtll fail to perform or pay amounts due to the 
Group causing financiaJ loss.. It arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and financial institutions, security 
deposits, loans given and principally from credit exposures to customers relanng to outstanding receivables, The Group's 
maximumexposuretocreditriskislimit.edtod1ecanyingamountoffinancialassetsrecognisedatreportingdatc. 

Pon-fol lo dtverslftcattcn Ser1sttl"1ty analysis luvesrments bi equity secunttes t.lal'kel rtsk • se c "1.ldty pnce 

11H! ulextte. Llthh1rn hydroxlde and 
ether raw material is purchase al the 
prevaltrng price front suppliers. 

Sensitivity analysis Payables li.nk('d toulcdte prices 
Mari<:et risk· Uleeite, Lit.hh.un 
Hydr(Jxlde & other raw 
m:neti~l prices 

Mix <>fborro~vlngs taken ti! 
Ilxcd and floating rates 5e11sltlvtty analysts 

Mat1:rtal bought "" recetpt of 
documents, i( material bought on credit 
same are hedged. 

Cash 80\.\' forecasting 
~en!<ltivlty :.tn:'.'lysis 

Recognised finandal assets and 
llaJ:!jllrles OO( d(!noniln;ned In 
Indian rupee (Rs.) 

M;irket risk -forefgn 
exchange 

Availabiliry of romnllued 
C'l'edll ttnes and b<J1'1'1)Wl1\g factlhles 

Rolling cash ftcwrorecases Liquidity risk 

Bank deposits. dlversfflcauon 
o( asset base. credit timlts 
and coUate>ra1. 

Aging ans1)>si:; 
C<ish and cash equlvatenes. rrade recelvabtes, 
dertvaave flnandal Instruments, 
financial assets measured at amortised cost 

7'1anagenJent ,.fea$Uxenu!nt F.x11osure arising from Risk 

a) The carrying value of trade receivables, securities deposits, insurance claim receivable. loans given, cash and bank 
balances and other financial assets recorded at amortised cost. is considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair 
value. 
The carrymgvalue.ofborrewmgs, trade payables and other finandaJ liabilities recorded ar amcrnscd cost is considered 
to be a reasonable approximation of fair value. 

ii) riskmanagement 
The Group's activities expose irto market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This note explains the sources of risk which the 
entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements: 

S,693.-J6 

4,298.82 

65.fl4 76.09 
509.04 509.04 

1,$78.73 U60.7q 
61.63 60.l, 

~,911.62 12.140.11 
26.90 25.85 

6,153.76 1;298.82 H,172.07 

543.18 363.60 
1,063.?7 958.58 

1,606.95 1,322.18 

5.693.46 

financial assets : 
Investments 
mutual funds Shares and Bond 
Loans 
to others 
to other body corporates 
Trade receivables 
Secnnry deposits 
Cash and cnsh equivalents 
Unclaimed dividend account 
Total 
Financial Ltabllltles 
Borrcwtngs 
Trade payablt-s 
01.hcr Ilnanetal Habtltrtcs 
Total 

FVTOCI I Amorttsed Cost I Antortlsed Cost FVTOCI Particulars 

{Amounts are in rupees unless stated 
--,----AsatMarch31,2024 As at March 31 2025 

Not~ 40 -Ftnanetal Risk Mauagerne11t: 
Jl.£!.!!;!t-ndal )llS'll'llf!lCllL<" b (arl~l"}'.} 

Summary of Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March202S 
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B) Liquidity risk 
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of 
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of the 
business, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maint.aining availability under committed facilities. 
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected 
cash Hows. The Group takes into account the Liquidity of the market in which the entity operates. In addition, the Group's 
liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets 
necessary to meet these. monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and 
maintaining debt financing plans. 
Financing arrangements 
The Group had obtained credit facility of R•. 1035 Lakhs from Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd, however the same has not been 
utililzed. 
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities 
The tables below analyse the Group's financial liabilities into relevanrmaumry groupings based on their contractual maturities 
for all non-derivative financial liabiliti.es. The amounts disdoscd in the table are the contractual undiscountcd cash nows. 
Balances due within t 2 months equal the.ircanyingamountsas the impact of discounting is not significant, 
Refer Note No. 20 for the Trade payables bifurcauon, 

C) Marketrisk-foreigo exchange 
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions. primarily with res pea to US Dollar. 
Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Group's functional 
currency. The Group. as per its overall strategy group imports raw materials on the basis efmarker demand. The Group does 
noruscf orward contracts and swaps for speculative purposes. 
Sensitivity 
The sensitivity to profit or loss from changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from financial instruments dcnontinatcd in 
USD. In case ofa reasonably possible change in INR/USD exchange rates of+ /-2% (previous year+ /-2%) at the reporting date, 
keeping all other variables constant; there would have been an impact on profits oflNR 239.671.akhs (previous year fN R 143.56 
Lakhs). 

l,360.79 1,578.73 

1,243.81 
29.76 
75.45 
L0.73 
1.04 

1,348.34 
95.Sl 

2.87 
36.SL 
95.51 

Not due 
o-30 days past due 
31 ·60 days past due 
61 ·90 days past due 
More than 
"rounded off to nll 

As at 31-Mar-24 As at 31·Mar·2S Particulars 

(Amounts are ln Iakhs unless stated otherwise) Detail of trade receivables 1J1at are past due ls given below: 

The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other countcrparties, identified either individually or by the 
Company, and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. Where available at reasonable cost, external credit 
ratings and/or reports on customers and other counrerparnesare obtained and used, The Company's policy is to deal only with 
creditworthycountecparties. 
In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single 
counterparty or any company of counterparties having similar characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a large number of 
customers in various parts of India The Group has very limited history of cusromer default, and considers the credit quality of 
trade receivables that are not past due or impaired to be good 
The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents, mutual funds. bank deposits, loans and derivative financial instruments L~ 
considered negligible, since the counterparttesare reputable organisations with high quality external credit ratings. 
Group provides for expected credit losses on financial-assets by assessing individual financiaJ instruments for cxpcctation of 
any credit losses. Since the assets have very low credit risk. and are for varied natures and purpose. there is no trend that the 
company can draws to apply oonsi~tcntly to entire population. For such financial assets. the Group's policyis to provides for 12 
month expected credit losses upon initial recognition and provides for lifcnme expected credit losses upon significant increase 
in credit risk The Group docs not have any expected loss based impairment recognised on such assets considering their low 
credit risk nature, though incurred loss provisions aredisclosed under each sub-category of such financial assets. 
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Name of the Entity lo the Net Assers Le .. torol assets Sbare lo rroHt or t.oitt Sb.are tn other Sb:1re In toca.l 
mi.ou.s 'ota.J Li.;abilites ;after Taj ((,j 111ptthe1.1..o;h'e 1 neeme comprthensiv~ Income 

A.s%of A$O~o( As 1~ ()f cuier As%ofShare 
consolidated An1oun' c;onsolidatN AnlO\Ulf eomprenenstve AmllUTil in ccmpreseenve Amoun' 

net 1l$Set~ fRs in Lakh.sl p1-ofil or lo$.$ (Rs io Lakbsl teceme fR-ii in Lakhs) rueeme (Rs in Laklts l 
31.03.2025 31.03.2025 31.032025 3L03.202S 31.03.2025 31.032025 31.03.2025 3'1.03.2025 

1 2 3 • s • 7 8 • 
Pare-nrSl1bsid~iry 
lndfan: 
lndc 1161';~~ & (:he1nlC3!S l.td 96.59" 3J.,S4:J.31 98.SJ'Mo 418U.20 100.00% Z7Z.70 98.62% 4,460.91 
lndobur.axlnfr.istnu:lure PV\ Ltd :t.4 l'tb l,184.10 L47 .. 6Ul Q.00% 0.00 L3U% 62.33 

TOTAL 10~ J..f,727.71 100.00% 4_25033 .LO!J.00 Z7Z.10 J.00.00% • .24 

Note 42 -For Disclosures mandated by scnedute tu of Companies Act 2013, by way of additional tnformatton, refer below: 
320.90 

320.90 

Sensitivity 
The sensitivity to profit or loss in case of a reasonably possible change in intcrcstrntes of+/· 50 basis points (previous year: + /· 
SO basis points), keeping all other variables constant; would have resulted in an impact on profits by lNR0.006 Lakhs (Previous 
)"!•r lNR 0.002 Lakhs] 
ii) Assets 

The Group's fmancial assets are canied at amortised rostand are at fixed rate only. They are, therefore, not subject to 
interest rate risk since neither the c.anying amount nor the future cash flows wiU tlucruatc because of a change in 
markcttnterestrates 

Ej Price risk 
Exposure from investments in mutual funds: 
TheGroup·s exposure to price risk arises from investments in muruaJ funds held by the Group and classified in the balance sheet 
as fair value through other comprehensive income. To manage its price risk arising from investments in mutual funds, the 
Group investonlyin liquid Funds. 
Sensitivity 
Thesensitivityto profit or loss in case or an increase in price of the instrument by S'Yo keeping all other variables constant would 
have resulted in an impact on profits bylNR 569.35 Lakhs (previous year lNR 4Z9.88 Lakhs). 
Exposure from trade payables: 
Group generally import on advance payment or on payment at the time of receipt documents. lf there ts any transaction of 
imports on credit basis, then such transaction is hedged. 

Note 41 -Capital Management 
The Group's capita) management objectives are: to ensure the group's ability to continue as a going concern. to provide an 
adequate re-tum to shareholder. The Group monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash 
equivalents as presented on the face ofbalance sheet, 
The Management assesses die group's capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while 
avoiding excessive leverage. This takes into account the subordination levels of the group's various classes of debt. The Group 
manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in the economic conditions and the risk 
characteristics of the underlying assets, 
The company monitors the capital on the basis orrollowing ratios 
Dividends 
Equity shares 
(i) Final dividend for the year 
(ii) Dividendsnotrecognisedatthoendofthereportingperiod 

Variable rate borrowing 
Pixed rate borrowing 

As at March 31,2025 As at March 31,2024 Particulars 

[Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otberwlse) Below is the overall exposure of the Group co interest rate risk: 

D) lnterestraterisk 
i) Liabilities 

The Company's policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. J\t 31 March 2025, 
the Company is exposed to changes in market inte:restrates through bank borrowings arvariable interesrrates. 

Interest rate risk exposure 
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Place : Mu1nbaJ 
Date : t3th M3y, Z025 

lndcptndenl Director 
DIN-093:!2l<J3 
Vatfn Shah 
Independent Director 
OJN--07 J 55634 
Yoges.h Patil 
Independent Director 
DIN·1046-H2'1 

Managing OlreC[Qr & CFO 
l>IN-00314855 
Govlnd Panuar 
Extc.:udvl.! Dlrec.:tor 
OJN-03556411 
Clo1in.ak~hi l\littal 
lnde1)endenr Director 
DIN·07iZ0741 

Pra:vtn Cha.van 
Company Sccrclary 

M.No. 16857 

Anll Jain 
l'arlner 
Me1nbership No. 03980~ 

For and on behalf of the Board Oirec:.tors 
lndo Sorox & Chenlicals LiJn.ited 
Safa) Jain Sachln Gupta 

Notes l to 48 foro1 an integrtil part of theseJinanctaJ state.n1ents. 
As per ttttaebed report of even date. 
For Bohrn & Co., 
Chitrl:ered Acc.:uuntanlS 
Firm Hegistr;ition No. I 36492W 

44 CommilmenlandConUngcnlUabilty: 
al In l ')92, STC of lndla Ltd had claimed fur Its. 9.03 l.akhs towards price dlfference & ethers, against I.bis, Itonourable U.Un1bay High 

Court ordered Company lo JtiVC bank quarantec of Rs. 1.6.~ Lakhs (Vrt."ViOUS year Rs. 1.6.S l.akhs) 
b) Balance instalment towards work-ta-progress or Ks. 2086.06 Lakhs. payable on the basts uf various sLaJtcs of comptcucn of projec.1. 

over the pcrtod of five years, 
c) The company has created a Itxed deposit of Ms. ll Lakhs lien marked in favour of Cu~1oms towards S'ecurity a.wtjnst Imported raw 

material 
4S: tnter Corporate' Deposit consist of a sum of Rs. !jQ.9.04 Lakh.s given tu M/s. Radius Estates J1rnjet.1s Private Limited (formerly known as 

Vishwaroop Rc-'.tlturs Private l.imited.1"hc satd company is in theprccess of corporate insolvc-ncy resolution process under Lhe Jnsclvencyaed 
Oankruptcy code. 2016 (18C). The company has Bled its claim as financial credltcrsas per the n.1-:uJaliun 8 cf the JOC code for the said 
outstandtng amcunt, The company is awaiting the outcome from National Company Law Tribunal (NCl:11. l}ue to cnccrtalntytn realization of 
the said tlcbtand pending a decision ofNCLTthc companyccnueued nut tu provide interest on the said loan during the financial year; 

46 Corporate Social Rcs-ponslbility: 'fhc Company has Incurred fNR J ll.00 lakhs (previous. year INR 110.00 takhs] towards Social 
R~1)0nsibiUty activilics. ltis included in in the Statement o(Profil and Loss. Further, no amount has been spcntcn cunstnu.1ion /acquisition 
of an asset ofthcCompanyand the cnureameunthas been spent in cash. iheamount required lo be spcnluudcrScctiun 135 of the Companies 
At:L. 201) [or Lhcycar2021 is INK 1 IO.S7 lakhs te, 2%of average net profits for last three financialycars.calculatt.-das per Section 198oflhc 
Cumpanies-Act.2013. 

4 7 All assets and liabilitit?S have been classified as current or ncn-currentes per the Cum~>any•s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out 
in the Schedule Ill to tbl' Companies Act; 201 l. Based on the nature of products and I.he ume between the acqutstucn of assets for processtng 
and their realization in cash and cash equtvalcots. the Company bas ascertatned its operatiOJ: cyt.ic as l 2 months for the purpose of current>­ 
nun currenldassificalion o( asst.>ts and liabilities. 

48 Tho pn.'Viousycar's fiJ.,•tu"Cshavc bc.?cn regrouped and rearrdt1Jte<I whcrc\lt'rnet.~'Y.rylo make in compliance with Lhcc.-u:rrenl financial year. 

!Qii11 H1unfr.ator lkoottainator (1;1rrent ""'"""' 'i4V;irbnR Re.asons ....... ··~rfod for Variance- 

(;il(~1T~11tft.m1.1 Curren! ''l>Jm Curten1 l.i"biJity ll.76 nzo ·3'3.(i.4 ft!l'for Notr 

lb) Udll &jllltylUOO 
lkirrcrw1ngs~ lntel'6\ A<:i:l\led 

'l'-01.11 Eq>Jlty 

{ c I Debi Service C.uver.111.c R.~lin Ocbl Service :- 2!i:L14 6,Sl:L.40 ·%.:;9 
Nd. rl'(tfil al\crT:lx Jnte.n."llt& Lca~I! Redu<ti-011 '"' pl'im:ltily ,. :lCC<rU:nt ot 

• Oeprt'dollon.• ln~est •kiss on p~yments • PrlnrJ1,.1 leerease lit pro6t befort1 tu end Increase rn 
~:dC' t•f F~\C'd ~~ts Rc:~)'IDr.111$ p(t)'mt1;1 ofi11.tCf~1 

('.I) RttWTI un Equity R.."1•> ~ftPrt,•fil aftur1'.ai Avtf"Jg(lSlt..mb111d£1t'11 ll.2S 12.15 9.05 
Equity fit.fer Hot" 

( 1;1) lnV<;1t-1orytur:u.wcr1<1t~o <.:11;t W Goal!$ wld t>¥ S;ik-:$- li'ft.1r;;ge ln~nJ()ry 2.4U 2-67 -7.1(, 
(Opening. hwentory ~ Re!'er Notti 

Clust'lQ. hwentoiy) /2 

(I) Tr;id~: Rcceiv.'lblel·TurnC"l\'cr r:1tio N~ Credit S;l!t~ Avtr~e Aa:oonl$ 11.92 1•1..A-9 ·17.7.J 
~iv:dllt$ Rdcr Note 

(Ji) ·rr-11J.e l~.l)'abJes n1rn6\1i'!r Ntt C~Jt rurcltakf! A\'t1'3;g<'Trad~ 21.48 19.03 2.1.39 fw.t!r Hore 
Payables 

(h) Net C;iplr.il n1mrw1·r ntfo Nrt~lef \'/orfdng Ciiphal 1.21 l.03 2:1-30 RdcrHW 

0} Nee l'rolit II.ado .HetProlit NetS:1l.i:s il,2-t fJ.2() 19-10 Rcl'er Nu~ 

Ill R.e111rn on (;;ipitil 1in1plQYcd £;ir1\llij! bdtile intemt ;io6 t,t.'(('S C<ipital Emi*>Y«I 0.18 tt.113 ·L<19 Refer Nott 

fkJ Rttwnon lnvr.sllllf'Jl1 N•'l R111um afkrT,lll ln\'t:Stmcnts '13 ~u ...... , Refer H<o~ 

Nul.(: In re31r.ctt ui :if(11~;iid meutirnw.d f:itlo.\,QO re»(·111S (Uf 1•:i):u1i:c p101•idtd whtfi'! d1;ingt (25~ or mere] in FY 20M-25 in CG1nJ1ari$00 U\ FY2"23·24 

summary ofMaterlal Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2024 
Note 43 -Disclosure with respect to Ratio: (Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise) 
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YatinShab 
Director 

Yogesh Patil 
Director 

Minakshi Mittal 
Director 

Pravin Chavan 
Company Secretary 

Govind Parmar 
Director 

Sachin Gupta 
Director 

Sajal Jain 
Managing Director & CFO 

For and on behalf of Board 
lndo Borax & Chemicals Ltd 
Mumbai, 13'" May, 2025 

Other Information: 
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Nooe 
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold du ting the year: None 

Sr.No. Particulars 
1. Name of the subsidiary In do borax 

Infrastructure 
Private Limited 

2. The date since when subsidiarv was acouired 03/12/2009 
3. Reporting Period for the subsidiary concerned. if different NA 

from the holding company's reporting period 
4. Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of NA 

the relevant flnanclal vear in the case of foreian subsidiarv 
5. Share Capital 11.00 
6. Reserve & Surplus 1173.41 
7. Total Assets 1184.41 
8. Total Liabilities 1.25 
9. Investments 0.00 
10. Turnover 84.17 
11. Profit before taxation 83.33 
12. Provision for taxation 21.00 
13. Profit after taxation 62.33 
14. Proposed Dividend 0.00 
15. Extent of shareholding (in percentage 1 100% 

Rs. in Lakhs Part "A": Subsidiaries 

FORMAOC-1 

[PURSUANT TO FIRST PROVISO TO SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION 129 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ 
WITH RULES OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014] 

STATEMENT CONTAINfNG SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF SUBSIDIARY 
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INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED 
302, Link Rose, Linking Road, 
Santacruz (West), Mumbai - 400 054. 
Tel : 2648 9142 
Fax: 2648 9143 

If undelivered, please return to: 
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